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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on FornKlt@at are not purely historical are forward-lookjrstatements within the meaning
of applicable securities laws. Forward-looking staients include statements regarding our “expeatatib“anticipation,” “intentions,”
“beliefs,” or “strategies” regarding the future, wather or not those words are used. Forward-looldstajements also include statements
regarding revenue, margins, expenses, and earranglysis for fiscal 2007 and thereafter; technotjiinnovations; products or product
development, including their performance, markedifoan, and potential; our product development s&ties; potential acquisitions or
strategic alliances; the success of particular protdor marketing programs; the amounts of revenemegated as a result of sales to
significant customers; and liquidity and anticipdteash needs and availability. All forward-lookisigtements included in this report are
based on information available to us as of thedjldate of this report, and we assume no obligatbonpdate any such forward-looking
statements. Our actual results could differ matirilkom the forwardiooking statements. Among the factors that couldseactual results
differ materially are the factors discussed in Itéf Risk Factors
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer sngplier of custontlesigned user interface solutions that enable pdogphteract more easi
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and otherteda devices. We currently target the
personal computer, or PC, market and the marketiftal lifestyle products, including portable da music and video players, mobile
phones, and other select electronic device mavkiditsour customized interface solutions.

We are the market leader in providingifgce solutions for notebook computers. Our oab@guipment manufacturer, or OEM,
customers include tier one PC OEMs. We generalhplsuour OEM customers through their contract mantufrers, which take delivery of
our products and pay us directly for them.

Our website is located at www.synaptiesc Through our website, we make available free afrgh all of our Securities and Excha
Commission filings, including our annual reportsFarm 10-K, our proxy statements, our quarterlyorepon Form 10-Q, and our current
reports on Form 8-K as well as Form 3, Form 4, goian 5 Reports for our directors, officers, andhpipal stockholders, together with
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyansto Section 13(a), 15(d), or 16 under the SeesiExchange Act. These reports are
available immediately after their electronic filimgth the Securities and Exchange Commission. Téksite also includes corporate
governance information, including our Code of Cartdour Code of Ethics for the CEO and Senior FamrOfficers, and our Board
Committee Charters.

PC Market

We provide custom interface solutionsrfavigation, cursor control, and multimedia cordrimr many of the world’s premier PC
OEMs. In addition to notebooks, other PC applicatifor our technology include peripherals, suckeadoards, mice, and monitors, as well
as desktop and PC remote control applications.solurtions for the PC market include the TouchPad®uch-sensitive pad that senses the
position of a person’s finger on its surface; tlreidhStyk™, a self contained, easily integrated frgnstick module; and dual pointing
solutions, which combine both a TouchPad and atipgjrstick into a single notebook computer, enaplisers to use the interface of their
choice. Additional products offered for the PC nedskinclude LuxPad™, Dual Mode TouchPad, LightTdt¢ciQuickStroke® , RoundPad™
and Dual Mode TouchPad.

The latest industry projections for natek unit growth for the period 2006-2010 show a poomd annual growth rate of 16.1%
compared with 5.4% for desktop computers, reflectire continued migration of desktops to notebdokted by users’ desire for mobile
computing and on-the-go access to applicationsrimétion, and digital content, which is expandimgaodaily basis. Based on the strength of
our technology and engineering know-how, we beligeeare well positioned to take advantage of tloevir opportunity in the notebook
market and to provide innovative, value-added fatar solutions for each of the key end-user prefags. We estimate that in fiscal 2006
approximately 80% of all notebook computers soleldusolely a touch pad interface; 4% used solelgiatipg stick interface; and 16% use
dual pointing interface, which consists of botlmach pad and a pointing stick. Our notebook protines of touch pads and pointing sticks
allow us to address 100% of the notebook market.

Digital Lifestyle Product Markets

We believe our extensive intellectualgady portfolio, our experience in providing inteceé solutions to major OEMs of electronic
devices, and our proven track record of growthunexpanding core notebook computer interface lessiposition us to be a key
technological enabler for multiple consumer elaticaevices targeted to meet the growing digifakliyle trend. Based on these strengths
are addressing the opportunities created by thetgrof mobile computing, communications, and emaiaernent devices within the digital
lifestyle products markets. Digital lifestyle praxds include portable digital music and video playenobile phones, remote controls, personal
digital assistants, or PDAs, as well as a variétymobile, handheld, wireless, and entertainmentadsvy We believe our existing technologies,
our range of product solutions, and our emphasisase of use, small size,
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low power consumption, advanced functionality, dlity, and reliability will enable us to serve ntiple aspects of the markets for digital
lifestyle products and other electronic devices.

Our array of custom solutions for digitéstyle products includes the ScrollStrip™ ami€hRing™, which are scrolling solutions
allowing users to navigate efficiently through mermund content; LightTouch™ capacitive buttons, Whaoovide illuminated button
functionality; and MobileTouc®, NavPoint®, and our ClearPad™.

Industry projections for the portableiiigmusic player market for the period 2006-2008gest a compound annual growth rate of
9.3% for the overall market and a compound annt@dth rate exceeding 16.7% for the hard disk drareiDD, portion of the market,
reflecting the trend toward portable digital muslayer products containing greater data storagadtgs. These products require a simple,
durable, and intuitive user interface solution &wigate efficiently through menus and scroll thioextensive play lists and songs contained
in the host device. We believe we are well poséibto take advantage of this growing market baseauo technology, engineering know-
how, and the acceptance of our custom-designedniseface solutions by OEMs in this market.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to continue to enhaneeposition as a leading supplier of interface Bohs for the notebook computer market and to
become a leading supplier of interface solutiomgifgital lifestyle products. Key aspects of ouagtgy to achieve this objective include th
set forth below.

Extend Our Technological Leaderst

We plan to utilize our extensive intetlesd property portfolio and technological expertigeextend the functionality of our product
solutions and offer innovative product solutiongtistomers across multiple markets. We intend micoe utilizing our technological
expertise to reduce the overall size, weight, arst, power consumption of our interface solutiohdevincreasing their applications,
capabilities, and performance. We plan to contienigancing the ease of use and functionality ofolutions. We also plan to expand our
research and development efforts through strateggjaisitions and alliances, increased investmeatiirengineering activities, and the hiring
of additional engineering personnel. We believe these efforts will enable us to meet customeeetations and to achieve our goal of
supplying on a timely and cost-effective basisriwst advanced, easy-to-use, functional interfatigisns to our target markets.

Enhance Our Position in the Notebook Computer andable Digital Music Player Market

We intend to continue introducing marlegding interface solutions in terms of performarigactionality, size, and ease of use. We
plan to continue enhancing our customer’s industieaign alternatives and device functionality thgb innovative product development
based on our existing capabilities and technoldgidaances.

Capitalize on Growth of New Markets

We intend to capitalize on the growtmefv markets, including the digital lifestyle protiatarkets, brought about by the convergence
of computing, communications, and entertainmentagsv We plan to offer innovative, intuitive inteck solutions that address the evolving
portability, connectivity, and functionality reqaments of these new markets. We plan to offer thelgions to existing and potential OEM
customers to enable increased functionality, redigize, lower cost, and enhanced industrial defgigtures and user experience of their
products. We plan to utilize our existing technidsgas well as aggressively pursue new technolegieew markets evolve that demand new
solutions.

Emphasize and Expand Customer Relations

We plan to emphasize and expand our gtama long-lasting customer relationships and twiple the most advanced interface
solutions for our customers’ products. We belichat bur interface solutions enable our customedgeliver a positive user experience and to
differentiate their products from those of theingmetitors.




Table of Contents

We continually attempt to enhance the competitiositipn of our customers by providing them withawative, distinctive, and high-quality
interface solutions on a timely and cost-effecbasis. To do so, we work continually to improve productivity, to reduce costs, and to
speed the delivery of our interface solutions. \Weeavor to streamline the entire design and delipescess through our ongoing design,
engineering, and production improvement efforts. Mée devote considerable effort to support outausrs after the purchase of our
interface solutions.

Pursue Strategic Relationships and Acquisiti

We intend to develop and expand strategationships to enhance our ability to offer wahdded customer solutions, penetrate new
markets, and strengthen the technological leadeftour product solutions. We also intend to asgjaompanies in order to expand our
technological expertise and to establish or stiegbur presence in selected target markets.

Continue Virtual Manufacturing

We plan to expand and diversify our piithn capacity through third-party relationshiggreby strengthening our virtual
manufacturing platform. This strategy results stalable business model; enables us to concewtadar core competencies of research and
development, technological advances, and prodwsifjideand reduces our capital expenditures. Otmalimanufacturing strategy allows us
to maintain a variable cost model, in which we dbincur most of our manufacturing costs until ptwduct solutions have been shipped and
billed to our customers.

Product Solutions

We develop, enhance, and acquire interfachnologies that enrich the interaction betwesnple and their mobile computing,
communications, and entertainment devices. Ouniatiae and intuitive interfaces can be engineecegiccommodate many diverse
platforms, and our expertise in human factors asability can be utilized to improve the featured &mctionality of our solutions. Our
extensive array of technologies includes ASICspfiare, software, and pattern recognition and t@eetsing technologies

Our interface solutions are custom ergjied, total solutions for our customers and inclselgsor design, module layout, ASICs,
firmware, and software features for which we previdanufacturing and design support and devicentgstihis allows us to be a one-stop
supplier for complete interface design from thdyedesign stage, to manufacturing, to testing ampsrt. Through our technologies and
expertise, we seek to provide our customers wigittaznized solutions that address their individuaigie issues and result in high-
performance, feature-rich, and reliable interfamlet®ons. We believe our interface solutions otfer following characteristics:

» Ease of Us. Our interface solutions offer the ease of useiafuitive interaction that users dema

» Small SizeThe small, thin size of our interface solutionsi#asa our customers to reduce the overall size agighwof their products
in order to satisfy consumer demand for portabi

» Low Power Consumptic. The low power consumption of our interface solnsi enables our customers to offer products witlydo
battery life or smaller battery siz

» Advanced Functionalit. Our interface solutions offer advanced featusash as virtual scrolling, customizable tap zoedge
motion, and tapping and dragging icons, to enhasee experienct

» Reliability. The reliability of our interface solutions saisf consumer requirements for dependability, wisa major component
consumer satisfactiol

« Durability . Our interface solutions withstand repeated uaesthphysical treatment, and temperature fluctnatwhile providing a
superior level of performanc
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We believe these characteristics willld@ais to maintain our leadership position in tbeebook computer market and to enhance our
position as a technological enabler within the reggKor digital lifestyle products and other eleoic devices.

Our interface solutions are engineereautocustomer’s specifications, including featuaad functionality, industrial design,
mechanical, and electrical requirements. Our cugipducts also offer unique integration options|uding allowing our capacitive sensors
to be placed underneath the plastic of the dewibih allows for streamlined and stylized designsorporating LEDs to indicate status or
enhance industrial design, and incorporating &atidlicators, including ridges, Braille bumps, aextures designed to provide the user with
additional feedback.

Our emphasis on technological leaderahib customized-design capabilities positions ygdeide unique interface solutions that
address specific customer requirements. Our long-teorking relationships with large, global OEM®pide us with experience in satisfying
their demanding design specifications and othewirements. Our custom product solutions provide GElith numerous benefits, including
the following:

e customized, modular integratic

» reduced product development co:

» shorter product time to marke

« compact and efficient platform

« improved product functionality and utility; ai
e product differentiation

We work with our customers to customime solutions in order to meet their industrial desiequirements and to differentiate their
products from those of competitors. This collabieeffort reduces the duplication and overlapneieistment and resources, enabling our
OEM customers to devote more time and resourctdgetmarket development of their products.

We utilize capacitive technology rathwan resistive or mechanical technology in our pobdolutions. Unlike resistive and mechan
technology, our solid state capacitive technolaguires no moving parts or activation force, thgreffering a durable, more reliable solut
that can be integrated into both curved and fldiases. Capacitive technologies also allow for milhner sensors than resistive or
mechanical technology, providing for slimmer, mooenpact and unique industrial designs.

Products

Our family of product solutions allowsraustomers to solve their interface needs anémifftiate their products from those of their
competitors.

TouchPad

Our TouchPad, which takes the place acdexls the functionality of a mouse, is a smallckesensitive pad that senses the position of
a person’s finger on its surface through the meamsant of capacitance. Our TouchPad provides arrateswwomfortable, and reliable method
for screen navigation and cursor movement and gesva platform for interactive input. Our TouchRBatltions allow our customers to
provide stylish, simple, user-friendly, and intu@iinterface solutions for both the consumer anga@te markets. Our TouchPad solutions
offer various advanced features, including theofelhg:

» Virtual scrolling. This feature enables the user to scroll throughdamtyument by swiping a finger along the side otdrotof the
TouchPad
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« Customizable tap zoneBhese zones permit designated portions of the TRadho be used to simulate mouse clicks, launch
applications, and perform other selected functi

« PalmChecl™ . PalmCheck eliminates false activation when a p¢'s palm accidentally rests on the TouchF
+ EdgeMotior™  This feature permits cursor movement to continuemd use's finger reaches the edge of the Touchl

« Tapping and dragging of iconhis feature allows the user to simply tap and lwildin icon in order to drag it, rather than being
forced to hold a button down in order to drag ami

« Multi-finger gestures<This feature allows the user to designate speadimns when more than one finger is used on thefBad

Our TouchPad solutions are available waréety of sizes, electrical interfaces, and thiesses. Our TouchPad solutions are designed tc
meet the electrical and mechanical specificatidrmuo customers. Customized firmware and drivetveafe ensure the availability of
specialized features. As a result of their soladestharacteristics, our TouchPad solutions hawaaang parts that wear out, resulting in a
robust and reliable input solution that also alldarsunique industrial designs.

TouchStyk

Our TouchStyk is a proprietary pointintigls interface solution. TouchStyk is a setintained, easily integrated module that uses ai
capacitive technology as our TouchPad. TouchStgkébled with press-to-select and tagtiok capabilities and can be easily integrated
multiple computing and communications devices.dditon, our design greatly reduces susceptibititglectromagnetic interference, thereby
providing greater pointing accuracy and preventivgpointer from drifting when not in use.

We are currently shipping our TouchStykotebooks, portable multimedia players, and uttodile personal computers. Our modular
approach allows OEMs to include our TouchPad, muchStyk, or a combination of both interfaces iirtiproducts.

Dual Pointing Solution:

Our dual pointing solutions offer a Tokell with a pointing stick in a single notebook catep, enabling users to select their interface
of choice. Our dual pointing solution also providies end user the ability to use both interfacésr@mangeably. Our dual pointing solution
provides the following advantages:

» cos-effective and simplified OEM integratio

« simplified OEM product line because one device amrs both solutions

» single-source supplier, which eliminates compatibilityuiss; anc

« end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferenci

We have developed two solutions for ustaé dual pointing market. Our first solution igtates all the electronics for controlling a
third-party resistive strain gauge pointing stickaour TouchPad PCB. This solution simplifies Oitégration by eliminating the need to
procure the pointing stick electronics from anotbarty and physically integrate them into the notéb Our second dual pointing solution
uses our TouchStyk rather than a third-party pogqstick and offers the same simplified OEM int¢igra The second solution is a
completely modular design, allowing OEMs to offeni€hPad-only, TouchStyk-only, or dual pointing $i@s on a build-to-order basis.
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LuxPad

LuxPad is an innovative illuminated ToReld. The LuxPad is designed to allow our custonterdsfferentiate their products. The
LuxPad can either light up the entire touchpadtligp a logo in the center of the TouchPad, ortlighdesignated “virtual buttons” on the
TouchPad, depending on the preference of the nokethesigner.

Dual Mode TouchPa

Dual Mode TouchPad is designed to tramsfine TouchPad from a cursor control device taumth and control center with the touch
of a button. In default mode, the Dual Mode progidarsor control for on screen navigation as adstahTouchPad. When the user taps on a
launch icon located on the TouchPad surface, idlumsinate on the TouchPad surface.

The Dual Mode offers a variety of custeation options to the OEM, including tap zonesl&nching applications and multimedia
controls, scrolling zones to adjust volume, andgprmmable buttons so end users can choose whidieatpm they would like to launch
through our Dual Mode driver. To regain cursor colnthe user simply taps the mode switch buttash the illuminated icons disappear,
allowing the user to control the cursor for on-scr@avigation. The Dual Mode TouchPad is curresttipping in Medion and Toshiba
notebooks.

QuickStroke

QuickStroke provides a fast, easy, ardiate way to input Chinese characters. Using @cognition technology that combines our
patented software with our TouchPad, QuickStrokereaognize handwritten, partially finished Chinebaracters, thereby saving
considerable time and effort. Our QuickStroke ofgeravith our touch pad products that can be intedrinto notebook computers, keyboa
and a host of stand-alone interface devices thaeiiker a pen or a finger.

Our patented Incremental Recognition Tiedbgy allows users to simply enter the first fevokes of a Chinese character and
QuickStroke accurately interprets the intended attar. Since the typical Chinese character consisia average of 13 strokes, QuickStroke
technology saves considerable time and effort. Weport different alphabets or characters to odetlging pattern recognition engine,
allowing us to offer support for different language

TouchRing

Our TouchRing is an integrated, solidestrolling wheel utilizing our capacitive touansing technology that enables the user to
navigate through menus and scroll through lists. TwchRing is utilized in MP3 players, personaldiaeplayers, and remote controls
enabling the user to navigate efficiently througenos and scroll through extensive play lists amyso

ScrollStrip

ScrollStrip is a one-dimensional TouchBwt provides a simple and intuitive way for ugerscroll through menus, navigate through
content, and adjust controls. A ScrollStrip carubed in a wide variety of applications that reqaittin, robust, accurate, and easy-to-use
input and navigation device, including PC peripkersuch as keyboards and mice, and digital lifegtyoducts. ScrollStrip is thin,
lightweight, and flexible and can be mounted orvedrsurfaces to meet the industrial design needsio©EM customers. Currently, the
ScrollStrip is incorporated into a number of desidacluding MP3 players, PC keyboards, and contputee.

LightTouch

LightTouch is a simple, easy to use,istyinterface solution that replaces mechanicabibgtwith an illuminated sensor programme
perform functions, such as multimedia controls|udig pause, play, fast-forward, and rewind. Lighich is designed for integration under
the plastic face of a device, allowing for a seathoh design that is both stylish and durable.r€utly, a number of custom LightTouch
solutions are available in the market, includingtimedia controls for notebook PCs, a multimedigd@ard, and as button controls for MP3
players.
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MobileTouch

MobileTouch is a new product solutionafieally designed for the mobile phone environmtirat combines our expertise in ease of
use with our technology capabilities. The resuttiistom designed modules that can combine ourlisgroselection, and navigation
capabilities into a simple, easy to use interfaat®on that improves access to mobile phone cdrerd applications. Our MobileTouch
solutions are currently shipping in Samsung andd®din& Curitel mobile phone designs in Korea.

ClearPad

ClearPad consists of a clear, thin cdpa&csensor that can be placed over any viewabfaa, including display devices, such as
LCDs. Similar to our traditional TouchPad, our CRad has various distinct advantages, includintg hgeight; low profile form factor; high
reliability, durability, and accuracy; and low pawansumption. ClearPad, can be mounted on or undged surfaces, providing for unique
and sleek industrial designs.

NavPoint

The NavPoint solution offers users img@¥unctionality and versatility in accessing anahnaging content in handheld devices thrc
unique navigation controls, including short- andgedistance scrolling features, tapping, and mdiksecursor navigation. Our NavPoint
interface solution has been used in a PDA.

Technologies

We have developed and own an extensiay &f technologies encompassing ASICs, firmwanéwsare, pattern recognition, and tot
sensing technologies. With 81 U.S. patents issndda U.S. patents pending, including many non-doBnterparts, we continue to develop
technology in these areas. We believe these teabiesl and the related intellectual property créateiers for competitors and allow us to
provide interface solutions in a variety of higlogth market segments.

Our broad line of interface solutionsrently is based upon the following key technologies
» capacitive position sensing technolo
» capacitive force sensing technolor
e transparent capacitive position sensing technol
e pattern recognition technolog
« mixed signal, very large scale integrated cirauityLSlI, technology; an
« proprietary microcontroller technolog

In addition to these technologies, wedligw firmware and driver software that we incorperato our products, which provide unique
features, such as virtual scrolling, customizabfezones, PalmCheck, EdgeMotion, and tapping aaghirg of icons. In addition, our ability
to integrate all of our products to interface withjor operating systems, including Windows 98, Wind 2000, Windows NT, Windows CE,
Windows XP, Windows ME, Mac OS, Pocket PC, Palm S8nbian, UNIX, and LINUX, provides us with a contiiee advantage.

Capacitive Position Sensing Technolog@kis technology provides a method for sensing tlesgnce, position, and contact area of one
or more fingers or a conductive stylus on a flatunved surface, such as our TouchPad, TouchRimtySarollStrip. Our technology works
with very light touch and provides highly resporseursor navigation, scrolling, and selection sksino moving parts, can be implemented
under plastic, and is extremely durable.

Capacitive Force Sensing Technologiis technology senses the direction and magnisdideforce applied to an object. The object
can either move when force is applied, like a ttpjoystick used for gaming
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applications, or it can be isometric, with no pgtdale motion during use, like our TouchStyk. Thermary competition for this technology is
resistive strain gauge technology. Resistive smaimge technology requires electronics that caseseary small changes in resistance,
presenting challenges to the design of that cinguimcluding sensitivity to electrical noise amdérference. Our electronic circuitry
determines the magnitude and direction of an agitiece, permits very accurate sensing of tiny gearin capacitance, and minimizes
electrical interference from other sources.

Transparent Capacitive Position Sensing Technol®is technology allows us to build transparent senfor use with our capacitive
position sensing technology, such as in our ClarR#as all the advantages of our capacitivetprssensing technology and allows for
visual feedback when incorporated with a displayiais such as an LCD. Our technology does not requdlibration, does not produce
undesirable internal reflections, and has reduoeep requirements, allowing for longer battery.life

Pattern Recognition Technologihis technology is a set of software algorithms geathniques for converting real-world data, such as
handwriting, into a digital form that can be recizgd and manipulated within a computer, such afQuickStroke product and gesture
decoding for our TouchPad products. Our technofwrgyides reliable handwriting recognition and caruised in other applications such as
signature verification.

Mixed Signal VLSI Technologyhis hybrid analogdigital integrated circuit technology combines pmver of digital computation wit
the ability to interface with non-digital, real-wdrsignals, such as the position of a finger olustpn a surface. Our patented design
techniques permit us to utilize this technologpptimize our core ASIC engine for all our products.

Proprietary Microcontroller Technologylhis technology consists of a proprietary 16-bitracontroller core embedded in the digital
portion of our mixed signal ASIC, which allows wsdptimize our ASIC for position sensing tasks. ®@uwbedded microcontroller provides
great flexibility in customizing our product solaitis utilizing firmware, which eliminates the neediesign new circuitry for each new
application.

Competing Technology

Many interface solutions currently utlizesistive sensing technology. Resistive sensidgnology consists of a flexible membrane
above a flat, rigid, electrically conductive sudadVhen finger or stylus pressure is applied tontleenbrane, it deforms until it makes contact
with the rigid layer below, at which point attacheldctronics can determine the position of thedimgy stylus. Since the flexible membrane is
a moving part, it is susceptible to mechanical veeat will eventually suffer degraded performanceeo the way that resistive position
sensors work, it is not possible for them to detecte than a single finger or stylus at any giveret The positional accuracy of a resistive
sensor is limited by the uniformity of the resistiwoating as well as by the mechanics of the flexitembrane. Finally, implementations of
resistive technology over display devices, sucarasCD, result in reduced transmissivity, or theoant of light that can pass through the
display, requiring the use of backlighting and éisrreducing the battery life of the device.

Research and Development

We conduct ongoing research and developpregrams that focus on advancing our technofgieveloping new products, improvi
design and manufacturing processes, and enhari@nguiality and performance of our product soluti@hsr goal is to provide our customers
with innovative solutions that address their negul$ improve their competitive positions. Our reshand development is focused on
advancing our existing interface technologies, irprg our current product solutions, and expandingtechnologies to serve new markets.
Our vision is to develop interface solutions, sashouch, handwriting, vision, and voice capalke#ifithat can be readily incorporated into
varied electronic devices.

Our research and development programssfoa the development of accurate, easy to useblesl and intuitive user interfaces for
electronic devices. We believe our innovative ifiee technologies can be applied to many diversdyats. We believe the interface is a key
factor in the differentiation of these products. Wétieve that our interface technologies enabl®ysovide customers with product solutions
that have significant advantages over alternate@riologies in terms of functionality, size, powensumption, durability, and reliability. W
also intend to pursue strategic relationships aggigitions to enhance our research and
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development capabilities, leverage our technolagg, shorten our time to market with new technolalgipplications.

Our research, design, and engineeringgdaequently work directly with our customers &sijn custom solutions for specific
applications. We focus on enabling our customers/eycome technical barriers and enhance the peafoce of their products. We believe
our engineering know-how and electronic systeme#ige provide significant benefits to our custosigy enabling them to concentrate on
their core competencies of production and marketing

As of June 30, 2006, we employed 145 [eeimpour technology, engineering, and productgiesiinctions in the United States, the
United Kingdom, Taiwan, and Hong Kong. Our reseancti development expenses were approximately $ailidn, $25.0 million, and
$35.4 million in fiscal 2004, 2005, and 2006, regtjwely.

Intellectual Property Rights

Our success and ability to compete dejreipart on our ability to maintain the propriet@spects of our technologies and products
rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, traderets, trademarks, confidentiality agreemenis ather contractual provisions to protect
our intellectual property, but these measures mayige only limited protection. Our research, designd engineering teams frequently work
directly with our OEM customers to design custorusons for specific applications.

As of June 30, 2006, we held 81 U.S.matand had 55 U.S. pending patent applicatiorfjding many non-U.S. counterparts to the
U.S. patents and U.S. pending patent applicatiGobectively, these patents and patent applicataover various aspects of our key
technologies, including touch sensing, pen sensiagdwriting recognition, customizable tap zonegeemotion, and virtual scrolling
technologies. Our proprietary software is protedtgdopyright laws. The source code for our prapriesoftware is also protected under
applicable trade secret laws.

Our extensive array of technologies idel ASICs, firmware, software, and pattern recagmiand position sensing technologies. Our
products rely on a combination of these technokgigaking it difficult to use any single technolagg/the basis for replicating our products.
Furthermore, the length and customization of tretamer design cycle serve to protect our intell@gmoperty rights.

Patent applications that we have filedhaw file in the future may not result in a pateeing issued. Our issued patents may be
challenged, invalidated, or circumvented, and cta@hour patents may not be of sufficient scopstangth, or issued in the proper
geographic regions, to provide meaningful protectio any commercial advantage. We have not apfdiecnd do not have, any copyright
registration on our technologies or products. Weetegpplied to register certain of our trademarkheUnited States and other countries.
There can be no assurance that we will obtain tregiiens of trademarks in key markets. Failurelttam registrations could compromise our
ability to protect fully our trademarks and brarael could increase the risk of challenge from thadies to our use of our trademarks and
brands. In addition, our failure to enforce andi@coour intellectual property rights or obtainrfrehird parties the right to use necessary
technology could have a material adverse effeawrbusiness, financial condition, and resultspdrations.

We do not consistently rely on writtemements with our customers, suppliers, manufactuaed other recipients of our technologies
and products, and therefore some trade secretgtimtanay be lost and our ability to enforce ouellectual property rights may be limited.
Furthermore, our customers, suppliers, manufactpesrd other recipients of our technologies andyxts may seek to use our technologies
and products without appropriate limitations. la fhast, we did not consistently require our empgsyend consultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements, employment agreememtgroprietary information and invention agreemefmtserefore, our former employees
and consultants may try to claim some ownershgr@st in our technologies and products and maypustechnologies and products
competitively and without appropriate limitations.

Other companies, including our competitonay develop technologies that are similar oegopto our technologies, duplicate our
technologies, or design around our patents andiraag or obtain patents or other proprietary righés would prevent, limit, or interfere wi
our ability to make, use, or sell our products e€five intellectual property protection may be waikable or limited in some foreign countries
in which we operate, such as
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China and Taiwan. Unauthorized parties may attémpbpy or otherwise use aspects of our technasogyiel products that we regard as
proprietary. There can be no assurance that ounsn&fgorotecting our proprietary rights in the @aitStates or abroad will be adequate or
that competitors will not independently develop isamtechnologies. If our intellectual property eotion is insufficient to protect our
intellectual property rights, we could face inciehsompetition in the market for our technologied products.

We may receive notices from third parttest claim our products infringe their rights. fréime to time, we receive notice from third
parties of the intellectual property rights sucltiga have obtained. We cannot be certain thatemimologies and products do not and will
not infringe issued patents or other proprietaghts of third parties. Any infringement claims, kvr without merit, could result in significe
litigation costs and diversion of resources, inglgdhe payment of damages, which could have anmahtelverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Customers

Our customers include many of the worldigest PC OEMs, based on unit shipments, asagedl variety of consumer electronics
manufacturers. Our demonstrated track record dintelogical leadership, design innovation, prodwfgrmance, cost effectiveness, and on-
time delivery have resulted in our leadership pasiin providing interface solutions to the notekaoarket. We believe our strong
relationship with our OEM customers, many of whick currently developing digital lifestyle produatsll position us as a source of supply
for their product offerings.

In fiscal 2006, our OEM customers inclddiee following:
. Acer
. Asustek

. Creative Lab:

. Dell
. ECS
. Fujitsu

. Gateway

. Hewlet-Packarc

. IBM

. Lenovo
. NEC

. Philips

. Samsung
. Toshiba

We generally supply products to our OBEMtomers through their contract manufacturers. ®leosir products directly to these
contract manufacturers, which include Compal, IngenKangzhun Electronical, Lenovo, Sincere Joy, \Afistron. Sales to Inventec and
Wistron in the aggregate accounted for approxirge&ébb6 of our net revenue in fiscal 2006, and seldaventec accounted for approxima
34% of our net revenue in fiscal 2005. No othet@ugr accounted for more than 10% of our net regeaturing either fiscal 2005 or 2006.

We consider both the OEMs and their amitmanufacturers to be our customers. In mosscéise OEMs determine the design and
pricing requirements and make the overall decisémarding the use of our interface solutions inrtheoducts. Their contract manufacturers
place orders with us for the purchase of our prtgjuake title to the products purchased upon sbéiray us, and pay us directly for those
purchases. These customers have no return prigileeept for warranty provisions.

Strategic Relationships

We have used strategic relationshipsitaace our ability to offer valuedded customer solutions in the past and we irtteedter intc
additional strategic relationships with compantest tnay help us serve our target markets.
Sales and Marketing

We sell our product solutions for incargion into the products of our OEM customers. \¥regate sales through direct sales
employees as well as outside sales representatigbdistributors. Our sales personnel receive anbat technical assistance and support
from our internal engineering resources becauskeeoifiighly technical nature of our product solusio8ales frequently result from multi-level
sales efforts that involve senior
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management, design engineers, and our sales petsotaracting with our customers’ decision makérsughout the product development
and order process.

We currently employ 51 sales and markggirofessionals. We maintain seven customer sujgiices domestically and
internationally, which are located in the Unitedt8s, the United Kingdom, Taiwan, Japan, China,Holy Kong. In addition, we utilize
sales representatives in Singapore, Malaysia, Kamgh Europe and sales distributors in Japan.

International sales, primarily in the &siand European markets, constituted approximagsy, 98%, and 98% of our revenue in fiscal
2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively. A significamtipn of these sales were made to companies ldéat€hina and Taiwan that provide
manufacturing services for major notebook compatet digital lifestyle product OEMs. All of thesdesmswere denominated in U.S. dollars.

Manufacturing

We employ a virtual manufacturing platfothrough third-party relationships. We currenttifize two semiconductor wafer
manufacturers to supply us with silicon wafers gné&ting our proprietary design specifications. Thepleted silicon wafers are forwarded to
third-party package and test processors for further geeg into die and packaged ASICs, as applicaltiégiware then utilized in our custt
interface products.

After processing and testing, the die ASHICs are consigned to various subcontractoraseembly. During the assembly process, our
die or ASIC is combined with other components tmptete the module for our custom interface solutidme finished assembled product is
subsequently shipped by our subcontractors diréathur customers for integration into their proguc

We believe our virtual manufacturing sty provides a scalable business model; enablesamncentrate on our core competencies of
research and development, technological advanndpraduct design; and reduces our capital expemdit In addition, this strategy
significantly reduces our working capital requirertsefor inventory because we do not incur mostusfroanufacturing costs until we have
actually shipped our interface products to our@uglrs and billed those customers for those products

Our third-party manufacturers are Asiasdd organizations. We provide our manufacturimgsntractors with six-month rolling
forecasts of our production requirements. We do Immtvever, have long-term agreements with any ohoanufacturing subcontractors that
guarantee production capacity, prices, lead timedglivery schedules. The strategy of relying luwse parties exposes us to vulnerability
owing to our dependence on few sources of supplbalieve, however, that other sources of supm@yaaailable. In addition, we may
establish relationships with other manufacturingcsuntractors in order to reduce our dependencepoe source of supply.

Periodically, we purchase inventory froar subcontractors when a customer’s delivery sdleed delayed or a customer’s order is
cancelled. In those circumstances in which ouraust has cancelled its order and we purchase iosefrom our subcontractors, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying valithe inventory purchased to its net realizable&aWrite-downs to reduce the carrying
value of obsolete, slow moving, and non-usablento to net realizable value are charged to cbhet\@nue.

Backlog

As of June 30, 2006, we had a backlogrdérs of approximately $28.7 million, an increa§83.3 million compared with our backlog
of orders as of June 30, 2005 of approximately 42llion. The increase in backlog is primarilyatgd to the increase in demand for our
products. Our backlog consists of product ordersviiich purchase orders have been received anchvelnegenerally scheduled for shipir
within three months. Most orders are subject tahreduling or cancellation with limited penaltie®dause of the possibility of customer
changes in product shipments, our backlog as aftcplar date may not be indicative of net satesahy succeeding period.
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Competition

Our principal competitor in the sale otebook touch pads is Alps Electric, a Japanesglaorerate. Our principal competitors in the
sale of notebook pointing sticks are Alps ElectNd)B, and CTS. In the markets for digital lifestyleoducts, and other electronic devices,
our competitors include Alps Electric, Panasoniange, Interlink, Cypress, Quantum Technology Manag®, and various other companies
involved in user interface solutions. In certaises, large OEMs may develop alternative interfabatisns for their own products or provide
key components for use in designing interface gwist

In the notebook interface market we gtanontinue to compete primarily on the basis afteahnological expertise, design innovation,
customer service, and the long track record ofguarance of our interface solutions, including thezise of use, reliability, and cost-
effectiveness as well as their timely design, potidn, and delivery schedules. Our pointing stigkusons, including our proprietary
TouchStyk, enable us to address the approximatef4fie notebook computer market that uses solelyimting stick rather than a touch pad
as the user interface as well as the approxime¥e dfthe notebook market that uses dual pointitgrfaces. Our ability to supply OEMs w
TouchPads, TouchStyks, and dual pointing altereatenhances our market position as we can proviedsdvith the following advantages:

» single source supplier to eliminate compatibilggues

» cos-effective and simplified integratiol

» simplified product line to address both interfaceferences

« end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferences; ¢

« modular approach allowing OEMs to utilize our ToReak, our TouchStyk, or a combination of both irstees

In the interface markets for digital fifgle products and other electronic devices, wepaimprimarily based on the advantages of our
systems knowledge of capacitive sensing and neattdrn recognition technologies. We believe olutgns based engineering expertise
coupled with our technologies offer benefits imisrof size, power consumption, durability, liglartsmissivity, resolution, ease of use, and
reliability when compared to our competitors angeottechnologies. While these markets continuezedve and we do not know what the
competitive factors will ultimately be, we beliewe are positioned to compete aggressively forlihsness based on our proven track rec
our marquee global customer base, and our repatitialesign innovation. However, some of our cofitpes have greater market
recognition, larger customer bases, and substingaater financial, technical, marketing, distiion, and other resources than we possess
that afford them potential competitive advantagesa result, they may be able to introduce new pebdolutions and respond to customer
requirements more quickly than we can. In additraw competitors, alliances among competitors|l@anges among competitors and OEMs
may emerge and allow competitors to rapidly acgsiigaificant market share.

Furthermore, our competitors or our costrs may develop technologies in the future thatenedfectively address the interface needs
of the notebook market and other markets. Our sptefitability, and success depend on our abititzompete with other suppliers of
interface solutions and components used in interfatutions. Our competitive position could be adely affected if one or more of our
current OEMs reduce their orders or if we are umabldevelop new customers for our interface swhsti

Employees

As of June 30, 2006, we employed a tot&54 persons, including 58 in finance, admintstrg and operations; 51 in sales and
marketing; and 145 in research and developmenth&3fe employees, 184 were located in North Amedi8an Asia/Pacific, and 22 in
Europe. We consider our relationship with our erpés to be good, and none of our employees aresemied by a union in collective
bargaining with us.
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Competition for qualified personnel inr dndustry is extremely intense, particularly foigeneering and other technical personnel. Our
success depends on our continued ability to attinéret, and retain qualified personnel.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certaifoirmation regarding our executive officers:

Name Age Position

Francis F. Let 54  President, Chief Executive Officer, and Direc

Thomas J. Tierna 43  Senior Vice President and General Mang

Russell J. Knittel 56  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, €f\dministrative Officer, Secretary,
and Treasure|

Shawn P. Day, Ph.L 40 Vice President of Research and Developn

Thomas D. Spad 40 Vice President of Worldwide Sal

William T. Stacy, Ph.D 64  Vice President of Operatiol

Clark F. Foy 42  Vice President of Marketin

Francis F. Leenhas served as a director and the President and Exeeutive Officer of our company since Decemb@98. He was a
consultant from August 1998 to November 1998. Fiday 1995 until July 1998, Mr. Lee served as Genktahager of NSM, a Hong Kong-
based joint venture between National Semicondu@twporation and S. Megga. Mr. Lee held a varietgxacutive positions for National
Semiconductor from 1988 until August 1995. Thessitmmns included Vice President of Communicatiod &omputing Group, Vice
President of Quality and Reliability, Director afaidard Logic Business Unit, and various other ajj@ns and engineering management
positions. Mr. Lee is a director of Foveon, Incprivately held company in which we have an ownigrgfterest. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of
Science degree, with honors, in electrical engingdrom the University of California at Davis.

Thomas J. Tiernahas been Senior Vice President and General Mamd@er company since March 2006. Prior to joining o
company, Mr. Tiernan served as Vice President agne@l Manager of Symbol Technologies’ Mobile CotmmuDivision. From 1985 to
2004, Mr. Tiernan held various management and dixecpositions at Hewlett-Packard, including rurmthe Network Storage business in
the Americas, the Enterprise Systems businessianPacific, and the PC business in Japan. Mr. &ietmolds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Electrical Engineering from California State Pobtfaic University and a Masters of Science in Coraplingineering from Santa Clara
University.

Russell J. Knittehas been Senior Vice President, Chief Financiak®ff Chief Administrative Officer, Secretary, aficasurer of our
company since November 2001. He served as theRfiegident of Administration and Finance, Chief Ririal Officer, and Secretary of our
company from April 2000 until October 2001. Mr. kel served as Vice President and Chief Financftit€ of Probe Technology
Corporation from May 1999 to March 2000. He wa®astiltant from January 1999 until April 1999. MmiKel was Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer at Starlight Networks frddovember 1994 to December 1998. Mr. Knittel hold&aghelor of Arts degree in
accounting from California State University at lealbn and a Masters of Business Administration fen Jose State University.

Shawn P. Day, Ph.Dhas been the Vice President of Research and Dewelupof our company since June 1998. He servelteas t
Director of Software Development of our companyrirdlovember 1996 until May 1998 and as principalvgaffe engineer from August 19
until October 1996. Mr. Day holds a Bachelor ofé®cie degree and a Doctorate, both in electricahergng, from the University of British
Columbia in Vancouver, Canada.
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Thomas D. Spadeas been the Vice President of Worldwide Salesiotompany since July 1999. From May 1998 untileJu@99, he
served as our Director of Sales. From May 1994 émtil 1998, Mr. Spade was the Director of Intetinaal Sales for Alliance
Semiconductor. Mr. Spade previously has held aatthii sales and management positions at Alliancac®ahuctor, Anthem Electronics,
Arrow Electronics, and Andersen Consulting. Mr. &&olds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economicsraadagement from Albion College.

William T. Stacy, Ph.Chas been the Vice President of Operations of ompemy since October 2001. From August 1992 to 2004,
Mr. Stacy held a number of business managementigresin the Data Management and Analog Groupsatfddal Semiconductor. Most
recently, from April 1999 until June 2001, he wasé/President of the Wireless Division. Prior tmjog National Semiconductor, he held a
series of operational and business managemeniquasit Philips Semiconductors. He started hisararePhilips Research Laboratories in
Eindhoven, where he worked on magnetic and semiaziimd) device structures. Mr. Stacy holds a Baahel&cience degree in physics and
mathematics from Oregon State University and a 8asind Ph.D. degree in physics from the Univeritylinois.

Clark F. Foyhas been Vice President of Marketing of our compsinge February 2003. Mr. Foy was the Vice PregidéRroduct
Marketing for the Optical Storage Group of Oak Treabgy, Inc. from January 2002 to February 2003. Ry served as Vice President of
Marketing at Gadzoox Networks, a provider of netdmy infrastructure products from June 2000 to day2002. Mr. Foy has also held
various management positions at Quantum CorporatioshCompaq Computer Corporation. Mr. Foy holdsah@lor's Degree in Business
Administration from Miami University and a Mast@sManagement from Northwestern University’s KeljoGraduate School of
Management.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the followingfars, together with all the other information untéd in this report, in evaluating our
company and our business.

We currently depend on our TouchPad and TouchStyk pducts, and the notebook computer market, for a gjnificant portion of our
revenue, and a downturn in these products or marketould have a disproportionate impact on our revene.

Historically, we have derived a substantiatipo of our revenue from the sale of our TouchBad TouchStyk products for notebook
computers. While our longerm objective is to derive revenue from multipieerface solutions for both the notebook computarket and th
markets for digital lifestyle products and othexattonic devices, we anticipate that sales of aurchPads and TouchStyks for notebooks
continue to represent a significant portion of mwenue. The PC market as a whole has experienslesvdown in the rate of growth. A
continued or accelerated softening in the demaridemotebook portion of the PC market or the Iefelur participation in that market wol
cause our business, financial condition, and resiilbperations to suffer more than they would hawe offered a more diversified line of
products.

Sales of our interface solutions for digital lifestle products have been volatile in the past two yes and we cannot assure you that our
net revenue from our interface solutions for digita lifestyle products will increase or be less volde in the future.

Sales of our interface solutions for digiteddtyle products have been volatile in the past. 8&nnot assure you that our net revenue from
our interface solutions for digital lifestyle praxta will increase or be less volatile in the futuBales of our interface solutions for digital
lifestyle products were $85.3 million, or 41% oframet revenue, in fiscal 2005 and $27.0 million16%6 of our net revenue, in fiscal 2006.
Further, our interface business for digital liféstgroducts faces many uncertainties. Our inabititpddress these uncertainties successfully
and to become a leading supplier of interfaceglifgital lifestyle products would result in a slowgrmowth rate than we currently anticipate.
We do not know whether our user interface solutfonghe digital lifestyle product market will gamarket acceptance or will ever result in a
substantial portion of our revenue on a considtests. The failure to succeed in these other masketild result in no return on the
substantial investments we have made to date amdtpimake in the future to penetrate these markets

We cannot assure you that our interface businessrfdigital lifestyle products will be successful othat we will be able to generate
significant revenue from the markets for digital lifestyle products.

Various target markets for our interfaceshsas those for PDAs, smart phones, smart handleeidet, and interactive games and toys
uncertain, may develop slower than anticipatedootd utilize competing technologies. The marketdertain of these products depends in
part upon the development and deployment of wisedesl other technologies, which may or may notestdthe needs of users of these new
products.

Our ability to generate significant revenuanirthe markets for digital lifestyle products anldes electronic devices will depend on vari
factors, including the following:

» the development and growth of these mark

« the ability of our technologies and product solut to address the needs of these markets, theeetwents of OEMs, and the
preferences of end users; ¢

« our ability to provide OEMs with interface solutmthat provide advantages in terms of size, powssumption, reliability, durability
performance, and val-added features compared to alternative solut

Many manufacturers of these products have-estfiblished relationships with competitive suppli®enetrating these markets will reqt
us to offer better performance alternatives totedssolutions at competitive costs. We generatlyndt have a significant backlog of orders
for our interface solutions to be incorporated fiaducts in these markets. The failure of any of¢htarget markets to develop as we expe
our failure to
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penetrate these markets to a significant extefiitimpede our anticipated sales growth and coutdiiten substantially reduced earnings from
those we anticipate. We cannot predict the sizgrawth rate of these markets or the market shareiachieve in these markets in the
future.

Our historical financial performance is based on skes of interface solutions to the notebook computenarket and may not be
indicative of our future performance in other markets.

Our historical financial performance primanisflects the sale of interface solutions for no@bcomputers. While we expect sales of our
interface solutions for notebook computers to carito generate a substantial percentage of oanuey we expect to derive a substantial
portion of our revenue from sales of our produdtitiens from digital lifestyle products, includinmprtable digital music players, and other
electronic devices. We have a limited operatingpysin these markets upon which you can evaluatgpoospects, which may make it
difficult to predict our actual results in futurenpds. Actual results of our future operations rddfer materially from our anticipated results.

Market acceptance of our customers’ existing or neyproducts that utilize our interface solution may dcline or may not develop and,
as a result, our sales may decline or may not incase.

We do not sell any products to end userseatstwe design various interface solutions thatQftiM customers incorporate into their
products. As a result, our success depends almtistlg upon the widespread market acceptance oO&M customersproducts. We do n¢
control or influence the manufacture, promotiomstrithution, or pricing of the products that incorgi@ our interface solutions. Instead, we
depend on our customers to manufacture and digdrifmoducts incorporating our interface solutiond g0 generate consumer demand
through marketing and promotional activities. E¥fesur technologies successfully meet our custofrenise and performance goals, our s
would decline or fail to develop if our customersrbt achieve commercial success in selling theidpcts that incorporate our interface
solutions.

Competitive advances by OEMs in the PC ortdidifestyle product markets, which do not utiliaer interface solutions broadly in their
product offerings, at the expense of our other Qdtigtomers could result in lost sales opportunitiéghin the digital lifestyle product
market, the portable digital music player markebdlas become an important factor in our operaénglts. Any significant slowdown in the
use of our interface solutions by our customethig market, the reduced demand for our custonpeogiucts, or a slowdown in this market
would adversely affect our sales.

If we fail to maintain and build relationships with our customers and do not continue to satisfy ourustomers, we may lose future sale
and our revenue may stagnate or decline.

Because our success depends on the widespieidt acceptance of our customers’ products, wa gantinue to maintain our
relationships with the leading notebook computet paortable digital music player OEMs. In additisre must identify areas of significant
growth potential in other markets, establish relahips with OEMs in those markets, and assisetl@EMs in developing products that use
our interface technologies. Our failure to idenfpifytential growth opportunities, particularly inmenarkets, or establish and maintain
relationships with OEMs in those markets, wouldvpré our business from growing in those markets.

Our ability to meet the expectations of oustomers requires us to provide innovative interfsalations for customers on a timely and
cost-effective basis and to maintain customer fsati®n with our interface solutions. We must madei design and production capacity with
customer demand, maintain satisfactory delivergedates, and meet performance goals. If we are ariatdchieve these goals for any res
our customers could reduce their purchases froemdsour sales would decline or fail to develop.

Our customer relationships also can be aftelyefactors affecting our customers that are abeel to our performance. These factors can
include a myriad of situations, including businesgersals of customers, determinations by custotnerbange their product mix or abandon
business segments, or mergers, consolidationggaisations involving our customers, such as thalgioation of Compaq and Hewlett-
Packard or the acquisition of IBM’s PC businesg byiLenovo.
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Two customers accounted for an aggregate of 24% ofir sales in fiscal 2006, and the loss of salesth@se customers could harm our
business, financial condition, and results of opet@ns.

Sales to two customers that provide contraatufacturing services to major OEMs accounted floaggregate of 24% of our net revenue
during the fiscal ended June 30, 2006, and on®estaccounted for an aggregate of 34% of ourenetrue during the fiscal ended June 30,
2005. These customers are Inventec and Wistrosdalf2006 and Inventec in fiscal 2005. Additiopateceivables from each of Compal,
Wistron, and Kangzhun Electronical exceeded 10%cobunts receivable and in the aggregate represé@gé of accounts receivable at
June 30, 2006.

Compal, Inventec, Kangzhun Electronical, andtn are contract manufacturers that serve owl@&stomers. Any material delay,
cancellation, or reduction of orders from any onenore of these contract manufacturers or the Offldg serve could harm our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. Bdeerse effect would be more substantial if ohebtustomers in the notebook computer
industry do not increase their orders or if wewmsuccessful in generating orders for interfacatgmnis in the markets for digital lifestyle
products and other electronic devices, from exgstinnew customers. Many of these contract manurfexg sell to the same OEMs, and
therefore our concentration with certain OEMs mayhigher than with any individual contract manuiiaet. Concentration in our customer
base may make fluctuations in revenue and earmmgge severe and make business planning more difficu

Our revenue may decline if customers for which wera sole source providers seek alternative source§supply.

We serve as the sole source provider for soioeir OEM customers. Those customers may choomstace their dependence on us by
seeking second sources of supply, which could reduc revenue. To remain a sole source providemus continue to demonstrate to our
customers that we have adequate alternate souncesrfiponents, that we maintain adequate alteemfiwr production, and that we can
deliver value added products on a timely basis.

We rely on others for our production and any interruptions of these arrangements could disrupt our altity to fill our customers’
orders.

We utilize subcontractors for all of our pratian requirements. The majority of our manufactgris conducted in China, Hong Kong,
Thailand, and Taiwan by manufacturing subcontractioat also perform services for numerous othempaones. We do not have a guaranteed
level of production capacity with any of our subtrantors. Qualifying new manufacturing subcontresitand specifically semiconductor
foundries, is time consuming and might result ifoseseen manufacturing and operations problemslddseof our relationships with our
manufacturing subcontractors or assemblers or ithalility to conduct their manufacturing and asbbnservices for us as anticipated in
terms of cost, quality, and timeliness could adelgraffect our ability to fill customer orders ie@rdance with required delivery, quality, ¢
performance requirements. If this were to occuwe,rsulting decline in revenue would harm our bessn

We depend on third parties to maintain satisfactorymanufacturing yields and delivery schedules, ancheir inability to do so could
increase our costs, disrupt our supply chain, andasult in our inability to deliver our products, which would adversely affect our
results of operations.

We depend on our manufacturing subcontra¢tonsaintain high levels of productivity and satcitary delivery schedules at
manufacturing and assembly facilities located prilyén China, Hong Kong, Thailand, and Taiwan. \Wevide our manufacturing
subcontractors with six-month rolling forecastaf production requirements. We do not, howeverehang-term agreements with any of
our manufacturing subcontractors that guarantegyaton capacity, prices, lead times, or delivartyexiules. Our manufacturing
subcontractors serve other customers, a numbehichvihave greater production requirements thanavedd a result, our manufacturing
subcontractors could determine to prioritize prdituccapacity for other customers or reduce or ielate deliveries to us on short notice. At
times, we have experienced lower than anticipatedufacturing yields and lengthening of deliveryesiiies. Lower than expected
manufacturing yields could increase our costs siught our supplies. We may encounter lower manufaug yields and longer delivery
schedules in commencing

17




Table of Contents

volume production of our new products. Any of thpsgblems could result in our inability to deliveur product solutions in a timely manner
and adversely affect our operating results.

Shortages of components and materials may delay oeduce our sales and increase our costs, therebyra@ng our results of
operations.

The inability to obtain sufficient quantitie§ components and other materials necessary fgpribdduction of our products could result in
reduced or delayed sales or lost orders. Any delay loss of sales could adversely impact our afireg results. Many of the materials use
the production of our products are available onbyrf a limited number of foreign suppliers, partanlyf suppliers located in Asia. In most
cases, neither we nor our manufacturing subcomiratiave long-term supply contracts with these keigp As a result, we are subject to
economic instability in these Asian countries all @®to increased costs, supply interruptions, diffctulties in obtaining materials. Our
customers also may encounter difficulties or insegbcosts in obtaining the materials necessaryotiuge their products into which our
product solutions are incorporated.

From time to time, materials and componenésius our product solutions or in other aspectsusfcustomers’ products have been subject
to allocation because of shortages of these migena components. Shortages in the future couldecdelayed shipments, customer
dissatisfaction, and lower revenue.

We are subject to lengthy development periods andrpduct acceptance cycles, which can result in devigiment and engineering costs
without any future revenue.

We provide interface solutions that are incogped by OEMSs into the products they sell. OEM&arthe determination during their
product development programs whether to incorparaténterface solutions or pursue other altermastivi his process requires us to make
significant investments of time and resources exdhstom design of interface solutions well befmre customers introduce their products
incorporating these interfaces and before we casubzthat we will generate any significant satesur customers or even recover our
investment. During a customer’s entire product tgyment process, we face the risk that our intesasill fail to meet our customer’s
technical, performance, or cost requirements drahaproducts will be replaced by competitive proid or alternative technological
solutions. Even if we complete our design processmanner satisfactory to our customer, the custonay delay or terminate its product
development efforts. The occurrence of any of tlee@nts could cause sales to not materialize, tieberred, or to be cancelled, which wo
adversely affect our operating results.

We do not have longterm purchase commitments from our customers, andhteir ability to cancel, reduce, or delay orders cold reduce
our revenue and increase our costs.

Our customers do not provide us with firm,delerm volume purchase commitments, but insteackipsirchase orders. As a result,
customers can cancel purchase orders or reducday drders at any time. The cancellation, delayeduction of customer purchase orders
could result in reduced revenue, excess inventorg,unabsorbed overhead. We have an establisheghpeein the notebook computer
market and have only recently established a presienthe digital lifestyle products markets. Thessrkets are subject to severe competitive
pressures, rapid technological change, and prazhszilescence, which increase our inventory andheaet risks, resulting in increased costs.

We face intense competition that could result in auosing or failing to gain market share and suffemg reduced revenue.

We serve intensely competitive markets thatcharacterized by price erosion, rapid technoldgibange, and competition from major
domestic and international companies. This inteasepetition could result in pricing pressures, losaes, reduced margins, and lower
market share. Any movement away from high-quatiistom designed, feature-rich interface solutionswer priced alternatives would
adversely affect our business. Some of our congpstiparticularly in the markets for digital lifgl# products and other electronic devices,
have greater market recognition, larger customsediaand substantially greater financial, technioakketing, distribution, and other
resources than we possess and that afford thematitivgp advantages. As a result, they may be abtkevote greater resources to the
promotion and sale of products, to negotiate lopvares for raw materials and components, to delbeenpetitive products at lower prices,
and to introduce new product solutions and resgond
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customer requirements more quickly than we can.d@mpetitive position could suffer if one or mofeoar customers determine not to
utilize our custom engineered, total solutions apph and instead decide to design and manufadteireawn interfaces, to contract with our
competitors, or to use alternative technologies.

Our ability to compete successfully depends aiumber of factors, both within and outside aurtmol. These factors include the
following:

» our success in designing and introducing new iatersolutions, including those implementing nevatetogies;

» our ability to predict the evolving needs of oustmmers and to assist them in incorporating ourrtelogies into their new produc
» our ability to meet our custon’s requirements for low power consumption, easesef teliability, durability, and small form fact«
» the quality of our customer servict

« the rate at which customers incorporate our interfolutions into their own produc

« product or technology introductions by our compesif anc

» foreign currency fluctuations, which may cauderaign competitor’'s products to be priced sigrifitly lower than our product
solutions.

If we do not keep pace with technological innovatiws, our products may not be competitive and our reenue and operating results ma
suffer.

We operate in rapidly changing markets. Tebtmgioal advances, the introduction of new produats] new design techniques could
adversely affect our business unless we are alalddpt to the changing conditions. Technologicahades could render our solutions
obsolete, and we may not be able to respond efédgtio the technological requirements of evolvingrkets. As a result, we will be required
to expend substantial funds for and commit sigaiftoresources to

« continue research and development activities ostiagi and potential interface solutiol
« hire additional engineering and other technicatpenel, anc
e purchase advanced design tools and test equip

Our business could be harmed if we are unabdievelop and utilize new technologies that addties needs of our customers, or our
competitors or customers do so more effectively tha do.

Our efforts to develop new technologies may not raft in commercial success, which could cause a dix in our revenue and could
harm our business.

Our research and development efforts witheesfm new technologies may not result in custoonenarket acceptance. Some or all of
those technologies may not successfully make thesition from the research and development lalost-effective production as a result of
technology problems, competitive cost issues, ypetiblems, and other factors. Even when we suas®ssbmplete a research and
development effort with respect to a particulahtemogy, our customers may decide not to introchramay terminate products utilizing the
technology for a variety of reasons, including fibiowing:

« difficulties with other suppliers of components fbe products

» superior technologies developed by our competaasunfavorable comparisons of our solutions witse technologie
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e price considerations, at
» lack of anticipated or actual market demand forptmucts

The nature of our business requires us to makénuing investments for new technologies. Sigant expenses relating to one or more
new technologies that ultimately prove to be uneasful for any reason could have a material adweffeet on us. In addition, any
investments or acquisitions made to enhance otntdogies may prove to be unsuccessful. If ourreffare unsuccessful, our business could
be harmed.

We may not be able to enhance our existing produsblutions and develop new product solutions in artiely manner.

Our future operating results will depend ignificant extent on our ability to continue t@pide new interface solutions that compare
favorably with alternative solutions on the badisime to introduction, cost, and performance. ®uecess in maintaining existing and
attracting new customers and developing new busidepends on various factors, including the foltayi

« innovative development of new solutions for custopreducts

« utilization of advances in technolocg

* maintenance of quality standar

» efficient and co:-effective solutions, an

» timely completion of the design and introductiomefwv interface solution:

Our inability to enhance our existing prodselutions and develop new product solutions omali basis could harm our operating res
and impede our growth.

A technologically new interface solution that achiees significant market share could harm our busines

Our interface solutions are designed to irtegtouch, handwriting, and vision capabilitieswNmsmputing and communications devices
could be developed that call for a different inded solution. Existing devices also could be medifo allow for a different interface solutic
Our business could be harmed if our products beswneompetitive as a result of a technological kiteaugh that allows a new interface
solution to displace our solutions and achieveifigant market acceptance.

International sales and manufacturing risks could aversely affect our operating results.

Our manufacturing and assembly operationganearily conducted in China, Thailand, Hong Koagd Taiwan by manufacturing
contractors. We have sales and logistics operaiiohi®ng Kong, sales support operations in Japaiwdn, and China, and research and
development activities in the United Kingdom. Thagernational operations expose us to various @ir, political, and other risks that
could adversely affect our operations and operatisglts, including the following:

« difficulties and costs of staffing and managing @ti-national organizatior
« unexpected changes in regulatory requirem:

» differing labor regulations

» potentially adverse tax consequent

» tariffs and duties and other trade barrier restnis,

» possible employee turnover or labor unr
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« greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivayf
» the burdens and costs of compliance with a vanéfgreign laws,
» potentially reduced protection for intellectual peoty rights, ant
» political or economic instability in certain padkthe world.
The risks associated with international operstcould negatively affect our operating results.
Our business may suffer if international trade is lindered, disrupted, or economically disadvantaged.

Political and economic conditions abroad mdweasely affect the foreign production and salewfproducts. Protectionist trade
legislation in either the United States or foreggmntries, such as a change in the current tarifEtres, export or import compliance laws
other trade policies, could adversely affect oulitgtio sell interface solutions in foreign marketnd to obtain materials or equipment from
foreign suppliers.

Changes in policies by the U.S. or foreigneyoments resulting in, among other things, higaration, currency conversion limitations,
restrictions on the transfer of funds, or the eppiadion of private enterprises also could haveasemal adverse effect on us. Any actions by
countries in which we conduct business to revedieips that encourage foreign investment or fardigde also could adversely affect our
operating results. In addition, U.S. trade policesch as “most favored nation” status and tragéepences for certain Asian nations, could
affect the attractiveness of our services to 0@. l[dustomers and adversely impact our operatingtses

Our operating results could be adversely affectedybfluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar agaist foreign currencies.

We transact business predominantly in U.Sadobnd bill and collect our sales in U.S. doll@&sveakening of the dollar could cause our
overseas vendors to require renegotiation of ettieprices or currency we pay for their goods semdices. In the future, customers may
negotiate pricing and make payments in non-U.Seaaies. During fiscal 2006, approximately 5% of oosts were denominated in nonS.
currencies, including British pounds, Hong Konglaid, Japanese Yen, Chinese Yuan, and Taiwan gollar

If our overseas vendors or customers requn® transact business in non-U.S. currenciestuaions in foreign currency exchange rates
could affect our cost of goods, operating expereses,operating margins and could result in exchdogges. In addition, currency
devaluation can result in a loss to us if we hagaskits of that currency. Hedging foreign currescian be difficult, especially if the currency
is not freely traded. We cannot predict the immddtiture exchange rate fluctuations on our opagatesults. We currently do not hedge any
foreign currencies, accordingly, we have no foraigrrency hedge contracts outstanding as of theoodr fiscal year.

A majority of our subcontractors are located in Tawan, Thailand, Hong Kong, and China, increasing theisk that a natural disaster,
labor strike, war, or political unrest in those cowntries would disrupt our operations.

A majority of our subcontractors are located aiwan, Thailand, Hong Kong, and China. Eventsodwur control, such as earthquakes,
fires, floods, or other natural disasters, or praitunrest, war, labor strikes, or work stoppaigebese countries would disrupt their
operations, which would impact our operations. Tiklk of earthquakes in Taiwan is significant beeaoiits proximity to major earthquake
fault lines. An earthquake, such as the one thatroed in Taiwan in September 1999, could causafgignt delays in shipments of our
product solutions until we are able to shift outsourced operations. In addition, there is politieasion between Taiwan and China that
could lead to hostilities. If any of these eventsuwr, we may not be able to obtain alternative ciypaFailure to secure alternative capacity
could cause a delay in the shipment of our prodaltttions, which would cause our revenue to fluetoa decline.
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Variability of customer requirements resulting in cancellations, reductions, or delays may adverselyffact our operating results.

We must provide increasingly rapid produch&uound and respond to ever-shorter lead timesrigty of conditions, both specific to
individual customers and generally affecting thendad for the OEM’s products, may cause customecaroel, reduce, or delay orders.
Cancellations, reductions, or delays by a significastomer or by a group of customers could adeefect our operating results. On
occasion, customers require rapid increases inugtamh, which can strain our resources and reducenargins. Although we have been able
to obtain increased production capacity from oindtparty manufacturers, we may be unable to datsmy given time to meet our
customers’ demands if their demands exceed antézddavels.

Our operating results may experience significant fictuations that could result in a decline in the pice of our stock.

In addition to the variability resulting frothe short-term nature of our customers’ commitmeottser factors contribute to significant
periodic and seasonal quarterly fluctuations inregults of operations. These factors include dtlewing:

» the cyclicality of the markets we sen

« the timing and size of order

» the volume of orders relative to our capac

« product introductions and market acceptance of p@aucts or new generations of produ
» evolution in the life cycles of our custom’ products;

» timing of expenses in anticipation of future ordk

« changes in product mix, including the percentagéuafl pointing and single pointing products shipg
« availability of manufacturing and assembly servi

« changes in cost and availability of labor and congmts;

» timely delivery of product solutions to custome

e pricing and availability of competitive produc

» introduction of new technologies into the marketsserve

» pressures on reducing selling pric

« the absolute and relative levels of corporate ent and consumer notebook purchases:
» changes in economic conditior

Accordingly, you should not rely on periodfieriod comparisons as an indicator of our futumégopmance. Negative or unanticipated
fluctuations in our operating results may resuliidecline in the price of our stock.

If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our irfrastructure, management, and resources could berstined, our ability to effectively
manage our business could be diminished, and our egmting results could suffer.

The failure to manage our growth effectivebylel strain our resources, which would impede dnilitg to increase revenue. We have
increased the number of our interface solutionspad to expand further the number
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and diversity of our solutions and their use infilitere. Our ability to manage our planned divécaiion and growth effectively will require
us to

» successfully hire, train, retain, and motivate #iddal employees, including employees outside thidd States
« enhance our global operational, financial, and rgangent systems; ai
« expand our production capaci

As we expand and diversify our product andamuer base, we may be required to increase ouheadrand operating expenses. We also
may be required to increase staffing and other mdipgres, including expenses in order to meet thigipated demand of our customers. Our
customers, however, do not commit to firm produtsehedules for more than a short time in advafueg.increase in expenses in
anticipation of future orders that do not materialivould adversely affect our profitability. Ourstomers also may require rapid increases in
design and production services that place an exeeskort-term burden on our resources and thaurese of our thirdsarty manufacturers.
we cannot manage our growth effectively, our bussrend results of operations could suffer.

We plan to implement a new enterprise resource plaring system, or ERP system, in fiscal 2007. Delaysimplementation, design
errors not identified prior to implementation, or unanticipated costs associated with the implementain could adversely affect us.

We plan to implement a new ERP system duiisgaf 2007, and we will invest significant financad personnel resources into this
project throughout the fiscal year. If we are urgssful in implementing the system under the pldnimeeline and the implementation dat
delayed into the last quarter of fiscal 2007, duility to assess our internal control over finahe&porting will be adversely affected,
potentially resulting in a material weakness intha inability to assess, internal control ovegfinial reporting as of the end of the fiscal year.

If we fail to identify and correct significadesign errors in the ERP system prior to impleie@m or the ERP system does not function as
designed, we could lose our ability to execute radinusiness operations, including the ability haueproducts manufactured and to ship
products and, as a result, our business operatmrd be adversely affected.

If our estimate of the ERP system implemeatatiost is significantly understated or we run imb@nticipated system integration costs, we
would incur unplanned capital expenses, which woldatively affect our cash flow and may requiréauassess for impairment costs
capitalized in connection with the ERP system imm@atation, potentially resulting in an impairmenttesdown. Accordingly, our cash flov
and our results of operations could be adverségcted.

We depend on key personnel who would be difficultotreplace, and our business will likely be harmed e lose their services or
cannot hire additional qualified personnel.

Our success depends substantially on theteffod abilities of our senior management and legggnnel. The competition for qualified
management and key personnel, especially engineéntense. Although we maintain noncompetitiod anndisclosure covenants with m
of our key personnel, we do not have employmergergents with most of them. The loss of servicemefor more of our key employees or
the inability to hire, train, and retain key perseh especially engineers and technical suppodqgmerel, and capable sales and customer-
support employees outside the United States, aellly the development and sale of our productsypli®ur business, and interfere with our
ability to execute our business plan.

Our inability to protect our intellectual property could impair our competitive advantage, reduce ourevenue, and increase our costs.

Our success and ability to compete depenaiingn our ability to maintain the proprietary asgeof our technologies and products. We
rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, traderets, trademarks, confidentiality agreemenmid,odher contractual provisions to protect
our intellectual property, but these measures
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may provide only limited protection. We licenserfrohird parties certain technology used in andofarproducts. These third-party licenses
are granted with restrictions, and there can bassoirances that such third-party technology witlaim available to us on terms beneficial to
us. Our failure to enforce and protect our inteliat property rights or obtain from third partiée tright to use necessary technology could
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition, and results of operations. Initald, the laws of some foreign countries do
not protect proprietary rights as fully as do the$ of the United States.

Patents may not issue from the patent appicathat we have filed or may file in the futu@ur issued patents may be challenged,
invalidated, or circumvented, and claims of ouepéd may not be of sufficient scope or strengtlissured in the proper geographic region
provide meaningful protection or any commercialatage. We have not applied for, and do not hawecapyright registration on our
technologies or products. We have applied to registrtain of our trademarks in the United Stateb@her countries. There can be no
assurance that we will obtain registrations of @pte or other trademarks in key markets. Failorelitain registrations could compromise
ability to protect fully our trademarks and brarael could increase the risk of challenge from thadies to our use of our trademarks and
brands.

We do not consistently rely on written agreetaavith our customers, suppliers, manufacturerd,ather recipients of our technologies
and products, and therefore some trade secretgpimtanay be lost and our ability to enforce ouellectual property rights may be limited.
Additionally, our customers, suppliers, manufaatsirand other recipients of our technologies awdiypcts may seek to use our technologies
and products without appropriate limitations. la grast, we did not consistently require our empsyand consultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements, employment agreememtgroprietary information and invention assignmagiteements. Therefore, our former
employees and consultants may try to claim someeostiip interest in our technologies and productsraay use our technologies and
products competitively and without appropriate tations.

We may be required to incur substantial expenses andivert management attention and resources in defeling intellectual property
litigation against us.

We may receive notices from third parties tHaim our products infringe their rights. From &rno time, we receive notice from third
parties of the intellectual property rights suchtiea have obtained. We cannot be certain thatemimologies and products do not and will
not infringe issued patents or other proprietagits of others. While we are not currently subjeany infringement claim, any future claim,
with or without merit, could result in significalitigation costs and diversion of resources, inglgdhe attention of management, and could
require us to enter into royalty and licensing agrents, any of which could have a material adveifeet on our business. There can be no
assurance that such licenses could be obtainedromercially reasonable terms, if at all, or that thrms of any offered licenses would be
acceptable to us. If forced to cease using sudintdogy, there can be no assurance that we wousbleeto develop or obtain alternate
technology. Accordingly, an adverse determinatioa judicial or administrative proceeding or faflio obtain necessary licenses could
prevent us from manufacturing, using, or sellingaia of our products, which could have a mateathlerse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Furthermore, parties making such claims cselelire a judgment awarding substantial damagegelaas injunctive or other equitable
relief that could effectively block our ability tnake, use, or sell our products in the United Stateabroad. Such a judgment could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition, and results of operations. In additie,are obligated under certain agreements to
indemnify the other party in connection with infyjement by us of the proprietary rights of thirdtjges. In the event we are required to
indemnify parties under these agreements, it chale a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition, and results of operatic

We may incur substantial expenses and divert managent resources in prosecuting others for their unathorized use of our
intellectual property rights.

The markets in which we compete are charasedrby frequent litigation regarding patents arepintellectual property rights. Other
companies, including our competitors, may devedmhnologies that are similar or superior to ouht@togies, duplicate our technologies, or
design around our patents and may have or obtéémizaor other proprietary rights that would preyémit, or interfere with our ability to
make, use, or sell our products. Effective intéllat property protection may be unavailable ort@diin some foreign countries in
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which we operate, such as China and Taiwan. Unaa#tbparties may attempt to copy or otherwiseasggcts of our technologies and
products that we regard as proprietary. There eamobassurance that our means of protecting owrigtary rights in the United States or
abroad will be adequate or that competitors witlindependently develop similar technologies. If mtellectual property protection is
insufficient to protect our intellectual propertghts, we could face increased competition in tleek®t for our technologies and products.

Should any of our competitors file patent &gilons or obtain patents that claim inventiorsdallaimed by us, we may choose to
participate in an interference proceeding to deiteerthe right to a patent for these inventions beeaour business would be harmed if we fail
to enforce and protect our intellectual properghts. Even if the outcome is favorable, this proaeg could result in substantial cost to us
disrupt our business.

In the future, we also may need to file lawstd enforce our intellectual property rightsptotect our trade secrets, or to determine the
validity and scope of the proprietary rights ofeath This litigation, whether successful or unsastid, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources, which could have a matewdakrse effect on our business, financial congittmd results of operations.

If we become subject to product returns and productiability claims resulting from defects in our products, we may fail to achieve
market acceptance of our products and our businesuld be harmed.

We develop complex products in an evolvingkatplace and generally warrant our products foerdog of 12 months or more from the
date of sale. Despite testing by us and our cusmndefects may be found in existing or new prosluct fiscal 2001, a manufacturing erro
one of our manufacturing subcontractors was disgaleAlthough the error was promptly discoverechwitt significant interruption of
supply and the manufacturing subcontractor rectifiee problem at its own cost, any such manufawgueirors or product defects could result
in a delay in recognition or loss of revenue, loSmarket share, or failure to achieve market atzoege. Additionally, these defects could
result in financial or other damages to our custsmeause us to incur significant warranty, suppemtl repair costs; and divert the attention
of our engineering personnel from our product deeient efforts. In such circumstances, our custsroeuld also seek and obtain damages
from us for their losses. A product liability claibnought against us, even if unsuccessful, wolikelyibe time-consuming and costly to
defend. The occurrence of these problems wouldylikarm our business.

Potential strategic alliances may not achieve theibjectives, and the failure to do so could impedeur growth.

We anticipate that we will enter into strategiliances. Among other matters, we continuallglese strategic alliances designed to enh
or complement our technology or to work in conjimetwith our technology; to provide necessary krmaw, components, or supplies; ant
develop, introduce, and distribute products utiligbur technology. Any strategic alliances mayauitieve their intended objectives, and
parties to our strategic alliances may not perfasncontemplated. The failure of these alliances im@gde our ability to introduce new
products and enter new markets.

Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficlt to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockolder value, and harm our
operating results.

We expect to pursue opportunities to acquiherobusinesses and technologies in order to cangsieour current interface solutions,
expand the breadth of our markets, enhance ounitsdlcapabilities, or otherwise offer growth opjpmities. While we have no current
definitive agreements underway, we may acquirent@ssies, products, or technologies in the futungelfnake any future acquisitions, we
could issue stock that would dilute existing stamklers’ percentage ownership, incur substantiat,dgesume contingent liabilities, or
experience higher operating expenses. Our experienacquiring other businesses and technologiéEwited. Potential acquisitions also
involve numerous risks, including the following:

« problems assimilating the purchased operationbntgogies, or product:
e unanticipated costs associated with the acquisi

« diversion of manageme’s attention from our core business
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» adverse effects on existing business relationshigssuppliers and custome!
» risks associated with entering markets in whichharee little or no prior experience; a
» potential loss of key employees of purchased omgaioins.

We cannot assure you that we would be suadassbvercoming problems encountered in conneatitih any acquisitions, and our
inability to do so could disrupt our operations auyersely affect our business.

The PC and electronics industries are cyclical anthay result in fluctuations in our operating results

The PC and electronics industries have expee significant economic downturns at various simienese downturns are characterized by
diminished product demand, accelerated erosionaiage selling prices, and production overcapatitaddition, the PC and electronics
industries are cyclical in nature. We seek to reduar exposure to industry downturns and cycligdlit providing design and production
services for leading companies in rapidly expandiagstry segments. We may, however, experiencstantial period-to-period fluctuations
in future operating results because of generalstrgiiconditions or events occurring in the genecainomy.

The valuation of our technology conducted in conneion with our international operating structure may be challenged, which could
result in additional taxes, interest, and penalties

In fiscal 2005, we implemented an internatlayerating structure. Under this structure, gelherane of our affiliates licensed from us
certain rights to the pre-existing and in-procestihology associated with our products for explimitain all geographic markets except the
U.S., Japanese, and Korean markets, which we teeBes “ROW markets.” Our affiliate also acquiredr@sship of all future economic rights
to product sales in ROW markets by entering intagreement to license certain intangibles and astesing agreement under which we
our affiliate will share research and developmests in accordance with certain tax rules and egguis. We believe this structure
appropriately reflects where our profits are getegtand may result in future tax advantages tbuisthere can be no assurances that this will
be the case.

We expect to incur additional expenses in complyingith corporate governance and public disclosure rguirements.

Changing laws, regulations, and standards$imgléo corporate governance and public disclosnauding the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, new SEC regulations, and Nasdaqg Global Skladtet rules, are creating uncertainty and inezdasxpenses for companies such as
ours. These new or changed laws, regulations, tamdards are subject to varying interpretationmamy cases due to their lack of specificity
and, as a result, their application in practice meglve over time as new guidance is provided lyletory and governing bodies, which
could result in continuing uncertainty regardingn@diance matters and higher costs necessitateshdgpgiing revisions to disclosure and
governance practices. We are committed to maimtgihigh standards of corporate governance andgdisiclosure. As a result, our efforts
to comply with evolving laws, regulations, and stards have resulted in, and are likely to contitouesult in, increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of managetimee and attention from revenue-generating #igi/to compliance activities. In
particular, our efforts to comply with Section 40the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rela¢gdlations regarding our required
assessment of our internal control over finan@gbrting and our external auditors’ audit of thegessment has required the commitment of
significant financial and managerial resources.agect these efforts to require the continued camant of significant resources. In
addition, it has become more difficult and moreengive for us to obtain director and officer litigiinsurance. As a result, we may have
difficulty attracting and retaining qualified boamtembers, which could harm our business. If owrtffto comply with new or changed laws,
regulations, and standards differ from the actsiiintended by regulatory or governing bodies dusntbiguities related to practice, our
reputation may be harmed.
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The accounting requirements for income taxes on ctin of our share-based awards will subject our futire quarterly and annual
effective tax rates to greater volatility and, consquently, our ability to estimate reasonably our fture quarterly and annual effective
tax rates is greatly diminished.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Aoting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Share-Baseghftnt” (“SFAS 123R"), we
recognize tax benefit upon expensing certain shased awards associated with our share-based ceatjmnplans, including nonqualified
stock options and deferred stock unit awards, hdeucurrent accounting standards we cannot rezedak benefit currently for those share-
based compensation expenses associated with meeitdick options and employee stock purchase plares (qualified stock options). For
qualified stock options that vested after our amopof SFAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit onlyhia period when disqualifying
dispositions of the underlying stock occur and,doalified stock options that vested prior to odogtion of SFAS 123R, the tax benefit is
recorded directly to additional paid-in capital.chedingly, because we cannot recognize the taxflidaeshare-based compensation expense
associated with qualified stock options until thewrence of future disqualifying dispositions loé tunderlying stock, and because a portion
of that tax benefit may be directly recorded toitiddal paid-in capital, our future quarterly anghaal effective tax rates will be subject to
greater volatility and, consequently, our abilibyetstimate reasonably our future quarterly and aheffiective tax rates is greatly diminished.

Future changes in financial accounting standards opractices may cause adverse unexpected fluctuat®and affect our reported
results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or practoedd have a significant effect on our reportediitssof operations. New accounting
pronouncements and varying interpretations of agting pronouncements have occurred in the pastraydoccur in the future. Changes to
existing rules or the questioning of current pieetimay adversely affect our reported financiallte®r the way we conduct our business.
example, the Financial Accounting Standards Bossded SFAS 123R requiring us to recognize all shased payments to employees,
including grants of stock options, in the finanatdtements based on their fair value eliminativgpro forma footnote disclosures that were
allowed as an alternative to financial statemeodgeition. This requirement, while not affecting @ash flow, adversely affected our
reported financial results and impaired our abiiityprovide guidance on our future reported finahgsults as a result of the variability of
factors used to establish the fair value of stqukoms and the accounting for income taxes thereon.

We increased our leverage as a result of the saleaur 0.75% convertible senior subordinated notes.

As a result of the sale of our 0.75% convégt#enior subordinated notes in fiscal 2005, werired $125 million of indebtedness. As a
result of this indebtedness, our interest paymbhgations have increased. Our interest paymengatibns on the notes is approximately
$938,000 annually. The degree to which we are mwerbged could have adverse consequences, inclimrigllowing:

« alimitation on our ability to obtain future finang for working capital, acquisitions, or other pases
e anincrease in our vulnerability to industry downtiand competitive pressures; ¢
» apossible competitive disadvantage with less kgt competitors and competitors that may haverattess to capital resourc

Our ability to meet our debt service obligatiawill depend upon our future performance, whidhlre subject to the financial, business,
and other factors affecting our operations, manyluth are beyond our control.

Legislation affecting the markets in which we compe could adversely affect our ability to implemenbur growth strategies.

Our ability to expand our business may be exbhg impacted by future laws or regulations. Qustomers’ products may be subject to
laws relating to environmental regulations, commations, encryption technology, electronic commegesignatures, and privacy. Any of
these laws could be expensive to comply with, &edtarketability of our products could be adversdfgcted.
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We must finance the growth of our business and theevelopment of new products, which could have an adrse effect on our
operating results.

To remain competitive, we must continue to ensignificant investments in research and developmmearketing, and business
development. Our failure to increase sufficiently oet sales to offset these increased costs vamiydrsely affect our operating results.

From time to time, we may seek additional ggar debt financing to provide for funds requitecexpand our business. We cannot predict
the timing or amount of any such requirements iatttte. If such financing is not available on stictory terms, we may be unable to exy
our business or to develop new business at thelesieed and our operating results may suffer. Eiehcing increases expenses and mu
repaid regardless of operating results. Equityrfaiag could result in additional dilution to exisgi stockholders.

Continuing uncertainty of the U.S. economy may haveerious implications for the growth and stabilityof our business and may
negatively affect our stock price.

The revenue growth and profitability of oursmess depends significantly on the overall demarnie notebook computer market and in
the markets for digital lifestyle products and otbkectronic devices. Softening demand in thes&eataicaused by ongoing economic
uncertainty may result in decreased revenue oireggrevels or growth rates. The U.S. economy e thistorically cyclical, and market
conditions continue to be challenging, which hasilted in individuals and companies delaying oupiolg expenditures. Further delays or
reductions in spending could have a material adveffect on demand for our products, and consetyuentour business, financial condition,
results of operations, prospects, and stock price.

The market price of our common stock has been and ay continue to be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has kmehmay continue to be subject to wide fluctuatiomresponse to various factors,
including the following:

e Vvariations in our quarterly resull
» the financial guidance we may provide to the pulality changes in such guidance, or our failuregetrsuch guidanc
» changes in financial estimates by industry or séearanalysts or our failure to meet such estis:

» various market factors or perceived market fa;timcluding rumors, whether or not correct, inwiafyus, our customers, our suppliers,
or our competitors

« announcements of technological innovations by usyasur competitors

« introductions of new products or new pricing pa&by us or by our competito

e acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or by @mpetitors

» recruitment or departure of key personi

» the gain or loss of significant orde

» the gain or loss of significant custome

« market conditions in our industry, the industrié®ar customers, and the economy as a whole

» hedging activities by investors holding position®ur convertible senior subordinated no

In addition, stocks of technology companiegehexperienced extreme price and volume fluctuattbat often have been unrelated or
disproportionate to these companies’ operatingoperdnce. Public announcements by
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technology companies concerning, among other thihgs performance, accounting practices, or lgpgablems could cause the market p
of our common stock to decline regardless of otwamperating performance.

Our charter documents and Delaware law could maket imore difficult for a third party to acquire us, and discourage a takeover.

Our certificate of incorporation and the DedmeyGeneral Corporation Law contain provisions thay have the effect of making more
difficult or delaying attempts by others to obtaontrol of our company, even when these attemptsbman the best interests of our
stockholders. Our certificate of incorporation ashorizes our board of directors, without stod#boapproval, to issue one or more series
of preferred stock, which could have voting andvagion rights that adversely affect or dilute Wlating power of the holders of common
stock. Delaware law also imposes conditions oragetiusiness combination transactions with “inter@stockholders.” Our certificate of
incorporation divides our Board of Directors intoee classes, with one class to stand for eleetah year for a three-year term after the
initial election. The classification of directoends to discourage a third party from initiatingraxy solicitation or otherwise attempting to
obtain control of our company and may maintainitieembency of our Board of Directors, as this dinoe generally increases the difficulty
of, or may delay, replacing a majority of directad@air certificate of incorporation authorizes owaBd of Directors to fill vacancies or newly
created directorships. A majority of the directtivsn in office may elect a successor to fill angarzcies or newly created directorships.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affecexisting stockholders.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may have theafbf deterring, delaying, or preventing a chaimggontrol that might otherwise be in the
best interests of our stockholders. In generatkspaurchase rights issued under the rights planriecexercisable when a person or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teoffer or exchange offer of 15% or more of our coom stock is announced or
commenced. After any such event, our other stoddrslmay purchase additional shares of our comnoak at 50% of the then-current
market price. The rights will cause substantialtitih to a person or group that attempts to acqisren terms not approved by our board of
directors. The rights should not interfere with angrger or other business combination approvedubyoard of directors as the rights may
be redeemed by us at $0.01 per stock purchaseatigimy time before any person or group acquiré ébmore of our outstanding common
stock. The rights expire in August 2012.

Sales of large numbers of shares could adverselyfedt the price of our common stock.

All of the 25,046,353 shares of our commorlstoutstanding as of September 1, 2006 are eligibleesale in the public markets. Of th
shares, 1,215,987 shares held by affiliates agéb#difor resale in the public markets subjectdampliance with the volume and manner of
sale rules of Rule 144 or 701 under the Securittof 1933, as amended, and the balance of theslaae eligible for resale in the public
markets either as unrestricted shares or pursadfate 144(k). In general, under Rule 144 as ctiyém effect, any person (or persons wh
shares are aggregated for purposes of Rule 144peheficially owns restricted securities with restge which at least one year has elapsed
since the later of the date the shares were aatjfrioen us, or from an affiliate of ours, is entitle sell within any three-month period a
number of shares that does not exceed the greatés of the then outstanding shares of our comntoecksand the average weekly trading
volume in common stock during the four calendarksgaeceding such sale. Sales under Rule 144 edssubject to certain manner-of-sale
provisions and notice requirements and to the abiily of current public information about us.

Rule 701, as currently in effect, permits employees, officers, directors, and consultants pirehase shares pursuant to a written
compensatory plan or contract to resell these shaneliance upon Rule 144, but without complianith specific restrictions. Rule 701
provides that affiliates may sell their Rule 70&args under Rule 144 without complying with the addoeriod requirement and that non-
affiliates may sell their shares in reliance oneR144 without complying with the holding period btia information, volume limitation, or
notice provisions of Rule 144. A person who is ao@ffiliate, who has not been an affiliate witttinee months prior to sale, and who
beneficially owns restricted securities with regdeavhich at least two years have elapsed sinedatier of the date the shares were acquired
from us, or from an affiliate of ours, is entitlasell such shares under Rule 144(k) without mk¢@iany of the volume limitations or other
requirements described above. Sales of substamtialints of common stock in the public market cauldersely affect prevailing market
prices.
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We have registered an aggregate of $100 mifiocommon stock and preferred stock for issuéme®nnection with acquisitions, which
shares generally will be freely tradeable afteirtlssuance under Rule 145 of the Securities Adligss held by an affiliate of the acquired
company, in which case such shares will be sultjettte volume and manner of sale restrictions déRd4 discussed above. The issuance or
subsequent sale of these shares in the public ineokéd adversely affect prevailing market prices.

We have registered an aggregate of $125 mitifoour 0.75% Convertible Senior Subordinated Nakee 2024 and the common stock
issuable upon conversion of the notes. The shasegd upon conversion generally will be freely ¢adale after their issuance, unless held by
an affiliate, in which case such shares will bejactito the volume and manner of sale restrictmiRule 144 discussed above. The issuance
or subsequent sale of these shares in the publicetneould negatively affect the market price of oammon stock.

We have registered for offer and sale theeshaf common stock that are reserved for issuancignt to our outstanding share-based
compensation plans. Shares issued after the eféedtite of such registration statements in conmeetith our share-based compensation
plans generally will be eligible for sale in thebfia market, except that affiliates will continuelie subject to volume limitations and other
requirements of Rule 144. The issuance or subségatnof such shares could depress the market pficur common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices as well as principal research, development, sales, markeéind,administrative functions are located in
our 70,000 square foot facility in Santa Clara,ifcatia. We believe this facility will be adequatemeet our needs for the foreseeable future.
Our Asia/Pacific headquarters are located in Hongdwhere we lease approximately 13,300 squaredadtour European headquarters are
located in Cambridge, United Kingdom where we leggeroximately 5,600 square feet. We also maimté@00 square feet of office space in
Taiwan, 2,500 square feet of office space in Chamal, 900 square feet of office space in Japan. &Ve katellite sales support offices in
Thailand, Korea, and Texas.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 10, 2006, Elantech Devices Corpondiied a Complaint for Patent Infringement agaunstn the United States District Court
for the Northern District of California, San Josw&iBion, claiming that we infringed Elantech’s Uatent No. 5,825,352 and seeking single
and treble damages, attorneys’ fees, and a perremigmction against us infringing or inducing othéo infringe the patent. On April 6,
2006, we filed our Answer to the Complaint and Geurlaims against Elantech Devices Corporationiritey that Elantech has infringed &
induced infringement of our U.S. Patent Nos. 5,548, 5,880,411, 5,943,052, and 6,380,931 and sgekigle and treble damages,
attorneys’ fees, and a permanent injunction agamfishging or inducing others to infringe.

Elantech responded to our counterclaim denlaiulity and counterclaimed seeking an injunctanmd damages for alleged violations of
California law. We subsequently filed a motion tendiss the Elantech counterclaims, which was gdhateJuly 7, 2006 with leave to amend
the counterclaims after the adjudication of theepainfringement claims. We intend to vigorouslyate our patents and pursue our
counterclaims.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information on Common Stock

Our common stock has been listed on the Na&dialogl Select Market (formerly on the Nasdaq Nzidviarket) under the symbol
“SYNA” since January 29, 2002. Prior to that tirttegre was no public market for our common stocle filowing table sets forth for the
periods indicated the high and low sales pricesunfcommon stock as quoted on the Nasdaq GlobatBkElarket.

Year ended June 30, 2005: High Low
First quartel $21.0C $13.5¢
Second quarte $40.0¢ $20.4z
Third quartel $41.1¢ $20.8(
Fourth quarte $24.2:¢ $17.7C

Year ended June 30, 2006:

First quartel $21.7¢ $15.0¢
Second quarte $26.97 $17.9¢
Third quartel $30.8¢ $22.3¢
Fourth quarte $26.8¢ $19.87

On September 1, 2006, the closing sales pfioeir common stock on the Nasdaq Global Seleckktaras $25.22 per share.

Stockholders

As of September 1, 2006, there were approxdm@50 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividendsur preferred stock or our common stock. Weesly plan to retain any earnings to
finance the growth of our business rather tharatpqash dividends. Payments of any cash dividenttsei future will depend on our financial
condition, results of operations, and capital regqaents as well as other factors deemed relevaatbipoard of directors.

Our revolving line of credit also places r&sions on the payment of any dividends.
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Share-Based Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information vitespect to our common stock that may be issued Both stockholder approved and
unapproved plans upon delivery of shares for defestock units, exercise of outstanding stock ogtithe weighted average exercise pric
outstanding stock options, and the number of seesitavailable for future issuance under our varisliare-based compensation plans.

(@ (d)

Number of (b) Number of Securities
Securities tc Number of (c) Remaining Available
be Issued Securities to Weighted- for Future Issuance
Upon be Issued Average Under Share-Based
Delivery of Upon Exercise Compensation Plans
Shares for Exercise of Price of [Excluding Securities
Deferred Outstanding Outstanding Reflected in Columng
Plan Category Stock Units Options Options (a) and (b)]
Shar-Based Compensation Plans Approved by Stockho 38,28( 5,752,67 $ 14.6¢ 3,254,66;
Shar-Based Compensation Plans Not Approved By Stockhneidg — 55,33¢ $ 4.9¢ 37,58¢
Total 38,28( 5,808,01. $ 145t 3,292,241

(1) Represents options granted under our 2008tatutory stock option plan. The plan was adopiedy board of directors in
September 2000 and provides for the grant of optiorpurchase up to 200,000 shares of our comnook.dtnless terminated earlier
by our board of directors, the plan will terminateSeptember 2010. The exercise price of optioastgd under the plan is the fair
market value of our common stock on the date afitg@enerally, the shares subject to options gcanteler the plan vest 25% on the
first anniversary of the option grant date and 48 each month thereafter. The exercise pricafgroptions granted under the plan
may be paid in cash, in shares of our common staltied at fair market value on the exercise dat& any other form of legal
consideration that may be acceptable to the bdad@textors or administrator in their discretionciuding through a same-day sale
program without any cash outlay by the optionee fEm of options granted under the plan may noteda 10 years. Outstanding
awards and the number of shares remaining availablesuance under the plan will be adjusted edtient of a stock split, stock
dividend, or other similar change in our capitalct

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In October 2005, our board of directors autteat an expansion of our stock repurchase progeam to an additional $40 million of our
common stock. There were no purchases under tbhke stpurchase program during the quarter ended 3n2006; however, subsequent to
June 30, 2006 we repurchased 215,000 shares ®n$Hdion, or an average cost of $21.45 per share.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected findnd#a for each fiscal year in the five year perodied June 30, 2006. As our past operating
results are not necessarily indicative of our fatoperating results, the selected financial daliaibshould be read in conjunction with Iterr
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiaddtion and Results of Operations and our conatdid financial statements and related
notes contained elsewhere in this report.

Years ended June 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Income Datz

Net revenue $100,20: $100,70: $133,27¢ $208,13¢ $184,55
Cost of revenue(1 59,01¢ 58,41’ 77,24¢ 112,09( 101,70
Gross margir 41,18t 42,28¢ 56,03: 96,04¢ 82,85!
Operating expense

Research and development 16,59 19,831 21,41¢ 24,99 35,35¢

Selling, general, and administrative 9,87: 10,73 13,57: 18,42 28,01¢

Other operating expense (incon — — — (3,800 —

Amortization of deferred stock compensatior 452 51€ 517 32¢ —

Amortization of goodwill and other acquired

intangible assel 134 40 — — —

Restructuring — — 432 — —
Total operating expens 27,05¢ 31,12¢ 35,93¢ 39,94 63,37¢
Operating incom: 14,13 11,15¢ 20,09 56,107 19,47¢
Interest income, ne 32t 904 83: 2,22¢ 6,04
Income before provision for income tay 14,45¢ 12,06: 20,92¢ 58,33: 25,52
Provision for income taxe 5,05¢ 4,34¢ 7,93¢ 20,347 11,82:
Net income $ 9,40( $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99: $ 37,98t $ 13,70:
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.7¢C $ 03¢ $ 058 $  1.4¢ $ 05F

Diluted $ 042 $ 031 $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3C $ 0.51
Shares used in computing net income per sl

Basic 13,52! 23,47 24,41¢ 25,73¢ 24,70¢

Diluted 22,54« 25,13: 27,10¢ 29,76! 29,07¢

(1) Amounts exclude amortization of deferred stock cengation as follows

Cost of revenur $ 28 $ 28 $ 20 $ 12 $ —
Research and developmt 167 15¢ 91 8 —
Selling, general, and administrati 25€ 32¢ 40€ 30¢ —

Amortization of deferred stock compensat $ 458 $ 5l1€ $ 517 $ 32¢ $ —

(2) Beginning with fiscal 2006, we adopted SFASR and as a result ceased amortizing deferref stoopensation. Accordingly, no
amortization of deferred stock compensation wasroed for the year ended June 30, 2

June 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢

Cash, cash equivalents, and s-term investment $65,18( $ 77,28¢ $ 96,29¢ $228,92: $245,17¢
Working capital 73,31¢ 83,81¢ 106,62: 235,24( 257,78t
Total asset 90,38: 104,50¢ 132,65: 311,20¢ 331,42:
Long-term debt, capital leases, and equipment

financing obligations, less current porti 1,75¢ 1,52¢ 1,50C 126,50( 126,50(
Total stockholder equity 74,00: 86,26¢ 109,14( 144,66( 167,04.

Basic net income per share amounts for eadbcppresented have been computed using the weigivierage number of shares of
common stock outstanding. Diluted net income pareslamounts for each period presented have beeputed(1) using the weighted
average number of potentially dilutive shares ib&ia connection with stock options and restricieatk units under the treasury stock
method, and (2) using the weighted average nunftshrases issuable in connection with convertibletdmder the iftonverted method, wh
dilutive.

In fiscal 2001, we recorded amortization obdwill and other intangible assets of $784,000anrection with the acquisition of Absolt



Sensors Limited, or ASL, a United Kingdom compaanyd the acquisition of the employees of a forméwaaese sales agent. As a result of
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
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Standard No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibleséts” in fiscal 2002, we ceased amortizing goodwiticordingly, we recorded
amortization of other intangible assets of $134,800 $40,000 in fiscal 2002 and 2003, respectivadgpciated with the ASL acquisition and
the acquisition of the employees of a former Taignsales agent. These assets were fully amoitiZisgal 2003.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements and Factors That May Afect Results

You should read the following discussion andlgsis in conjunction with our financial stateneahd related notes contained elsewhere in
this report. This discussion contains forwésdking statements that involve risks, uncertagtend assumptions. Our actual results may ¢
materially from those anticipated in these forwkroking statements as a result of a variety ofdie;tincluding those set forth under Item
Risk Factors.

Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed user interface solutionsehable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and othertedaic devices. Through our propriet:
TouchPad, we are the world’s leading supplier tdrfiace solutions to the notebook computer makkéth our TouchStyk, we offer OEMs
the choice of a touch pad, a pointing stick, oombination of both of our proprietary interfacewa@ns for dual pointing applications. We
believe our market share results from the comhonatif our customer focus, the strength of our ietélial property, and our engineering
know-how, which allow us to design products thaetibe demanding design specifications of OEMs.

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemesis edelivery has occurred or title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinable] eollectibility is reasonably assured. Our revemegeased from $100.2 million in fiscal 2(
to $208.1 million in fiscal 2005, but declined tH8%.6 million in fiscal 2006. Despite the declimerf fiscal 2005 to fiscal 2006, our revenue
increased at a compound annual growth rate of appately 16.5% from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2006 fiscal 2002, we derived 98% of our
product revenue from the personal computer mahidiscal 2006, revenue from the personal compniarket accounted for 85% of our net
revenue.

In June 2003, we acquired NSM Technology Leahitor NSM, a Hong Kong company. The acquisitioN8M provided us with a highly
skilled and experienced work force to expand oabgl presence and infrastructure to support cust®inghe Asia/Pacific region. Many of
our customers are migrating their manufacturingajens from Taiwan to China, and our OEM custonagesbeginning to establish design
centers in that region. With our expanded globaspnce, including offices in Taiwan, Hong Kong, &arJapan, and China, we are better
positioned to provide local sales, operations, @mgineering support services to our existing custsiras well as potential new customers,
within the Asia/Pacific region.

Our manufacturing operations are based oniabla cost model in which we outsource all of ptrduction requirements and drop ship
our products directly to our customers from our nfanturing subcontractors’ facilities, eliminatitige need for significant capital
expenditures and allowing us to minimize our inget in inventories. This approach requires usadkwelosely with our manufacturing
subcontractors to ensure adequate production dgpgacneet our forecasted volume requirements. Yéeige our manufacturing
subcontractors with siraonth rolling forecasts and issue purchase ordessdon our anticipated requirements for the n@xtes. Howeve
we do not have any long-term supply contracts waiti of our manufacturing subcontractors. Currently,use two third-party manufacturers
to provide our proprietary ASICs, and in certaisas we rely on a single source or a limited nurobsuppliers to provide other key
components of our products. Our cost of revenuleidies all costs associated with the productionunfpmoducts, including materials,
manufacturing, assembly and test costs paid td-flarty manufacturers, and related overhead costeiassd with our indirect manufacturi
operations personnel. Additionally, all warrantyts) yield losses, and any inventory provisions/igte-downs are charged to cost of revel
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Our gross margin generally reflects the coratiam of the added value we bring to our custom@rsducts in meeting their custom design
requirements and the impact of our ongoing cost-av@ment programs. These cost-improvement proghnachsde reducing materials and
component costs and implementing design and praegssvements. Our newly introduced products maseHawer margins than our more
mature products, which have realized greater besnagisociated with our ongoing cost-improvemengiams. As a result, new product
introductions may initially negatively impact ouogs margin.

Our research and development expenses inekjgenses related to product development, engirggeriaterials costs, patent expenses
the costs incurred to design interface solutionsfstomers prior to the customers’ commitmenhtmwiporate those solutions into their
products. These expenses have generally increaflsatting our continuing commitment to the teclogital and design innovation required
to maintain a leadership position in our existingrkets and to develop new technologies for new etark

Selling, general, and administrative expemselside expenses related to sales, marketing, dmdngstrative personnel; Sarbanes-Oxley
Act compliance; internal sales and outside salpesentatives’ commissions; market research ansuttimy; and other marketing and sales
activities. These expenses have generally increasidarily reflecting increased corporate goveg®nosts related to Sarbanes-Oxley Act
compliance, staffing, commission expense associaibdhigher revenue levels, and additional manag#rpersonnel in anticipation of our
continued growth in our existing markets and pextmn into new markets.

In connection with the grant of stock optida®ur employees and consultants, we have recatefired stock compensation, represer
the difference between the deemed fair value ofcoormon stock for financial reporting purposes Hredexercise price of these options at
the dates of grant. Deferred stock compensatipreisented as a reduction of stockholders’ equityigsiamortized on a straighihe basis ove
the applicable vesting period. Options grantedgieally subject to a four-year vesting period. Wfaortized the deferred stock
compensation over the vesting periods of the apple&coptions and recorded expense associated afighrdd stock compensation of
approximately $517,000 and $328,000 in fiscal 2804 2005, respectively. Upon the adoption of Statgrof Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (FAS 1EBfscal 2006, we ceased amortizing deferredlstmmpensation, as FAS 123R
required us to expense share-based compensatittnbes®d on grant date fair value. The adoptidfA8 123R had no effect on our cash
flows, but did result in a $13.2 million chargedtar operating income.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestagnts in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoainting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezbata of assets, liabilities, revenue, expensesyaated disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate @iingates, including those related to revenue reitiognallowance for doubtful accounts, ¢
of revenue, inventories, product warranty, providior income taxes, income taxes payable, intapgibkets, and contingencies. We base our
estimates on historical experience, applicable Jand various other assumptions that we believ®mt@asonable under the circumstance:
results of which form the basis for making judgnsesibout the carrying value of assets and liakslitiet are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estis under different assumptions or conditions.

The methods, estimates, interpretations, adgments we use in applying our most critical actiog policies can have a significant
impact on the results that we report in our comlstéd financial statements. The Securities and &gd Commission considers an entity’s
most critical accounting policies to be those pelahat are both most important to the portraya companys financial condition and rest
of operations and those that require managemernts difficult, subjective, or complex judgmentstesf as a result of the need to make
estimates about matters that are inherently urinestaen estimated. We believe the following critisacounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in thpagredion of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemesis edelivery has occurred or title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinable] eaollectibility is reasonably
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assured. We accrue for estimated sales returnethedallowances, based on historical experiertdbeaime we recognize revenue, which is
typically upon shipment. We record contract revefuugesearch and development as the servicesravapd under the terms of the contr:
We recognize non-refundable contract fees for whizliurther performance obligations exist and fbiick there is no continuing
involvement by us on the earlier of when the paytsiare received or when collection is assured.

Inventory

We state our inventories at the lower of avgharket. We base our assessment of the ultireatization of inventories on our projections
of future demand and market conditions. SuddenmEsin demand, rapid product improvements, orrteldgical changes, or any
combination of these factors can cause us to hesese or obsolete inventories. On an ongoing basiseview for estimated obsolete or
unmarketable inventories and write down our inveatoto their net realizable value based upon orgdasts of future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are les&fable than our forecasts, additional inventoserees may be required. The following
factors influence our estimates: changes to oralltions of customer orders, unexpected declirdeimand, rapid product improvements
technological advances, and termination or chabgesir OEM customers of any product offerings ipawating our product solutions.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from oulbb&ntractors when a customer’s delivery schedutieiayed or a customer’s order is
cancelled. In those circumstances in which ouratust has cancelled its order and we purchase iogefrom our subcontractors, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying valfithe inventory purchased to its net realizable&aWrite-downs to reduce the carrying
value of obsolete, slow moving, and non-usablentoy to net realizable value are charged to cbet\@nue.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We account for employee share-based compensatsts in accordance with Statement of Finaaiabunting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 123R“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R") and apply ttevigions of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “&te-Based
Payment” (“SAB 107"). We utilize the Black-Scholegtion pricing model to estimate the grant datevalue of employee share-based
compensatory awards, which requires the inputgiilijisubjective assumptions, including expecteatility and expected life. Historical a
implied volatility were used in estimating the faalue of our share-based awards, while the exgaif¢efor our options was estimated to be
five years based on historical trends since otialrpublic offering. Further, as required unde®®S-123R, we now estimate forfeitures for
share-based awards that are not expected to Vemhgés in these inputs and assumptions can mbtexrfigct the measure of estimated fair
value of our share-based compensation. We chaegestimated fair value to earnings on a straigtg-tiasis over the vesting period of the
underlying awards, which is generally four yeansdor stock option and deferred stock unit awarts @ to two years for our employee
stock purchase plan.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model wasedeped for use in estimating the fair value of édptions that have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. As ourcktoption and employee stock purchase plan awads bharacteristics that differ
significantly from traded options, and as changehé subjective assumptions can materially atfeetestimated value, our estimate of fair
value may not accurately represent the value asdigg a third party in an arms-length transacfidrere currently is no market-based
mechanism to verify the reliability and accuracythed estimates derived from the Black-Scholes ogtiicing model or other allowable
valuation models, nor is there a means to compadteadjust the estimates to actual values. Whileestimate of fair value and the associated
charge to earnings materially affects our resultsperations, it has no impact on our cash position

The guidance in SFAS 123R and SAB 107 isikalbt new and the application of these principlesyrbe subject to further interpretation
and guidance. There are significant variations agradlowable valuation models, and there is a pdggithat we may adopt a different
valuation model or refine the inputs and assumgptiomder our current valuation model in the futwsuiting in a lack of consistency in future
periods. Our current or future valuation model #relinputs and assumptions we make may also latiambility to other companies that
use different models, inputs, or assumptions, hadesulting differences in comparability couldrbaterial.
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Income Taxe

We recognize federal, foreign, and state cuitax liabilities or assets based on our estirohtaxes payable or refundable in the then
current fiscal year for each tax jurisdiction. Wsoarecognize federal, foreign, and state defeiardiabilities or assets for our estimate of
future tax effects attributable to temporary diéieces and carryforwards and record a valuatiomvatae to reduce any deferred tax assets by
the amount of any tax benefits that, based on alviailevidence and our judgment, are not expectbd tealized. If our assumptions, and
consequently our estimates, change in the futheeyaluation allowance we have established fodeterred tax assets may be changed,
which could impact income tax expense.

We account for income tax contingencies iroedance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingexsc” The calculation of tax liabilitie
involves significant judgment in estimating the saepof uncertainties in the application of compiax laws. Resolution of these uncertainties
in a manner inconsistent with our expectationsadalve a material impact on our results of opemnatend financial condition. We believe
have adequately provided for reasonably foreseealitomes in connection with the resolution of imeotax contingencies. However, our
results have in the past, and could in the futimeude favorable and unfavorable adjustments toestimated tax liabilities in the period an
assessment is made or resolved or upon the expiratia statute of limitation. Accordingly, our eftive tax rate could fluctuate materially
from period to period.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizebtnefit upon expensing certain share-based aweastxiated with our share-based
compensation plans, including nonqualified stockars and deferred stock unit awards, but underectiaccounting standards we cannot
recognize tax benefit currently for share-basedpmeation expenses associated with incentive sipitins and employee stock purchase
plan shares (qualified stock options). For quadifs¢éock options that vested after our adoptionFfAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit only in
the period when disqualifying dispositions of thlarlying stock occur and, for qualified stock ops that vested prior to our adoption of
SFAS 123R, the tax benefit is recorded directlgdditional paid-in capital. Accordingly, because ea@not recognize the tax benefit for
share-based compensation expense associated altfieglistock options until the occurrence of ftalisqualifying dispositions of the
underlying stock, and because a portion of thabtnefit may be directly recorded to additionalpiai capital, our future quarterly and
annual effective tax rates will be subject to geeablatility and, consequently, our ability toiesite reasonably our future quarterly and
annual effective tax rates is greatly diminished.

Results of Operations
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 compared with fiscal year ended June 30, 2005
Net Revenue

(in thousands)

2005 2006 $ Change % Chang
PC application: $122,87° $157,51: $ 34,63¢ 28.2%
% of net revenu 59.(% 85.2%
Digital lifestyle product applicatior 85,26: 27,04¢ (58,216 -68.2%
% of net revenu 41.(% 14. 7%
Net revenue $208,13¢ $184,55° $(23,587) -11.5%

Net revenue was $184.6 million for the yeatexzhJune 30, 2006 compared with $208.1 milliorttieryear ended June 30, 2005, a
decrease of $23.6 million, or 11.3%. We identifg trertical markets that our products serve as éngomal computing market (“PC”) and the
digital lifestyle product markets. The decreasmahrevenue was primarily attributable to a $58itian, or 68.3%, decrease in digital
lifestyle product net revenue, which was $27.0ionillfor the year ended June 30, 2006, compared$@i&3 million for the year ended
June 30, 2005. Our digital lifestyle product revemieclined to approximately 14.7% of net revenuelfe year ended June 30, 2006 from
approximately 41.0% of net revenue for the yearentlne 30, 2005, primarily due to a decline iresdrom a customer from the HDD
portable digital music player market. The decréasBgital lifestyle product net revenue was pdiiaffset by an increase in PC applications
net revenue of $34.6 million, or 28.2%, for theryeaded June 30, 2006 compared with the year eha®sl 30, 2005. The increase in PC
applications net revenue was attributable to naikldustry growth, coupled with market share gaatklitional penetration in PC
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peripherals, and adoption by notebook OEMs of aacitive interface multimedia controls. An incre@s total unit shipments of
approximately 6% was offset by lower average sglfinces resulting from changes in product designand general competitive pricing
pressure. Net revenue from PC dual pointing apiptica declined to approximately 15% of net revefanghe year ended June 30, 2006
compared with 16% of net revenue for the year elddea 30, 2005. The decrease in net revenue froauBIJointing applications reflected
the continuing shift toward single pointing soluiso driven by the combination of consumer and sinadiness demand for low-priced
notebook computers relative to high-priced notebomkputers for business use and the impact of ctiiwpesolutions in the dual pointing
segment of the notebook market.

Gross Margin.Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue wa%44r the year ended June 30, 2006 compared \Bitt?4 for the year
ended June 30, 2005. As each product we sellegiliur capacitive technologies in a design thabigue or specific to a customer’s
application, gross margins vary on a product-bydpot basis, making our gross margins product despggific and independent of the
vertical markets that our products serve. The dedh gross margin as a percentage of net revenimauily reflected an unfavorable product
design mix, lower average selling prices resulfiogn general competitive pricing pressure, anditickision of non-cash share-based
compensation costs of $682,000, partially offsetdwer manufacturing costs resulting from our couning design and process improvement
programs and lower materials, assembly, and tes$s.con-cash share-based compensation costsafain our adoption of SFAS 123R
on a modified prospective basis at the beginninfjsofll 2006 and year-over-year were responsilila {©.4% decline in our gross margin as a
percentage of revenue.

Operating Expenses.

(in thousands)

2005 2006 $ Change % Chang

Research and development expet $24,99] $35,35¢ $10,36¢ 41.5%
% of net revenu 12.(% 19.1%

Selling, general & administrative expen: 18,42: 28,01¢ 9,59¢ 52.1%
% of net revenu 8.5% 15.2%

Other operating expense (incon (3,800 — 3,80( -100.(%
% of net revenu -1.8% 0.C%

Amortization of deferred stock compensat 32¢ — (32¢) -100.(%
% of net revenu 0.1% 0.C%
Operating expenst $39,94: $63,37¢ $23,43! 58.71%
% of net revenu 19.2% 34.5%

Research and Development ExpendResearch and development expenses increasqutaseatage of net revenue to 19.1% from 12.0%,
while spending on research and development aetsviticreased $10.4 million, or 41.5%, to $35.4ianlfrom $25.0 million for the year
ended June 30, 2006 compared with the year ended3ly 2005. The primary contributor to the incesiasresearch and development
expenses was the inclusion of non-cash share-lzasepensation costs of $4.8 million as a resultdofping SFAS 123R on a modified
prospective basis at the beginning of fiscal 2@&luding non-cash share-based compensation cestarch and development expenses
increased approximately $5.6 million, or 22.3%naiily reflecting a $3.1 million increase in prdjigpending, a $1.9 million increase in
employee compensation costs resulting from additistaffing, increased base compensation relatedit@annual performance review
process, employee benefit costs, and recruitingscaad a $1.6 million increase in temporary ladrwd consulting costs, partially offset by a
$1.4 million reduction in incentive pay.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expensgglling, general, and administrative expenseeaszd as a percentage of net revenue to
15.2% from 8.9%, while the cost of selling, geneaald administrative activities increased $9.6iomll or 52.1%, to $28.0 million from
$18.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2006 canexb with the year ended June 30, 2005. The inelieaselling, general, and
administrative expenses reflected the inclusionaf-cash share-based compensation costs of $7i@mab a result of adopting SFAS 123R
on a modified prospective basis at the beginninfjsofl 2006. Excluding non-cash share-based cosgigm costs,
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selling, general, and administrative expenses asmé $1.9 million, or 10.2%, primarily relectin24 million increase in employee
compensation costs resulting from additional stgffincreased base compensation related to oumbpatformance review process,
employee benefit costs, and recruiting costs, 4 $B increase in outside commission costs, a $88lincrease in temporary labor and
consulting costs, and a $140,000 increase in t@wlrelated costs, partially offset by a $1.5iomllreduction in incentive pay.

Other operating expense (incomé&he year ended June 30, 2005 included the reckgpboe-time payment of $3.8 million for a cross
license agreement settled certain intellectual @riypdisputes with a competitor. The cross liceageement does not provide for any future
service obligations or commitments from us and aimstthe mutual releases of the parties’ respectaims.

Amortization of Deferred Stock CompensatiBeginning with fiscal 2006, we adopted SFAS 123R as a result ceased amortizing
deferred stock compensation. Accordingly, no amatitbn expense for deferred stock compensationre@sded for the year ended June 30,
2006 while $328,000 was recorded for the year eddee 30, 2005.

Operating IncomeWe generated operating income of $19.5 millionl@6% of net revenue, for the year ended June®5 2ompared
with $56.1 million, or 26.9% of net revenue, foetyear ended June 30, 2005. As discussed in tkedirg paragraphs, the decline in
operating income was primarily related to the daseein operating leverage resulting from the 11d@#ine in net revenue, lower gross
margin percentage, and higher operating expensehvitluded a $13.2 million increase in non-calsrebased compensations costs rel
to our adoption of SFAS 123R on a modified prosipedbasis at the beginning of fiscal 2006.

Interest Income/(Expenst

(in thousands)

2005 2006 $ Change % Chang
Interest incomt $ 3,37C $ 7,98¢ $ 4,61« 136.%
% of net revenu 1.6% 4.2%
Interest expens (1,14¢ (1,939 (794) 69.2%
% of net revenu -0.5% -1.1%
Net interest incom $ 2,22¢ $ 6,04F $ 3,82( 171.7%
% of net revenu 1.1% 3.2%

Interest Incomelnterest income was $8.0 million for the year endede 30, 2006 compared with $3.4 million for tearyended June 30,
2005. The $4.6 million increase in interest incaemulted from a combination of substantially higheerage interest rates and substantially
higher average invested cash balances. The incireaash balances was primarily the result of thiecash proceeds of $120.7 million
received from the issuance of our convertible sesudordinated notes in December 2004 aided by8%24dlion of net cash flows from
operations during fiscal 2006.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $1.9 million for the year dnlime 30, 2006 compared with $1.1 million for ykear ended
June 30, 2005. The $794,000 increase in intergwrese resulted from the combination of intereseagp and amortization of debt issuance
costs related to our convertible senior subordohatetes issued in December 2004. The annual delbitseost on the notes is approximately
$938,000, which excludes $860,000 of amortizatibdebt issuance costs.

Provision for Income Taxe

(in thousands)

2005 2006 $ Change % Change

Provision for income taxe $20,34 $11,82: $(8,52%) -41.%%
% of income before provision for income ta 34.%% 46.2%
% of net revenu 9.8% 6.4%
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The provision for income taxes for the yeadteshJune 30, 2006 was approximately $11.8 millomgared with $20.3 million for the year
ended June 30, 2005, reflecting significantly lowe-tax profit levels, partially offset by a sudnstially higher effective tax rate. The income
tax provision represented estimated federal, foredgd state taxes for the years ended June 3B,8D2006. The effective tax rate for the
year ended June 30, 2006 was approximately 46.206lianrged from the combined federal and stateitgt rate primarily as a result of t
impact of accounting for share-based compensatidrf@eign withholding taxes, partially offset byetimpact of the release of contingency
reserves, taxexempt interest income, and the benefit of reseanchdevelopment tax credits. The effective taa fat the year ended June !
2005 was approximately 34.9% and diverged fronctivebined federal and state statutory rate primaslya result of the impact of higher
income from lower taxed foreign operations, theask of contingency reserves, the benefit of rekesard development tax credits, and tax-
exempt interest income, partially offset by foreigithholding taxes and permanent taxable difference

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizebnefit upon expensing certain share-based awasixiated with our share-based
compensation plans, including nonqualified stockams and deferred stock unit awards, but undereotiaccounting standards, we cannot
recognize tax benefit currently for share-basedpmeation expenses associated with incentive sipitins and employee stock purchase
plan shares (qualified stock options). For quadifs¢ock options that vested after our adoptionFfAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit only in
the period when disqualifying dispositions of thelarlying stock occur, and for qualified stock ops that vested prior to our adoption of
SFAS 123R, the tax benefit is recorded directlgdditional paid-in capital. Tax benefit associatéth total share-based compensation was
approximately $2.9 million for the year ended J80e2006. Excluding the impact of shdr@sed compensation and the related tax benef
effective tax rate for the year ended June 30, 2008d have been 38.1%. Because we cannot recotrézax benefit for share-based
compensation expense associated with qualifiek siptions until the occurrence of future disqualfity dispositions of the underlying stock
and because a portion of that tax benefit may berded directly to additional paid-in capital, duture quarterly and annual effective tax
rates will be subject to greater volatility andnsequently, our ability to reasonably estimatefature quarterly and annual effective tax rates
is greatly diminished.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 compared with fiscal year ended June 30, 2004
Net Revenue

(in thousands)

2004 2005 $ Changt % Chang
PC application: $111,51: $122,87 $11,36¢ 10.2%
% of net revenu 83.1% 59.(%
Digital lifestyle product applicatior 21,76¢ 85,26: 63,49¢ 291.8%
% of net revenu 16.2% 41.(%
Net revenue $133,27¢ $208,13¢ $74,86: 56.2%

Net revenue was $208.1 million for the yeatezhJune 30, 2005 compared with $133.3 milliorttieryear ended June 30, 2004, an
increase of $74.9 million, or 56%. We identify trertical markets that our products serve as thegoedl computing market (“PC”) and the
digital lifestyle product markets. The increasaét revenue was primarily attributable to a $63ilion increase in digital lifestyle product
applications net revenue, which was $85.3 millionthe year ended June 30, 2005 compared with $&illi8n for the year ended June 30,
2004. Our digital lifestyle product revenue grevafiproximately 41% of net revenue for the year dnlime 30, 2005 from approximately
16% of net revenue for the year ended June 30,,2004arily driven by a combination of market grémand market share growth for HDD
portable digital music players. The increase intdidifestyle product applications net revenue \a primarily responsible for the increase
in total net revenue for the year ended June 305 20mpared with the year ended June 30, 2004rdrhaining $11.4 million increase in net
revenue was attributable to an increase in neintgy&om PC applications as a result of market tfioWwhe overall increase in net revenue
was driven by a 69% increase in total unit shipmemflecting the significant increase in digiiééstyle product unit shipments partially
offset by lower average selling prices resultimpfrchanges in product design mix and general cdtiveepricing pressure. Net revenue fr
PC dual pointing applications declined to 16% dfneeenue for the year ended June 30, 2005 compdtie®7% of net revenue for the year
ended June 30,
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2004. The decrease in net revenue from PC duatipgiapplications reflected the continuing shifiverd single pointing solutions, driven by
the combination of consumer and small business dérfa low-priced notebook computers relative tghhpriced notebook computers for
business use and the impact of competitive solstionhe dual pointing segment of the notebook mtark

Gross Margin.Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue wa%46r the year ended June 30, 2005 compared \RithP4 for the year
ended June 30, 2004. As each product we sellegiliur capacitive technologies in a design thahigue or specific to a customer’s
application, gross margins vary on a product-bydpot basis, making our gross margins product despggific and independent of the
vertical markets that our products serve. The im@neent in gross margin as a percentage of net veverimarily reflected the benefit of a
favorable product design mix, improved manufacyigields, and lower manufacturing costs, which wareen by the combination of our
continuing design and process improvement progamddower materials, assembly, and test costdaparnffset by lower average selling
prices resulting from general competitive pricimggsure.

Operating Expenses.

(in thousands)

2004 2005 $ Changt % Chang

Research and development expet $21,41¢ $24,99: $ 3,572 16.7%
% of net revenu 16.1% 12.(%

Selling, general & administrative expen: 13,57 18,42 4,852 35.8%
% of net revenu 10.2% 8.€%

Other operating expense (incon — (3,800 (3,800 *
% of net revenu 0.0% -1.8%

Amortization of deferred stock compensat 517 32¢ (18¢9) -36.€%
% of net revenu 0.4% 0.1%

Restructuring 432 — (432) -100.(%
% of net revenu 0.3% 0.C%
Operating expenst $35,93¢ $39,94: $ 4,00: 11.1%
% of net revenu 27.(% 19.2%

* not applicable

Research and Development Expendeaesearch and development expenses decreasgekeatage of net revenue to 12.0% from 16
while spending on research and development aetsviticreased $3.6 million, or 16.7%, to $25.0 wmllfrom $21.4 million, for the year
ended June 30, 2005 compared with the year endwd3ly 2004. The increase in research and develdmrpenses reflected primarily a
$3.4 million increase in employee compensationscretulting from additional staffing, increasedebesmpensation related to our annual
performance review process, higher incentive pag,ather personnel related costs. The increasesiarch and development expenses also
reflected increased expensed equipment costs ghdriravel related costs, partially offset by lowatside services costs.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expensgglling, general, and administrative expensesedsed as a percentage of net revenue to
8.9% from 10.2%, while spending on selling, geneaatl administrative activities increased approxatya$4.9 million, or 35.8%, to
$18.4 million from $13.6 million, for the year erttldune 30, 2005 compared with the year ended Jur084. The increase in selling,
general, and administrative expenses reflectepproaimately $2.0 million increase in employee cemgation costs resulting from
additional staffing, increased base compensatilated to our annual performance review processhagtter incentive pay. Increased
corporate governance costs in connection with Sed@xley Act compliance, increased legal fees, antidnigravel related costs contribui
$936,000, $662,000, and $474,000, respectivelghaancrease in selling, general, and administeagixpenses.

Other operating expense (incomBlring the year ended June 30, 2005, we enteredhitoss license agreement with a competitor. The
cross licenses are worldwide, non-exclusive, nandferable, and royaltiyee. The cross license agreement settles certtgleictual propert
claims of the parties and contains mutual releates
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the intellectual property claims of the partiescémnection with the cross license agreement, wihdes not provide for any future service
obligations or commitments from us, we receivesha-tme payment of $3.8 million, which is includasl other operating expense (income).

Amortization of Deferred Stock Compensatibne year ended June 30, 2005 included amortizatipense for deferred stock
compensation of $328,000 compared with $517,006hyear ended June 30, 2004. Upon the adopti68f123R in the first quarter of
fiscal 2006, we ceased amortizing deferred stockpemsation, as FAS 123R required us to expensk sfiions based on grant date fair
value.

Restructuringln June 2003, we completed the acquisition of N8Mtonnection with the acquisition of NSM, we idéet duplicate
operational positions at our San Jose and Taiweatils, resulting in a $432,000 restructuring ghan the first quarter of fiscal 2004,
consisting primarily of severance costs for terrredeemployees.

Operating IncomeWe generated operating income of $56.1 millior2®©% of net revenue, for the year ended June®¥h 2ompared
with $20.1 million, or 15.0% of net revenue, foetyear ended June 30, 2004. As discussed in tkedirg paragraphs, the improvement in
operating income was primarily related to the iasexl operating leverage resulting from the 56%ems® in net revenue as both research anc
development and selling, general, and administakpenses declined as a percentage of net reveambjned with the $3.8 million
intellectual property claim settlement, and thehkiggross margin percentage.

Interest Income/(Expenst
(in thousands)

2004 2005 $ Change % Chang
Interest incomt $ 967 $ 3,37( $ 2,40: 248.5%
% of net revenu 0.7% 1.€%
Interest expens (139 (2,14¢ (2,01)) 754.5%
% of net revenu -0.1% -0.€%
Net interest incom $ 83c $ 2,22¢ $ 1,397 167.1%
% of net revenu 0.6% 1.1%

Interest Incomelnterest income was $3.4 million for the year endede 30, 2005 compared with $1.0 million for tearyended June 30,
2004. The $2.4 million increase in interest incaemulted from a combination of substantially higheerage invested cash balances and
higher average interest rates. The increase inlz@sinces was primarily the result of the net gaskseeds of $120.7 million received from
the issuance of our convertible senior subordinatgds in December 2004 aided by $42.5 millionetfaash flows from operations.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $1.1 million for the year dnlime 30, 2005 compared with $134,000 for the grded June 30,
2004. The $1.0 million increase in interest expeeselted from the combination of interest expearse: amortization of debt issuance costs
related to our convertible senior subordinated sie#sued in December 2004. The annual debt seresteon the notes is approximately
$938,000, exclusive of amortization of debt iss@arwsts.

Provision for Income Taxe

(in thousands)

2004 2005 $ Change % Change

Provision for income taxe $7,93¢ $20,341 $12,41: 156.5%
% of income before provision for income ta 37.9% 34.%%
% of net revenu 6.C% 9.8%

The provision for income taxes for the yeadezhJune 30, 2005 was $20.3 million compared wit® $illion for the year ended June 30,
2004, reflecting the higher pre-tax profit levéltie income tax provision
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represented estimated federal, foreign, and staestfor the years ended June 30, 2005 and 20@4effdctive tax rate for the year ended
June 30, 2005 was approximately 34.9% and diveftgad the combined federal and state statutorypetearily as a result of the impact of
higher income from lower taxed foreign operatidhs, release of contingency reserves, the benefésgfarch and development tax credits,
and tax-exempt interest income, partially offsefdngign withholding taxes and permanent taxabiedinces. The effective tax rate for the
year ended June 30, 2004 was approximately 37.@P4igerged from the combined federal and stateitsit rate primarily due to tt
benefit of research and development tax creditd tax exempt interest income, partially offset biyev permanent taxable differences.

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our unauditetderly results of operations for the eight quarte the twoyear period ended June 30, 2(
You should read the following table in conjunctiwith the financial statements and related notesadoed elsewhere in this report. We have
prepared this unaudited information on the saméstassour audited financial statements. This tatdkides all adjustments, consisting only
of normal recurring adjustments, that we considaressary for a fair presentation of our financasifion and operating results for the
quarters presented. Past operating results amecessarily indicative of future operating perfonee accordingly, you should not draw any
conclusions about our future results from the tssofl operations for any quarter presented.

Three Months Ended

Septembe Decembe March June Septembe Decembe March June
2004 2004 2005 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006
(unaudited)
(in thousands)
Net revenue $ 38,09 $56,54: $56,66¢ $56,83 $ 51,72¢ $48,55¢ $40,36¢ $43,917
Cost of revenue(1 20,89¢ 30,15¢ 30,48: 30,55t 28,05: 26,38¢ 22,257 25,01(
Gross margir 17,19: 26,38¢ 26,187 26,28: 23,67: 22,17: 18,10¢ 18,90:
Operating expense
Research and
development(1 6,04: 6,24¢ 6,157 6,54 8,28¢ 8,34¢ 9,10¢€ 9,61¢€
Selling, general, and
administrative(1 3,76¢€ 4,38¢ 4,937 5,33: 6,72¢ 6,91 6,952 7,42¢
Other operating expens
(income) (2) — — — (3,800 — — — —
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation( 10z 85 71 70 — — — —
Total operating
expense: 9,911 10,72: 11,16¢ 8,14¢ 15,01% 15,25¢ 16,05¢ 17,04
Operating incom:i 7,281 15,66 15,02: 18,137 8,65¢ 6,91 2,05( 1,86(
Interest incomt 26€ 397 1,11¢ 1,587 1,551 1,901 2,17¢ 2,35:
Interest expens (26) (157) (489) (48E) (484) (48E) (48E) (48E)
Income before income tax 7,52% 15,91 15,65 19,23¢ 9,722 8,32¢ 3,744 3,72¢
Provision for income taxe 3,092 6,18¢ 3,98:¢ 7,08: 4,21( 3,562¢ 2,121 1,96¢
Net income $ 4,431 $ 9,72¢ $11,67¢ $12,15¢ $ 5,51 $ 4,80z $ 1,62 $ 1,76:
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 044 $ 041 $ 0.2 $ 0.2 $ 0.07 $ 0.07
Diluted $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3: $ 0.3¢ $ 041 $ 0.2 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07

Shares used in computing
net income per shar
Basic 25,09¢ 25,81¢ 26,31t 25,71% 24,76¢ 24,29¢ 24,737 25,02¢

Diluted 27,69¢ 29,37: 31,46/ 30,31¢ 29,03¢ 28,78 29,20! 29,26

(1) Excludes the amortization of deferred stock comatais as follows

Cost of revenu $ 4 $ 3 $ 3 $ 2 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Research and developmt 8 — — — — — — —
Selling, general, and
administrative 90 82 68 68 — — — —
Amortization of deferred
stock compensatia $ 10z $ 85 $ 71 $ 70 $ — $ — $  — $  —

(2) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, amered into a cross license agreement with a ctitmpavhich is non-exclusive, non-
transferable, and royaltiyee. The cross license agreement settled certthidctual property claims and contained mutulelases of th
intellectual property claims of the parties. In peation with the cross license agreement, whicls am provide for any future service
obligations or commitments from us, we receiveae-time payment which is included as other operatixgease (income

(3) Beginning with fiscal 2006, we adopted SFASR and as a result ceased amortizing deferrelt stbopensation. Accordingly, no
amortization of deferred stock compensation wasross for the year ended June 30, 2
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash, cash equivalents, and short-termstmvents were $245.2 million as of June 30, 2006pewed with $228.9 million as of
June 30, 2005. The increase in cash, cash equisaierd short-term investments was primarily attable to cash generated from operating
activities of $24.8 million and proceeds from stagkion exercises of $8.5 million, partially offdst $18.8 million of cash used for the
repurchase of approximately 1.2 million shareswf@mmon stock.

Cash Flows from Operating ActivitieBuring the year ended June 30, 2006, the net aastided by operating activities of $24.8 million
was primarily attributable to net income of $13.iflion, plus tax benefit from stock options of $61llion and adjustments for non-cash
charges, including share-based compensation cb$i3® million and depreciation, deferred taxe®s] amortization of debt issuance costs
totaling $4.0 million, partially offset by a netcirease in operating assets and liabilities of $ltlon and excess tax benefit from share-based
compensation of $5.2 million. The net increaseparating assets and liabilities related primadhatreduction of income taxes payable of
$6.8 million. During the year ended June 30, 2@0& net cash provided by operating activities d.$4million was primarily attributable to
net income of $38.0 million, plus tax benefit fratock options of $10.0 million, and adjustmentsrfon-cash charges for depreciation,
amortization of deferred stock compensation, arpatitin of debt issuance costs, and deferred taxelng $3.7 million, partially offset by a
net increase in operating assets and liabilitiéd%f million. During the year ended June 30, 20@4 cash generated from operating activ
was $14.8 million, primarily reflecting our net mmme of $13.0 million, plus tax benefit from stogitions of $4.2 million, and adjustments
non-cash charges for depreciation, amortizatiotedérred stock compensation, and deferred taxakrtgt$1.0 million, partially offset by a
net increase in operating assets and liabilitid3o4 million.

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitieQur investing activities principally relate to pbeases, sales, and maturities of government-backed
securities, investment-grade fixed income instruisieand auction rate securities and used net caghd years ended June 30, 2004, 2005,
and 2006 of $2.1 million, $137.7 million, and $58#lion, respectively. Net cash used in investamivities during fiscal 2006 consisted of
purchases of $250.9 million for short-term investiseand $3.1 million for purchases of capital asgedrtially offset by proceeds from sales
and maturities of $200.8 million for short-term @stments. Net cash used in investing activitiegnduiscal 2005 consisted of purchases of
$221.4 million for shorterm investments, $13.8 million for purchases ¢fited assets, and a $4.0 million investment in ovénc., partially
offset by proceeds from sales and maturities ofLl$& énillion for short-term investments. Our purabssf capital assets included our 70,000
square-foot building located in Santa Clara, Catii@ We used approximately $11.7 million of cashthe purchase and reconfiguration of
the building and moved our San Jose operationglimmew facility in July 2005. Net cash used weisting activities during fiscal 2004
consisted of purchases of $21.2 million for shertn investments and $908,000 for purchases ofalagssets, largely offset by proceeds f
sales and maturities of $19.7 million for shortatdnvestments and the settlement of $240,000 ¢ficted cash.

Cash Flows from Financing ActivitieNet cash provided by (used in) financing activifi@sthe years ended June 30, 2004, 2005, and
2006 was $5.2 million, $107.9 million, and $(5.1jlion, respectively. Our financing activities ftre year ended June 30, 2006 primarily
related to $18.8 million for the purchase of oumooon stock on the open market, partially offse$Bys million of proceeds from common
stock issued under share-based compensation pidr5a2 million from excess tax benefit from shhesed compensation. Our financing
activities for the year ended June 30, 2005 relptadarily to proceeds from the issuance of $12b6illon of convertible senior subordinated
notes and $8.4 million of proceeds from commonlstssued under our stock option plans and emplsy@zek purchase plan, partially offset
by $21.2 million for the purchase of our commorckton the open market and $4.3 million of debtasme costs. Our financing activities for
the year ended June 30, 2004 were primarily relatguioceeds from common stock issued under ogkgiption plans and employee stock
purchase plan, and repayment of notes receivatae $tockholders, less payments made on capita Ead equipment financing obligations.

Common Stock Repurchase ProgrémOctober 2005, our board of directors authoriaeddditional $40 million for our stock repurchase
program, raising the aggregate authorization lev&80 million. The program authorizes us to repase our common stock on the open
market or in privately negotiated transactions deligg upon market conditions and other factors. fitmaber of shares purchased and the
timing of purchases is based on the level of oshdmlances, general business and market conditiodsther factors, including alternative
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investment opportunities. Common stock repurchasetér this program is held as treasury stock. Rseh under this program totaled
2,306,100 shares through June 30, 2006 for an gagreost of $40.0 million, or an average costlof.$4 per share. The authorization for
remaining $40.0 million available under the stoggurchase program will expire in October 2007. 8gbent to June 30, 2006, we
repurchased 215,000 shares for $4.6 million, cnarage cost of $21.45 per share.

Bank Credit Facility We currently maintain a $15 million working capitise of credit with Silicon Valley Bank. The Siba Valley Ban}
revolving line of credit, which expires on Noveml2&, 2006, has an interest rate equal to Silicailey@ank’s prime lending rate and
provides for a security interest in substantiallyohour assets. We had not borrowed any amoumteuthe line of credit as of June 30, 2006.

Convertible Senior Subordinated NotBsiring December 2004, we issued $125 million 06@6/Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
maturing on December 1, 2024 (the “Notes”) in age offering pursuant to Rule 144A under the S&earAct of 1933, as amended. The
Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.75% per annwyahba on December 1 and June 1 of each year. Weayiladditional contingent interest
the Notes if the average trading price of the N&test or above 120% of the principal amount ofhuwges for a specified period beginning
with the six-month period commencing December D20 he amount of contingent interest payable er\thtes with respect to a six-month
period, for which contingent interest applies, wijual 0.375% per annum of the average trading fithe Notes for a specified five trading-
day period preceding such six-month period.

The Notes are convertible into 2,473,975 shafeur common stock, subject to adjustment itageevents. The denominator of the
diluted net income per share calculation incluthesvteighted average effect of the 2,473,975 shdresmmon stock issuable upon
conversion of the Notes. Through November 30, 2098n the occurrence of a fundamental change @sedeih the indenture governing the
Notes, we could potentially be obligated to isspeai1989,587 additional shares, or a total of 3,863 shares of common stock. Th
additional shares, contingently issuable upon dduamental change, are not included in the calculaifaliluted net income per share.

The Notes may be converted (1) if, during ealendar quarter commencing after December 31,,28@4ast reported sale price of our
common stock for at least 20 trading days in théopeof 30 consecutive trading days ending on &s¢ trading day of the preceding calendar
quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of thdigadge conversion price on such last trading daypn or after January 1, 2020; (3) if we
have called the Notes for redemption; or (4) dupngscribed periods, upon the occurrence of sgecdorporate transactions or fundamental
changes. On or after December 1, 2009, we may neflecash all or a portion of the notes at a rgotgon price of 100% of the principal
amount of the notes plus accrued and unpaid irtteénetuding contingent interest and additionakneist, if any. Noteholders have the right to
require us to repurchase all or a portion of theies for cash on December 1, 2009, December 4, 201 December 1, 2019 at a price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes tgbechased plus accrued and unpaid interest, intductintingent interest and additional
interest, if any. Upon conversion of the Notedjén of delivering common stock, we may, at ourcdi$ion, deliver cash or a combination of
cash and common stock. As of June 30, 2006, notteeafonditions for conversion or redemption of llaes had occurred.

The Notes are unsecured senior subordinatigghtibns and rank junior in right of payment tb @ our existing and future senior
indebtedness, equal in right of payment with albof existing and future indebtedness or othegatltilbns that are not, by their terms, either
senior or subordinated to the Notes, includingdrdebt and other general unsecured obligationgithabt constitute senior or subordinated
indebtedness, and senior in right of payment tofadlur future indebtedness that, by its termspisordinated to the Notes. There are no
financial covenants in the Notes.

Note Payable to a Related Parfyhe long-term note payable of $1.5 million to NaabSemiconductor Corporation (National) due
August 2007 represents limited-recourse debt the¢tured solely by a portion of our stockholdiimgSoveon, Inc., or Foveon, in which
National is also an investor. We do not anticipatking any payments under the lim-recourse loan with National, either prior to or at
maturity, unless Foveon is participating in a ljty event, such as an initial public offering tf equity securities or a merger, through which
we would receive amounts in excess of our $1.5anillong-term note payable plus the associatediaccinterest.
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$100 Million Shelf RegistratioWe have registered an aggregate of $100 milliocoaimon stock and preferred stock for issuance in
connection with acquisitions, which shares gengnaill be freely tradeable after their issuance emBule 145 of the Securities Act unless
held by an affiliate of the acquired company, inehhcase such shares will be subject to the volantemanner of sale restrictions of
Rule 144.

$125 Million Shelf RegistrationWe have registered an aggregate of $125 millfayuo 0.75% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2024 and the common stock issuable upon cdaoneskthe notes. The shares issued upon conveggparally will be freely tradeable
after their issuance unless held by an affiliatayhich case such shares will be subject to themeland manner of sale restrictions of
Rule 144.

Liquidity and Capital Resource®/e believe our existing cash, cash equivalents sapd-term investment balances and anticipateld cas
flows from operating activities will be sufficietd meet our working capital and other cash requiresiover the course of at least the next
12 months. Our future capital requirements will elggh on many factors, including our rate of revegigavth or decline, the timing and extent
of spending to support product development effaasts related to protecting our intellectual propehe expansion of sales and marketing
activities, the timing of introductions of new praris and enhancements to existing products, ths twensure access to adequate
manufacturing capacity, the continuing market atanege of our product solutions, our common stogkirehase program, and the amount
and timing of our investments in, or acquisitiofisather technologies or companies. Further equitgtebt financing may not be available to
us on acceptable terms or at all. If sufficientdsiare not available or are not available on aetégpterms, our ability to take advantage of
unexpected business opportunities or to respordrtetitive pressures could be limited or sevecelystrained.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of material contractual obligations and commerctahmitments as of June 30, 2006 (in
millions):

Payments due by peric

Less thar 1-3 35 More thar

Contractual Obligation Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years

Convertible Senior Subordinated No $ 12t $ — $ — $ — $ 12t
Note payable 2 — 2 — —
Building lease: 2 1 1 — —
Total $ 12¢ $ 1 $ 3 $  — $ 12t

Our Convertible Senior Subordinated Notesudela provision allowing the noteholders to requsgeat the noteholders’ discretion, to
repurchase their notes at a redemption price o%6Dthe principal amount of the notes plus accraied unpaid interest (including
contingent interest and additional interest, ifJaoy December 1, 2009, December 1, 2014, and Dezeint2019 and in the event of a
fundamental change as described in the indenturergimg the notes. The early repayment of the nistast reflected in the above schedule,
but if all the noteholders elected to exerciserthights to require us to repurchase their noteBecember 1, 2009, then our contractual
obligations for the three-to-five year period wouldrease by $125 million with a corresponding dase in amounts due in more than five
years.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, arrangementgher relationships with unconsolidated erditizat are reasonably likely to affect our
liquidity or capital resources. We have no spegiapose or limited purpose entities that provideballance sheet financing, liquidity, or
market or credit risk support; engage in leasirglding, research and development services; or cglaionships that expose us to liability
that is not reflected in the financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting StandaBoard issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting ChangesEaror Corrections,” (“SFAS
154"). SFAS 154, which replaces APB Opinion No. ‘Zxcounting Changes,” (“APB

46




Table of Contents

20" and SFAS No. 3 “Reporting Accounting Changetierim Financial Statements,” applies to allurghry changes in accounting
principle and changes the requirements for accogritir and reporting of a change in accountinggipie. APB 20 previously required that
most voluntary changes in accounting principledmognized by including in net income of the perddhange a cumulative effect of
changing to the new accounting principle, while SF¥64 requires retrospective application to prenigas’ financial statements of a
voluntary change in accounting principle, unless itmpracticable. SFAS 154 enhances the consigtefinancial information between
periods. SFAS 154 will be effective beginning thistfquarter of our fiscal 2007. The adoption 0ASF154 will not have a material impact
our financial position, results of operations, aslt flows.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadsi@oard issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Acdmmfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes
— an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, "ItE8") which clarifies the accounting for uncertgi in income taxes recognized in an
entity’s financial statements in accordance witiASHNo. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFASAY FIN 48 is designed to reduce
the disparity in accounting treatment for uncertapositions resulting from diverse interpretati@f SFAS 109 among companies. FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureattitiute for financial statement disclosure of pasitions taken or expected to be take
a tax return. FIN 48 is effective beginning in diust quarter of fiscal 2008. We are currently exding the requirements of FIN 48 and have
not yet determined the impact of adoption, if amy,our financial position, results of operationscash flows.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Interest rate risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes iarggt rates relates primarily to our cash, casivatpnts, and short-term investments. Due to
the conservative nature of our investment portfalibich is predicated on capital preservation amuidity and consists primarily of
government-backed securities and investment-grstaiments, we would not expect the fair valuewfiovestments to be significantly
affected by changes in market interest rates; hewur interest income will fluctuate with chandgresnarket interest rates. We do not use
our investment portfolio for trading or other splative purposes.

The table below presents principal amountsrateded weighted average interest rates by yearaddirity for our investment portfolio and
debt obligations as of June 30, 2006 (in thousaextept for average interest rates):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Assets
Cash equivalent- variable rate
Money Market $ 31,27: $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 31,27: $ 31,27:
Average interest rai 4.2% — — — — — 4.2%
Cash equivalent- fixed rate
Commercial Pape $ 3,99 $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 3,992 $ 3,991
Average interest raf 5.1% — — — — — 5.1%
Total cash equivalen $ 35,26¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 35,26¢ $ 35,26¢
Average interest raf 4.2% — — — — — 4.2%
Short-term investments —
variable rate
Auction rate preferre $ 35,00( $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 35,00( $ 35,00(
Average interest rai 5.C% — — — — — 5.C%
Asset backed securiti $ 21,70( $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 21,70( $ 21,70(
Average interest raf 5.2% — — — — — 5.2%
Municipal securitie: $ 78,85¢ $ — $— $— $— $ — $ 78,85¢ $ 78,85¢
Average interest rai 3.€% — — — — — 3.2%
Short-term investments —
fixed rate
U.S. agencie $ 6,000 $10,00( $— $— $— $ — $ 16,00( $ 15,81
Average interest raf 4.C 4.8% — — — — 4.5%
Municipal securitie: $ 35,76: $19,59: $— $— $— $ — $ 55,36( $ 55,08¢
Average interest raf 2.8% 3.2% — — — — 3.C%
Total shor-term investment $177,31¢ $29,597 $— $— $— $ — $206,91! $206,45:
Average interest rai 4.1% 3.8% — — — — 4.C%
Liabilities
Convertible Senior Subordinate
Notes
Fixed rate amount $ — $ — $125,00( $125,00( $102,65¢

T
T
B

Average interest rai — — 0.75% 0.75%
Note payable to related party
Fixed rate amount $ = $ 1,50¢

Average interest rai — 6.C%

— $ 1,50C $ 1,50C
— 6.C%

Our Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes lefated coupon interest rate of 0.75% and matuf@écember 2024. Accordingly, we are
not exposed to changes in interest rates relatedrttbong-term debt instruments. The notes ardisied on any securities exchange or
included in any automated quotation system. Thevilue of the notes may increase or decreaseaftows reasons, including fluctuations in
the market price of our common stock, fluctuationmarket interest rates, and fluctuations in gaheconomic conditions. The principal and
carrying amount of the notes at June 30, 2006 a5 $illion and the fair value of the notes wasragpnately $102.7 million based on
trading prices.

7
7
B

Our notes include a provision allowing theatatiders to require us, at the noteholddistretion, to repurchase their notes at a redem
price of 100% of the principal amount of the ngikss accrued and unpaid
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interest (including contingent interest and additildinterest, if any) on December 1, 2009, Decenib@014, and December 1, 2019 and in
the event of a fundamental change as describdtkimtienture governing the notes. The early repaywfethe notes is not reflected in the
preceding schedule, but if all the noteholderstetbto exercise their rights to require us to repase their notes on December 1, 2009, then
maturities in the 2010 column would increase by3dgllion and maturities in the thereafter columauld decrease by a corresponding
amount.

There have been no significant changes imthtirity dates and average interest rates forrogstment portfolio and debt obligations
subsequent to June 30, 2006.

Foreign currency exchange risk

All of our revenue, cost of revenue, and egesnexcept those expenses directly related tmoakoperations in Asia/Pacific and Europe,
are denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, weshralatively little exposure to foreign currencychange risks and foreign exchange losses
have been immaterial to date. We do not curremttgreinto forward-exchange contracts to hedge exgodenominated in foreign currencies
or any other derivative financial instruments f@ding or speculative purposes. In the futureyif @perations change and we determine that
our foreign exchange exposure has increased, wecorejder entering into hedging transactions tagaié such risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the financial statemémsteports of our independent registered pulgiiwanting firm, and the notes thereto
commencing at page F-1 of this report, which finahstatements, reports, and notes are incorpotaesin by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Proderes

Under the supervision and with the participatdf our management, including our Chief Execu@fficer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofitfmgn and operation of our disclosure controts@ocedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchang®f\t934). Based on this evaluation, our Chief Exige Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as of June 30, 2006, concluded that oscldsure controls and procedures (as defined irRLBa-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effectivertsuee that information required to be disclosedibyn this report was recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodgi§ee in Securities and Exchange Commission rates forms for this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishimymaintaining adequate internal control ovearfiial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended). Under the supervisionaatidthe participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaarabf the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting basedtloa framework innternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisd@sed on our evaluation under the framewotkiernal Control—Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our internal cbotrer financial reporting was effective as of J@fe 2006. Our assessment of
the effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@l reporting as of June 30, 2006 has been aubitdPMG LLP, an independent registe
public accounting firm, as stated in its reporfuded herein on page F-3.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal contr@rdinancial reporting during our most recent flapaarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intercantrol over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Execu@fficer and Chief Financial Officer, does not exipéhat our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal controls will preverteator and all fraud. A control system, no matiew well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratdttb objectives of the control system are metthen, the design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource conssaarid the benefits of controls must be consideziadive to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidrcontrols can provide absolute assurance thaballrol issues, misstatements, errors, and
instances of fraud, if any, within our company haeen or will be prevented or detected. Furthéerimal controls may become inadequate as
a result of changes in conditions, or through thedoration of the degree of compliance with peBoor procedures.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

During the fourth quarter we entered into maeimnification Agreement with Tom Tiernan when teswkired as our Senior Vice President
and General Manager. There were no other itemsrieguieporting on Form 8-K that were not reportedForm 8-K during the fourth
quarter of the year covered by this Form 10-K.
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PART 1lI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this Item relattagdirectors of our company is incorporated helgimeference to the definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14hefExchange Act for our 2006 Annual Meeting afcgholders. The information required
by this Item relating to our executive officersrisluded in Item 1, “Business — Executive Officérs.

We have adopted a code of ethics that apiesr principal executive officer, principal fineial officer, and other senior accounting
personnel. The “Code of Ethics for the CEO and &drinancial Officers” is located on our websitenatw.synaptics.com in the Investor
Relations section under Corporate Governance.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requiremenler Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding any amendnenbr waiver from, a provision of this
code of ethics by posting such information on oabsite, at the address and location specified above

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive Prigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Scheths

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Index togotdated Financial Statements on pa-1 of this report

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: Schedule I, Valnaind Qualifying Accounts is set forth on par1 of this report

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (1
3.2 Bylaws (1)
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate (
4.1 Indenture dated December 7, 2004 by and betweeretfigtrant and American Stock Transfer & Trust @any (6)
4.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated December 74 290and among the registrant, Bear, Stearns &r@o, and Credit Suisse

10.1
10.2
10.3(a
10.3(b’
10.4
10.5
10.6(a
10.6(b’
10.6(c
10.7(a
10.7(b’
10.€

10.1Z

10.1<
10.1¢
10.1¢

10.1¢

10.17

First Boston LLC (6

1986 Incentive Stock Option Plan and form of ggreement (3

1986 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and form ofigagreement (:

1996 Stock Option Plan (.

Form of grant agreements for 1996 Stock Option P23

2000 U.K. Approved St-Plan to the 1996 Stock Option Plan and form of gegmeement (3

2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and form ohgemreement (-

Amended and Restated 2001 Incentive Compensatam(B)

Form of grant agreements for Amended and Restdiedi Bicentive Compensation Plan

Form of deferred stock award agreement for AmeradetiRestated 2001 Incentive Compensation P
Corrected Amended and Restated 2001 Employee $taahase Plan (as amended through February 20) 22X
2001 Employee Stock Purchase -Plan for U.K. Employees (

401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (¢

Subordinated Secured Non-Recourse Promissory Naéel dhugust 12, 1997 executed by the registrafaviaor of National
Semiconductor Corporation (

Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agresnietween the registrant and Federico Faggil
Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreenitween the registrant and Francis F. Let
Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agrernitween the registrant and Russell J. Knitte

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of Augus2B801 between Silicon Valley Bank and the registeendamended through
November 30, 2004 (

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into fidamuary 28, 2002 with the following directors anebcutive officers:
Federico Faggin, Francis F. Lee, Donald E. Kirbys$ell J. Knittel, Shawn P. Day, David T. McKinndimomas D. Spade,
William T. Stacy, Keith B. Geeslin, and Richard3anquini, as of April 23, 2002 with W. Ronald VaelDas of June 26, 2004
with Clark F. Foy as of September 29, 2005 witlirdgfD. Buchanan, and as of March 28, 2006 withras J. Tiernan (1



10.1¢ Severance Policy for Principal Executive Offices}
10.1¢ Change of Control and Severance Agreement entetedy Francis F. Lee as of April 22, 2003

10.2C Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreemasted into by Donald E. Kirby and Russell J. Kalitis of April 22, 2003
®)

10.21 Purchase Agreement dated December 1, 2004 by aodgatine registrant, Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., aretli€ Suisse First
Boston LLC (6)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit

10.2z Settlement Agreement dated March 31, 2005 by arahgrthe registrant, Alps Electric Co. Ltd., andqDi Corporation (8) *
10.2: Change of Control Severance Agreement enteredinfthomas Tiernan as of April 3, 2006 (-

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg

21 List of Subsidiarie!

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP, independent registered pudndicounting firrr

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a)/15«14(a)

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rule 13-14(a)/15«14(a)

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Oéft

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Offit

1)
(2)
(3)

(4)
()

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

*%

Incorporated by reference to the registraittem 10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 2801iled with the SEC on February 21,
2002.

Incorporated by reference to the registraitiem 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2@84ijled with the SEC on September 12,
2002.

Incorporated by reference to the registrargfgstration statement on Form S-1 (Registration 383-56026) as filed with the SEC
January 22, 2002 and declared effective Januar(@®.

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1+Q for the quarter ended December 28, 2002, as\ildtdSEC on February 6, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the registraiRttem 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2@84ijled with the SEC on September 12,
2003.

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 3, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 1, 200
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on January 23, 2C
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 3, 200
Filed herewith

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted guant to a confidential treatment request thatgvasted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Rule -2 of the Exchange Ac
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, #gistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.
SYNAPTICS INCORPORATEL

Date September 6, 20! By: /s/ Francis F. Le

Francis F. Let
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidmolv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Francis F. Le President, Chief Executive Officer, and DirectonirBipal September 6, 20C
Francis F. Le Executive Officer)
/sl Russell J. Knittel Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, €hi September 6, 20C

Administrative Officer, Secretary and Treasureir{Epal

Russell J. Knittel Financial and Accounting Office

/s/ Federico Faggi Chairman of the Boar September 6, 20C
Federico Faggil

/sl Jeffrey D. Buchang Director September 6, 20C
Jeffrey D. Buchana

/sl Keith B. Geeslit Director September 6, 20C
Keith B. Geeslir

/s/ Richard L. Sanquir Director September 6, 20C
Richard L. Sanquir

/s/ W. Ronald Van De Director September 6, 20C
W. Ronald Van Del
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidasdhce sheets of Synaptics Incorporated and salisil (the Company) as of June 30,
2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated statsmé&income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensicome, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended June(®®.2n connection with our audits of the consdkdéfinancial statements, we also have
audited the financial statement schedule listatiénindex at Item 15(a)(2). These consolidatediire statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to express an opinin these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule basedraaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wittsthadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovéaidgpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on lasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financialtstaents referred to above present fairly, in altarial respects, the financial position of
Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiaries as of 30n2005 and 2006, and the results of their ogmratand their cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended June 30, 2006, in conformity WwitS. generally accepted accounting principlesoAh our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when consitlier relation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, presents f
in all material respects, the information set fdatrein.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidatedrfiaial statements, the Company adopted SFAS N¢R)2Ehare-Based Paymengpplying
the modified prospective method at the beginninfisofl year 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting as of June 30, 2006, basedriaria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissio@$0), and our report dated
September 6, 2006 expressed an unqualified oporiomanagement’s assessment of, and the effectematpn of, internal control over
financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
September 6, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited management’s assessmentgattin Management’s Report on Internal Control dvieancial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A, that Synaptics Incorporated (the Gany) maintained effective internal control ovexaiicial reporting as of June 30, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Contraitegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sgrimg Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageisieasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriatecontrol over financial reporting. Our respduildy is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on théiedfeess of the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigltard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoraslerance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttlegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsats that could have a material effect on then@iizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment yha@ics Incorporated maintained effective inteawitrol over financial reporting as of
June 30, 20086, is fairly stated, in all materisjpects, based on criteria established in InterpatitGl—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Synepincorporated maintained, in
material respects, effective internal control dirggncial reporting as of June 30, 2006, basedritaria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiing Organizations of the Treadway CommissioD$0).

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Synaptics Incompa@atd subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 and 2@@&ha related consolidated statemen
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensivenmgocand cash flows for each of the years in theetlyear period ended June 30, 2006,
and our report dated September 6, 2006 expressedcualified opinion on those consolidated finahstatements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
September 6, 2006
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value and share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2005 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 72,23. $ 38,72«
Shor-term investment 156,68¢ 206,45
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $165%t#®D at June 30, 2005 and 2006, respecti 33,79( 34,03¢
Inventories 7,731 10,01(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,04¢ 3,407
Total current asse 273,48¢ 292,62
Property and equipment, r 14,61¢ 16,03¢
Goodwill 1,927 1,927
Other asset 21,17¢ 20,82¢
$311,20! $331,42:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 12,39( $ 16,54:
Accrued compensatic 5,63¢ 4,84:
Income taxes payab 14,867 8,07¢
Other accrued liabilitie 5,35: 5,37
Total current liabilities 38,24¢ 34,83¢
Note payable to a related pa 1,50( 1,50C
Other liabilities 1,79 3,04(
Convertible senior subordinated no 125,00( 125,00(
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock
$0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorizedhates issued and outstand — —
Common stock
$0.001 par value; 60,000,000 shares authorized126447 and 27,462,125 shares issued at June 30,

2005 and 2006, respective 26 27
Additional paic-in capital 106,68t 134,21
Less: 1,139,000 and 2,306,100 common treasury sharne 30, 2005 and 2006, respectively, at (21,180 (39,999
Deferred stock compensati (303) —
Accumulated other comprehensive | (129 (464)
Retained earning 59,56( 73,26

Total stockholder equity 144,66( 167,04:
$311,20! $331,42:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Net revenu
Cost of revenu())

Gross margir
Operating expense

Research and developmd)®)
Selling, general, and administrati1)(@
Other operating expense (incon

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years ended June 30,

2004

$133,27¢
77,24
56,03:

Amortization of deferred stock compensat

Restructuring
Total operating expens

Operating incom:
Interest incom
Interest expens

Income before provision for income tay

Provision for income taxe
Net income

Net income per shar
Basic

Diluted

Shares used in computing net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

21,41¢
13,57
517
432

35,93¢

(139

$

$
$

20,09:¢
967

20,92¢
7,934

12,99:

0.5t

0.4¢

24,41¢
27,10¢

(1) Amounts include sha-based compensation costs as follo

Cost of revenu
Research and developmt
Selling, general, and administrati

@ B A

(2) Amounts exclude amortization of deferred stock cengation as follows

Cost of revenu
Research and developmt
Selling, general, and administrati

B A

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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40€

2005

$208,13¢
112,09(
96,04¢

24,99:

18,42:

(3,800)
32¢

39,94:

56,107
3,37(C

(1,145

58,33
20,34

$

$
$

37,98t

1.4¢

1.3C

25,73¢
29,76!

@ B AP

B A

12

30¢

2006
$184,55°
101,70«
82,85!

35,35¢
28,01¢

63,37¢

19,47¢
7,98¢

(1,939
25,52:
11,82:

$ 0.5F
$ 051

24,70¢
29,07¢

$ 682
$ 4,79¢
$ 7,71¢
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands, except for share amounts)

Notes Accumulatec
Additional Deferred Receivable Other Total
Common Stocl Paic-in Treasury Stock From Comprehensiv Retainec  Stockholder’
Shares Amoun Capital Stock Compensatic  Stockholder Income/(Loss Earnings Equity
Balance at June 30,20 2383587 $ 24 $7876. $ — $ (1,18) $ (200 $ 10C $8,58: $ 86,26¢
Components of
comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — — — 12,99: 12,99:
Net unrealized loss
on available-for-
sale investments,
net of tax — — — — — — (260) — (260
Total
comprehensiy
income 12,73:

Issuance of common

stock from option

exercises and stock

purchase pla 1,151,52, 1 5,36¢ — — — — — 5,37(
Amortization of

deferred stock

compensation, net

of reversals — — (33 — 55C — — — 517
Tax benefit associated
with stock option: — — 4,23 — — — — — 4,23

Repayment of notes
receivable from

stockholders — — — — — 20 — — 20
Balance at June 30,20  24,987,39 25 88,33« — (634) — (160) 21,57t 109,14(
Components of
comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — — — 37,98t 37,98t

Net unrealized gail
on available-for-
sale investment:

net of tax — — — — — — 31 — 31
Total

comprehensiv

income 38,01¢

Issuance of common
stock from option
exercises and stoc

purchase pla 1,432,04! 1 8,40¢ — — — — — 8,40¢
Purchase of treasury
stock — — — (21,180 — — — — (21,180)

Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation, net

of reversals — — (©)] 331 — — — 32¢
Tax benefit associated

with stock option: — — 9,951 — — — — — 9,951

Balance at June 30,20  26,419,44 26 106,68t (21,180 (309 — (12¢)  59,56( 144,66(

Components of

comprehensive

income:

Net income — — — — — — — 13,70: 13,70

Net unrealized loss
on available-for-
sale investment:



net of tax — — — — — — (33%) — (339
Total
comprehensiy
income 13,36¢
Issuance of common
stock from option
exercises and stock

purchase pla 1,042,67 1 8,47¢ — — — — — 8,47
Purchase of treasury
stock — — — (18,819 — — — — (18,819

Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation, net

of reversals — — (303) 303 — — — —
Tax benefit associate
with stock options — — 6,15¢ — — — — — 6,15¢
Share-based
compensatiol — —  13,20( — — — — — 13,20(
Balance at June 30,20 27,462,12 $ 27 $134,21° $(39,999 $ —  $ —  $ (464) $73,26. $ 167,04

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigen by operating activitie:
Shar-based compensation co
Depreciation and amortization of property and emdpt
Amortization of deferred stock compensat
Amortization of debt issuance co:
Tax benefit realized from stock optio
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic
Deferred taxe
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued compensatic
Income taxes payab
Other accrued liabilitie
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of sh«-term investment

Proceeds from sales and maturities of -term investment
Purchases of property and equipm

Investment in Foveon, In

Decrease in restricted ca

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior suhated note:
Debt issuance cos

Purchase of treasury sto

Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeotisptions and stock purchase f
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic

Payments on capital leases and equipment finarotitigations
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholi

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informatio
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxe

Years ended June 30,

2004 2005 2006
$12,99: $ 37,98 $ 13,70
— — 13,20(
1,015 1,061 1,64¢
517 32¢ —
— 487 86C
4,237 9,951 6,15¢
— — (5,229)
(519) 1,831 1,50¢
(8,692) (11,915 (244)
(97) (1,20€) (2,279
(61) (299) (507)
(147) (12,83%) (794)
2,321 3,17( 4,15:
1,78€ 1,044 (79€6)
2,357 10,84¢ (6,789
(1,025) 2,05¢ 24
96 36 165
14,78: 42 54 24,78:
(21,199 (221,38) (250,93f)
19,71¢ 101,53¢ 200,83
(908) (13,847 (3,072)
— (4,000) —
24C — —
(2,149 (137,69)) (53,170
— 125,00( —
— (4,301) J—
— (21,18() (18,819
5,37( 8,40¢ 8,471
— — 5,22:
(231) (28) —
20 — —
5,15¢ 107,89: (5,119
17,79: 12,74: (33,50%)
41,69 59,48¢ 72,23:
$ 59,48¢ $ 72,23 $ 38,72
$ 7 $  45€ $ 93¢
$ 1,85¢ $ 10,59 $ 11,49

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Basis of Presentation

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed user interface solutionsehable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and othertedacc devices. Founded in March 19
we began shipping our TouchPad product in 1995¢chvinicorporates our core capacitive technology.ajpdur core capacitive technology
incorporated into all of the products we sell, whare designed into products offered by most ohtlagr notebook computer and hard-disk
drive music player original equipment manufact(@EMs) throughout the world.

The consolidated financial statements inclodefinancial statements and those of our whollyed subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled upon consolidation.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week periadiag on the last Saturday in June. For ease akptation, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been shown as endingren 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006 and each of those geasisted of 52 weeks.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications have been madeity pear balances in order to conform to the curyear presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestegnts in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoainting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezbata of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenseasyelated disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate atingates, including those related to revenue reitiognallowance for doubtful accounts, ¢
of revenue, inventories, product warranty, sHaased compensation costs, provision for incomestareome taxes payable, intangible as:
and contingencies. We base our estimates on luat@xperience, applicable laws, and various adssumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resulibioh form the basis for making judgments aboutdieying value of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourcetu@ results may differ from these estimates unliféerent assumptions or conditions.

Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid istreents with original maturities of three monthdess. Short-term investments consist of
marketable securities and are classified as seuftvailable for sale” under Statement of Finahgiccounting Standards (“SFASNo. 115
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Eg$ecurities."Such securities are reported at fair value, wittealized gains and loss
net of taxes, excluded from earnings and shownraggg as a component of accumulated other comps#eincome within stockholders’
equity. A decline in the market value of a secubigyow cost that is deemed other than temporaciiasged to earnings, resulting in the
establishment of a new cost basis for the secuntgrest earned on marketable securities is iralud interest income. Realized gains and
losses on the sale of marketable securities asgrdited using the specific identification method.
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The following is a summary of investments iarketable securities and cash equivalents (in Huls):

Money marke
Auction rate preferre
U.S. agencie

Asset backed securitis
Municipal securitie:

Total availabl-for-sale securitie

Money marke
Commercial pape
Auction rate preferre
U.S. agencie

Asset backed securiti
Municipal securitie:

Total availabl-for-sale securitie

June 30, 200

Gross Gross Estimatec

Amortized Unrealizet Unrealize( Fair

__ Cost __Gains Losses Value
$ 67,47 $ — $ $ 67,47
47,32¢ — — 47,32¢
8,00( — — 8,00(
5,40( — — 5,40(
96,09: — 12¢ 95,96¢
$224,28¢ $ — $ 12¢ $224,16(

June 30, 200

Gross Gross Estimatec

Amortized Unrealizet Unrealize( Fair

__Cost__ __Gains _ Losses Value
$ 31,27: $ — $ — $ 31,27
3,992 — 1 3,991
35,00( — — 35,00(
16,00( — 18¢ 15,81:
21,70( — — 21,70(
134,21! — 274 133,94
$242,18( $ — $ 464 $241,71¢

The following is a summary of weighted averagerest rates, amortized costs, and estimateddhies of available-for-sale securities by
contractual maturity (in thousands):

June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Weightec Weightec

Average Estimatec Average Estimatec

Interest Amortized Fair Interest Amortized Fair

Rate Cost Value Rate Cost Value
Less than one ye: 2.€% $199,51! $199,42: 4.1% $212,58: $212,36:
Due in 1- 2 years 3.(% 24,774 24,73¢ 3.&% 29,591 29,35!
Total $224,28¢ $224,16( $242,18( $241,71¢

Fair Values of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of our cash equivalents, skerh investments, accounts receivable, accouryaipa, and accrued liabilities approximate
their carrying values due to the short-term natirénose instruments. The fair value of the notgapée to related party also approximates its
carrying value as the associated interest rat&woépproximates the interest rate we would expebetoharged on a loan under similar
circumstances with similar terms. The fair valueof convertible senior subordinated notes is baseiading values as of the end of our
fiscal year.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subjetto concentrations of credit risk consist priitgasf cash equivalents, short-term
investments, and trade accounts receivable. Oestment policy, which is predicated on capital preation and liquidity, limits investments
to U.S. government treasuries and agency issueshleasecurities, and municipal issued securitiéls aminimum rating of A1 (Moody'’s) or
P1 (Standard and Pos}’or equivalent. We sell our products primarilycemtract manufacturers that provide manufactusenyices to OEM
Credit is extended based on an evaluation of amests financial condition, and we generally do remjuire collateral. To date, credit losses
have been insignificant, and we believe that amaaie allowance for doubtful accounts has beenigedv At June 30, 2005 and 2006, the
following customers accounted for more than 10%uwfaccounts receivable balance:

2005 2006
Customer A 4% 18%
Customer E 2% 11%
Customer C * 11%
Customer C 12% 9%
Customer E 41% 7%

* Less than 19

Other Concentrations

Our products include certain components thacarrently single sourced. We believe other vesi@uld be able to provide similar
components; however, the qualification of such wesdnay require start-up time. In order to mitigag adverse impacts from a disruption
of supply, we attempt to maintain an adequate supiptritical single-sourced components.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemesis edelivery has occurred and title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinablel eallectibility is reasonably assured. We accareektimated sales returns and other
allowances, based on historical experience, airiewe recognize revenue. We record contract nevdor research and development as the
services are provided under the terms of the contvéie recognize non-refundable contract fees tuckvno further performance obligations
exist and for which there is no continuing invohamby us on the earlier of when the paymentsegeived or when collection is assured.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We maintain allowances for doubtful accountsestimated losses resulting from the inabilite$tomers to meet their financial
obligations. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate dilectibility of accounts receivable based on a boration of factors. In circumstances in
which we are aware of a specific customer’s poatintability to meet its financial obligation, weaord a specific reserve of the bad debt
against amounts due. In addition, we make judgnmemdsestimates on the collectibility of accountsereable based on our historical bad ¢
experience, customers’ creditworthiness, curreahemic trends, recent changes in customers’ paytmamis, and deterioration in the
customers’ operating results or financial positibrtircumstances change adversely, additionaldsd allowances may be required.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of casdt(fn, first-out method) or market (estimated restlizable value), and at June 30, 2005 and
2006 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2005 2006

Raw materials $ 7,61¢ $ 9,74
Finished good 112 267
$ 7731 $10,01(
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Periodically, we purchase inventory from oulbb&ntractors when a customer’s delivery schedutieiayed or a customer’s order is
cancelled. In those circumstances in which ouratust has cancelled its order and we purchase iogefrom our subcontractors, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying vallithe inventory purchased to its net realizableeawrite-downs to reduce the carrying
value of obsolete, slow moving, and non-usablerntoy to net realizable value are charged to cbeg\venue.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at costlsasmulated depreciation and amortization. We adgengepreciation using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the as¥ée apply estimated useful life of three yearsuocomputer equipment and software;
estimated useful lives ranging from one to fivergea our manufacturing equipment; an estimateduliite of three years to our furniture
and fixtures; and an estimated useful life of 3&rgeo our building. Depreciation expense inclutiesamortization of assets recorded under
capital leases. We amortize leasehold improvermardsassets recorded under capital leases ovenohnteisof the lease term or the useful life
of the asset. During the years ended June 30, 2002005, we retired fully depreciated equipmeut fanniture at an original cost of
$506,000 and $170,000, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translatio

The U.S. dollar is our functional and repagtaurrency. We translate our monetary assets abdities not denominated in the functional
currency into U.S. dollar equivalents at the rdtex@hange in effect on the balance sheet date-rmmetary balance sheet accounts are
measured and recorded at the historical rate eceéft the date of translation. We translate regemd expenses at the weighted average
exchange rate in the month that the transactioaroed. Remeasurement of monetary assets andtiedilhat are not denominated in the
functional currency are included currently in opierg results. Translation gains (losses) includedgerating results for the years ended
June 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006 totaled ($42,000)080, and $37,000, respectively. To date, we hateindertaken hedging transactions
related to foreign currency exposure.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We do not amortize goodwill and other intahgidssets with indefinite lives. Instead, we revtbes carrying value of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives at leastwaally for impairment as of the fiscal year endalpale sheet date. The frequency of our review
is dictated by events or changes in circumstanmuisating that the carrying value may be impaigised on our latest review, we determ
there was no impairment of the carrying value ajdyeill or other intangible assets.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting foe impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets,” @@luate long-lived assets, such as
property and equipment and intangible assets sutgieenortization, for impairment whenever eventstianges in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of an asset may not beveredle. We measure recoverability of assets toelet and used by a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset to estimated undisealfotture cash flows expected to be generatedégdhet. If the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted futuheflcags, we recognize an impairment charge in anwamby which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the fair value of the assettsAgsbe disposed of would be separately preséntée consolidated balance sheet and
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or ¥aiue less costs to sell, and would no longeddy@eciated. The assets and liabilities of a
disposed group classified as held for sale wouldresented separately in the appropriate assdiadnility sections of the consolidated
balance sheet.

Investment in Foveon, In

We have an investment in convertible prefestedk in a privately held development-stage corpAs our initial voting interest
exceeded 20%, we accounted for the investment uhdexquity method in accordance with Accountingdiples Board Opinion No. 18,
“The Equity Method of Accounting for InvestmentsGommon Stock” (APB 18), and the Emerging IssueskTeorce (EITF) topic D-68 and
Issue No. 98-13 “Accounting by an Equity Methoddator for Investee Losses When the Investor Hasd taand
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Investments in Other Securities of the Invested’ lasue No. 99-10 “Percentage Used to Determinédtheunt of Equity Method Losses.”
We considered our ownership of preferred stockahdnces made to the affiliated company in detengithe amount of equity losses to be
recognized (see Note 2). We reduced the balancarafivestment in this company to zero in fiscad@0pursuant to equity method
accounting.

During fiscal 2005, our investee issued addal preferred stock and we made an incrementakinvent in the amount of $4.0 million. As
a result of the preferred stock issuance, our gdtiterest in the investee was reduced to apprdrimna5%. In addition, two of our board
members also serve on the board of the investeeinOemental investment will be accounted for urttie cost method in accordance with
APB 18 and EITF Issues No. 02-14 “Whether an IrMeShould Apply the Equity Method of Accountingltvestments Other than Common
Stock” and No. 03-1 “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temgwy Impairment and Its Application to Certain éstments” because the investment
is not “in-substance common stock” and will be eswed at least annually for impairment as of thealiyear end balance sheet date. The
frequency of our review is dictated by events arages in circumstances indicating that the carryadge may be impaired. Based on our
latest review, we determined there was no impaitroéthe carrying value of our investment in ouréstee.

Segment Information

We have adopted SFAS 131, “Disclosure AboginSmnts of an Enterprise and Related Informatione’ dlderate in one segment: the
development, marketing, and sale of intuitive ustnrface solutions for electronic devices and pas.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We adopted SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Paymend’'randified prospective basis beginning with fis2@06 and apply the provisions of
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “Share-Based Payt” (“SAB 107”). We utilize the Black-Scholes apt pricing model to estimate the
grant date fair value of employee share-based cosgpery awards, which requires the input of highlpjective assumptions, including
expected volatility and expected life. Historicabamplied volatility were used in estimating tterfvalue of our share-based awards, while
the expected life for our options was estimateledive years based on historical trends sincerstial public offering. Further, as required
under SFAS 123R, we now estimate forfeitures faratbased awards that are not expected to vestgéhan these inputs and assumptions
can materially affect the measure of estimatedvialine of our share-based compensation. We chatgeated fair value to earnings on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period ofuhderlying awards, which is generally four yeansdor stock option and deferred stock unit
awards and up to two years for our employee stockhase plan.

Product Warrantie:

We generally warrant our products for a pendd2 months or more from the date of sale anidhes¢ probable product warranty costs at
the time we recognize revenue. Factors that affectvarranty liability include historical and anpated rates of warranty claims, materials
usage, rework, and delivery costs. Warranty costsrred have not been material in recent years.dtew we assess the adequacy of our
warranty obligations periodically and adjust theraed warranty liability on the basis of our estieza

Changes in our warranty liability (includeddther accrued liabilities) for the years endedeJ8®, 2005 and 2006 were as follows (in
thousands):

2005 2006
Beginning accrued warran $ 704 $ 36¢
Provision for product warrantie 50t 897
Cost of warranty claims and settleme (840 (909
Ending accrued warran $ 36¢ $ 357
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Advertising Expens

We expense all advertising costs as incurkédertising costs were not material to any of teeiqds presented.

Comprehensive Income

Our comprehensive income includes net incontereet unrealized gains and losses on availablsdtar investments, net of tax.

Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asskliaility method. We recognize deferred tax assetd liabilities for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit cawgials. We measure deferred tax assets and liabilising enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. We recognize the effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changeirates in income in the period that includesahactment date. We establish valuation
allowances when necessary to reduce deferred $&tsat® the amounts expected to be realized. Wadrrthe operating earnings of our
foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely investedside the United States. Accordingly, no providias been made for the U.S. federal, stat
foreign taxes that may result from future remitesof undistributed earnings of our foreign sulasids.

Research and Developme

We expense costs to develop our products,hwihidude the costs incurred to design interfadet&ms for customers prior to the
customers incorporating those solutions into theaducts, as incurred in accordance with SFAS Z%nting for Research and
Development Costs,” which establishes accountirtraporting standards for research and developouests.

We account for software development costsaoalance with SFAS 86, “Accounting for the Codt€omputer Software to be Sold,
Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” which requirestedipation of certain software development costseotechnological feasibility for the
software component is established, and researcderalopment activities for the hardware compoeatcompleted. Under our
development process, the time period between tiablesiment of technological feasibility and th&eese of the product is short and
capitalization of internal development costs hasbe@n material to date.

Net Income Per Sha

We present basic and diluted net income paresamounts in conformity with the SFAS 128, “Engs Per Share,” (SFAS 128) for all
periods presented. In accordance with SFAS 128; basincome per share amounts for each periogepted have been computed using the
weighted average number of shares of common statstamding. Diluted net income per share amoumtedoh period presented have been
computed (1) using the weighted average numbeotaiially dilutive shares issuable in connectidgthwur sharedased compensation ple
under the treasury stock method, and (2) usingvisighted average number of shares issuable in ctionevith convertible debt under the if-
converted method, when dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting StandaBoard issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting ChangesEaror Corrections,” (“SFAS
154"). SFAS 154, which replaces APB Opinion No. ‘2 counting Changes,” (“APB 20”) and SFAS No. 3éporting Accounting Changes
in Interim Financial Statements,” applies to allurdary changes in accounting principle and chatigesequirements for accounting for and
reporting of a change in accounting principle. AEBpreviously required that most voluntary charigezccounting principle be recognized
by including in net income of the period of chamgeumulative effect of changing to the new accaungirinciple, while SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ finaagtatements of a voluntary change in accountiirciple, unless it is impracticable. SFAS
154 enhances the consistency of financial inforomaltietween periods. SFAS 154 will be effective beijig the first quarter of our fiscal
2007.
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The adoption of SFAS 154 will not have a matengbact on our financial position, results of opemasi, or cash flows.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadsi@oard issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Acdmmfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes
— an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” NF48") which clarifies the accounting for uncertgiim income taxes recognized in an
entity’s financial statements in accordance witiASHNo. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFASAY FIN 48 is designed to reduce
the disparity in accounting treatment for uncertapositions resulting from diverse interpretati@f SFAS 109 among companies. FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureattittute for financial statement disclosure of pasitions taken or expected to be take
a tax return. FIN 48 is effective beginning in éiust quarter of fiscal 2008. We are currently exaing the requirements of FIN 48 and have
not yet determined the impact of adoption, if amy,our financial position, results of operationscash flows.

2. Ownership Interest in Foveon, Inc. and Note Payde to Related Party

During fiscal 1998, we entered into agreemayitis National Semiconductor Corporation (Nation#ten a related party, with respect to
the formation of a development-stage company, Faiespinc. (now known as Foveon, Inc.), which wasrfed to develop and produce
digital imaging products. We contributed technoldgywhich we had no accounting basis for a 30%r#dt in Foveon in the form of voting
convertible preferred stock. Under the agreemeveshad the right to acquire additional shares aof/edtible preferred stock at a specified
price in exchange for a limited-recourse loan fidational. National loaned us $1.5 million undemaited+ecourse note, which we utilizec
purchase additional preferred shares of Foveorgwihicreased our ownership interest in Foveon #6.4Bhe note matures in August 2007
and bears interest at 6.0% per annum. If the nude@ated accrued interest are not repaid, Ndtosale remedy under the loan is to require
us to return to National a portion of Foveon shawgghased with the proceeds of the loan and heldb

During fiscal 1998, we recorded our shareoskés incurred by Foveon under the equity accagintiethod on the basis of our
proportionate ownership of voting convertible predd stock and reduced the carrying value of thistg investment to zero as our share of
losses incurred by Foveon exceeded the carryingevafl the investment. No equity losses were reebdiging fiscal 1999, as we did not
have any carrying value associated with the investm

During fiscal 2000, we advanced to Foveontal twf $2.7 million in return for convertible prossiory notes. The notes were convertible
into shares of Foveon preferred stock in accordattethe defined terms, had a term of 10 yeard,t@ore interest at rates ranging from 6.
to 6.85%, payable at maturity. During fiscal 208@, recorded our share of losses incurred by Foeeahe basis of our proportionate share
of funding provided to Foveon by us and National eecorded additional equity losses limited tottten maximum carrying value of our
total investment, which was $2.7 million, includitie ownership of convertible debt securities idsoe Foveon. Accordingly, the carrying
value of our investment in Foveon was reduced to daring fiscal 2000 as our share of losses ity Foveon exceeded the carrying
value of the investment.

In August 2000, the convertible promissoryasoive held and related accrued interest were atit@athaconverted into 443,965 shares of
Foveon preferred stock in connection with an edfiitgncing completed by Foveon.

In connection with the issuance of the conlikrfpromissory notes, we also received warranfutghase 106,718 shares of Foveon
Series B preferred stock and warrants to purcha@ 8 shares of Foveon Series C preferred stoekeatise prices of $5.88 and $6.76 per
share, respectively. These warrants expired unsegfduring fiscal 2005.

During fiscal 2005, we participated in an égtdinancing, receiving 3,943,217 shares of Fov8eries E preferred for a cash investment of
$4.0 million. The Series E preferred shares areexdible into common shares on a one-for-one ety time at our option, upon a firm
underwritten public offering of Foveon common sta¢kiot less than $20 million at a price per shadreot less than three times the original
issue price, or upon the written agreement of thiddrs of at least 60% of the outstanding prefesteates voting as a single class. The
Series E preferred shares are also entitled tididjon preference up to two times the originaliesprice over the non-Series E preferred and
common shares. As of June 30, 2006, our votingastén Foveon was approximately 15% and two oflmard members also serve on the
board of Foveon. We are not obligated to providditamhal funding to Foveon.
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The Series E preferred investment in Fove@at@®unted for under the cost method in accordaitteAPB Opinion No. 18 and EITF
Issues No. 02-14 and No. 03-1 because the invesimant “in-substance common stock” and will beiegved at least annually for
impairment as of the fiscal year end balance stietet Based on our latest review, we determine@ tvas no impairment of the carrying
value of our investment in Foveon. As of June W& the carrying value of our investment in Fove@s $4.0 million and is included in
other assets in the accompanying consolidated talsimeets.

3. Net Income Per Share
The following table presents the computatibbasic and diluted net income per share (in thodsaexcept per share amounts):

Years ended June 32

2004 2005 2006

Numerator:

Basic net incom $12,99: $37,98¢ $13,70:

Interest expense and amortization of debt issueosts on convertible notes, net of — 602 1,06¢

Diluted net income $12,99: $38,58" $14,76¢
Denominator

Shares, basi 24,41¢ 25,73¢ 24,70¢

Effect of dilutive stock option 2,69( 2,66¢€ 1,89:

Effect of convertible note — 1,35¢ 2,474

Shares, dilute 27,10¢ 29,76 29,07¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.5 $ 1l.4¢ $ 0.5t

Diluted $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3 $ 0.51

Diluted net income per share does not incthdeeffect of the following share-based awardshiausands):

2004 2005 2006
Shar-based award 22¢€ 25¢ 2,13¢

These share-based awards were not includénd iocomputation of diluted net income per sharebse the proceeds received, if any, from
such share-based awards combined with the averageartized compensation costs adjusted for thethgtical tax benefit or deficiency
creditable or chargeable, respectively, to add#igraid-in capital, were greater than the averagekeat price of our common stock, and
therefore, their effect would have been antidiletiv

F-15




Table of Contents

4. Property and Equipment
As of June 30, 2005 and 2006, property andpegent consisted of the following (in thousands):

Life 2005 2006
Land $ 2,50( $ 2,50(
Building and improvement 35 years 6,00: 10,14«
Equipment and toolin 1 yearto5 yea 7,42¢ 9,06:
Furniture 3 years 503 98¢
Construction in progres 3,18¢ —
19,62: 22,69:
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (5,00€6) (6,655)
Property and equipment, r $14,61¢ $16,03¢
5. Other Assets
As of June 30, 2005 and 2006, other assetsisted of the following (in thousands):
Note 2005 2006
Non-current deferred ta 11 $ 28C $ —
Investment in Foveon, Ir 2 4,00( 4,00(
Non-current prepaid ta 11 12,57¢ 13,14:
Debt issuance costs, r 7 3,811 2,951
Deposits and other lo-term asset 49¢ 73C
Other Asset: $21,17¢ $20,82¢

6. Leases and Other Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

Prior to relocating in July 2005 to our cutrprincipal domestic facility, which we purchasedJanuary 2005, we leased our previous
domestic facility under an operating lease thafredpon May 31, 2005 and converted to a month-tomoental arrangement through
July 2005. We lease our UK facility under an operptease that expires in fiscal 2010; our Hong ¢(€ercility under an operating lease that
expires in fiscal 2008; and our other facilitieglanoperating leases that expire in fiscal 2007alllent expense, recognized on a straight-line
basis, was approximately $1.1 million, $1.2 milliamd $786,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2nd 2006, respectively.

The aggregate future minimum rental commitraestof June 30, 2006 for noncancelable operategeks with initial or remaining terms
excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

Operating
Lease

Fiscal Yeal Paymentt
2007 $ 534
2008 49¢
2009 22¢€
2010 18¢
Total minimum operating lease payme $ 1,444
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Contingencies

We may receive notices from third parties tHaim our products infringe their rights. From &rno time, we receive notice from third
parties of the intellectual property rights sucltiga have obtained. We cannot be certain thatemimologies and products do not and will
not infringe issued patents or other proprietagits of third parties. Any infringement claims, kvgr without merit, could result in significe
litigation costs and diversion of management andrfcial resources, including the payment of damaghkigeh could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, argltes of operations.

Intellectual Property Settleme

During fiscal 2005, we entered into a crossrise agreement with a competitor. The cross lkisease worldwide, non-exclusive, non-
transferable, and royalty-free. The cross licengeament settled certain intellectual propertymstaof the parties and contains mutual
releases of the intellectual property claims ofgiagties. In connection with the cross license ageent, which does not provide for any future
service obligations or commitments from us, we i@k a one-time payment of $3.8 million includedoétser operating expense (income) in
the accompanying consolidated statement of incam#éhé year ended June 30, 2005.

Indemnifications

In connection with certain third-party agreensenve have executed in the past, we are obligatadiemnify the third party in connection
with any technology infringement by us. We have astered into indemnification agreements withafficers and directors. Maximum
potential future payments cannot be estimated Isectuese agreements do not have a maximum stabélityi However, historical costs
related to these indemnification provisions haveleen significant. We have not recorded any ligbih our consolidated financial
statements for such indemnification obligations.

Line of Credit

In August 2001, we entered into a $4.2 milliermolving line of credit with a bank, subsequemtigreased to $15.0 million on
November 30, 2004. The revolving line of creditiegp on November 26, 2006, unless extended, am@san interest rate equal to-
bank’s prime lending rate, which was 8.0% at Juhe2B06. Borrowings under this line of credit anbjsct to certain financial and non-
financial covenants and are limited to 75% of dfyadg accounts receivable as defined in the agre¢nvih the bank. This line of credit
agreement places restrictions on the payment oflangends. As of June 30, 2005 and 2006, we hadowowed any amounts under this
facility.

Legal Proceeding

In March 2006, Elantech Devices Corporatidelg§htech”) filed a Complaint for Patent Infringemagainst us claiming that we infringed
one of their patents and seeking damages, attdrfe®g and a permanent injunction against usrigfrig or inducing others to infringe the
patent. In April 2006, we filed our Answer to ther@plaint and Counterclaims against Elantech clagntirat they have infringed and induced
infringement of four of our patents and seeking dges, attorneys’ fees, and a permanent injunctiamat infringing or inducing others to
infringe.

Elantech responded to our counterclaim denlaility and counterclaimed seeking an injunctaomd damages for alleged violations of
California law. We subsequently filed a motion tendiss the Elantech counterclaims, which was gdhimteuly 2006 with leave to amend the
counterclaims after the adjudication of the pabefiingement claims. We intend to vigorously defend patents and pursue our
counterclaims. We have not recorded any liabilggaziated with their claims, but have expensedasiied all legal fees associated with the
legal proceedings.

7. Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

On December 7, 2004 and December 17, 2004ssmed an aggregate of $125 million of 0.75% CotitMer Senior Subordinated Notes
maturing December 1, 2024 (the “Notes”) in a pevalfering pursuant to Rule 144A under the Seagifict of 1933, as amended. In
connection with issuing the Notes, we incurred debiance costs of $4.3 million, consisting prityaof the initial purchasers’ discount and
costs related to legal,
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accounting, and printing, which will be amortizectofive years. We expect to use the net procemdsdrking capital and general corporate
purposes and potentially for future acquisitions.

The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.75%apeum payable on December 1 and June 1 of eachbgganning June 1, 2005. However,
will pay additional contingent interest on the Noikthe average trading price of the Notes israthmve 120% of the principal amount of the
Notes for a specified period beginning with the-month period commencing December 1, 2009. The ataficontingent interest payable
on the Notes with respect to a six-month periodwfich contingent interest applies, will equal®%6 per annum of the average trading
price of the Notes for a specified five trading ¢eeyiod preceding such six-month period. We are aldigated to file and maintain a shelf
registration statement with the Securities and Brgle Commission covering resales by the holdetiseoNotes and the common stock
issuable upon conversion of the Notes. In the evkatregistration default, we will be obligatedpay additional interest of up to 0.5% per
annum until such registration default is cured.JOne 1, 2005, our Registration Statement for teesarities was declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Notes are convertible into shares of ammon stock, initially at a conversion rate of 2A.8 shares per $1,000 principal amount of
Notes, or a total of 2,473,975 shares of commocksiohich is equivalent to an initial conversiomcerof approximately $50.53 per share
common stock, subject to adjustment in certain tsvarhe denominator of the diluted net income pere calculation includes the weighted
average effect of the 2,473,975 shares of comnamk $6suable upon conversion of the Notes in aaurd with EITF 04-08. Through
November 30, 2009, upon the occurrence of a fundéahehange as defined in the indenture goverrieg\otes, we could potentially
obligated to issue up to 27.7085 shares per $lgbpfincipal amount of Notes, or a total of 3,462 5hares of common stock, which is
equivalent to a conversion price of $36.09 perelofiicommon stock. The additional 989,587 sha@stimgently issuable upon a
fundamental change, are not included in the cdiomaf diluted net income per share.

The Notes may be converted (1) if, during ealendar quarter commencing after December 31,,28@4ast reported sale price of our
common stock for at least 20 trading days in théopeof 30 consecutive trading days ending on &s¢ trading day of the preceding calendar
quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of thdigadge conversion price on such last trading daypn or after January 1, 2020; (3) if we
have called the Notes for redemption; or (4) dupngscribed periods, upon the occurrence of sgecdorporate transactions or fundamental
changes. On or after December 1, 2009, we may nefl@ecash all or a portion of the notes at a regotgon price of 100% of the principal
amount of the notes plus accrued and unpaid irtténetuding contingent interest and additionakneist, if any. Noteholders have the right to
require us to repurchase all or a portion of theies for cash on December 1, 2009, December 4, 201 December 1, 2019 at a price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the notes t@brchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, ingucthntingent interest and additional
interest, if any. Upon conversion of the Notedjén of delivering common stock, we may, at ourcdi$ion, deliver cash or a combination of
cash and common stock. As of June 30, 2006, notteeafonditions for conversion of the Notes hadioed.

The Notes are unsecured senior subordinatigghtibns and rank junior in right of payment tb @ our existing and future senior
indebtedness, equal in right of payment with albof existing and future indebtedness or othegatltilbns that are not, by their terms, either
senior or subordinated to the Notes, includingdrdebt and other general unsecured obligationgithabt constitute senior or subordinated
indebtedness, and senior in right of payment tofadlur future indebtedness that, by its termspisordinated to the Notes. There are no
financial covenants in the Notes.

We recorded interest expense of $1.8 millioritee Notes during fiscal 2006, which included $860 of amortization of debt issuance
costs. The fair value of the Notes as of June B062vas approximately $103 million based on tradialyes.

8. Stockholders’ Equity

We have a Stockholders’ Rights Plan that mayelthe effect of deterring, delaying, or prevemtinchange in control that might otherwise
be in the best interests of our stockholders. lega, stock purchase rights issued under the lldaome exercisable when a person or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teoffer or exchange offer of 15% or more of our coom stock is announced or
commenced. After any such event, our other stoddrslmay purchase additional shares of our comnoak at 50% of the then-current
market price. The rights will cause substantialtitin to a person or group that attempts to acquire
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us on terms not approved by our board of direcfis. rights should not interfere with any mergeottrer business combination approved by
our board of directors as the rights may be redddmyaus at $0.01 per stock purchase right at ang before any person or group acquires
15% or more of our outstanding common stock. Tgktsi expire in August 2012.

Preferred Stocl

We are authorized, subject to limitations isg by Delaware law, to issue up to a total of @0,800 shares of preferred stock in one or
more series without stockholder approval. Our badidirectors is authorized to establish from timéime the number of shares to be
included in each series and to fix the rights, gmexiices, and privileges of the shares of each whalksued series and any of its
qualifications, limitations, or restrictions. Ouvdrd of directors can also increase or decreaseuimber of shares of a series, but not below
the number of shares of that series then outstgndiithout any further vote or action by the stocklers.

Our board of directors may authorize the isseaof preferred stock with voting or conversiaghts that could harm the voting power or
other rights of the holders of our common stocke ™suance of preferred stock, while providingifiéity in connection with possible
acquisitions and other corporate purposes, cooidng other things, have the effect of delayinged&ig, or preventing a change in control
of our company and might harm the market priceusfammmon stock and the voting power and othertsighthe holders of common stock.
As of June 30, 2006, there were no shares of pesfestock outstanding and we have no current fiaissue any shares of preferred stock.

Deferred Compensatic

Through fiscal 2003, we recorded total def@éstck compensation of $2.8 million, representhmgaggregate difference between the
exercise prices of options granted to employeestamdeemed fair values for common stock subjetiig¢mptions as of the respective
measurement dates. Through fiscal 2005, these asauane being amortized by charges to operatiams, straightine basis over the vesti
periods of the individual stock options. During trears ended June 30, 2004 and 2005, we record&gd0R® and $328,000, respectively, of
amortization expense related to deferred stock emrsgtion. Also, we recorded reversals of $33,0@0%87000 of deferred stock
compensation and amortization expense for terminateployees during the years ended June 30, 2@D2G0%, respectively. Upon our
adoption of SFAS 123R in fiscal 2006, we ceasedrtimmny deferred stock compensation, reversed eéhgaining unamortized deferred stock
compensation balance of $303,000 to additional-paahpital, and now expense the grant date fdirevaf share-based awards.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

As of June 30, 2006, we had reserved sharesmimon stock for future issuance as follows:

Stock options outstandir 5,808,01:
Deferred stock units outstandi 38,28(
Total awards available for grant under all s-based award plar 3,292,241
Convertible senior subordinated no 2,473,97!

Reserved for future issuan 11,612,51

Through November 30, 2009, upon the occurrefieefundamental change as defined in the indergaverning the Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes (Notes), we could potentiallpblgated to issue up to 27.7085 shares per $l90pfincipal amount of Notes, for a tc
of 3,463,562 shares of common stock or an additi®®,587 shares rather than the 2,473,975 retldntéhe preceding table.

Treasury Stock

In October 2005, our board of directors autteat an expansion of our stock repurchase progeamf to an additional $40 million of our
common stock, increasing the total cash availabtieuthe stock repurchase program from $40 miti@$®80 million. The number of shares
purchased and the timing of purchases is basedeolevel of our cash balances, general businesmarkkt conditions, and other factors,
including alternative investment opportunities. Goom stock repurchased under this program is helceasury stock and through
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June 30, 2006 purchases under this program to2aB86,100 shares for an aggregate cost of $40omitir an average cost of $17.34 per
share.

9. Share-Based Compensation

The purpose of our various share-based cormagienglans is to attract, motivate, retain, andemel high-quality employees, directors, and
consultants by enabling such persons to acquiirgcozase their proprietary interest in our commimglsin order to strengthen the mutuality
of interests between such persons and our stookisodohd to provide such persons with annual argiierm performance incentives to focus
their best efforts in the creation of stockholdalue. Consequently, share-based compensatory awatdsl subsequent to the initial award to
our employees and consultants are determined phnaar individual performance. Our share-based censation plans currently consist of
our 1996 Stock Option Plan, our 2000 NonstatutdocEOption Plan, our 2001 Incentive Compensatilam Pand our 2001 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.

Share-based compensation awards availablgrdat or issuance for each plan as of the beginwiintige fiscal year, including changes in
the balance of awards available for grant duriregytsar ended June 30, 2006, are as follows:

Total Awards 2001
Available 1996 2000 2001 Employee

Under All Stock Nonstatutory Incentive Stock
Shar«+Based Option Stock Optior Compensatiol Purchast¢

Award Plans Plan Plan Plan Plan
Balance at June 30, 20 3,271,52! 224,88 35,66 2,304,59I 706,39:
Additional shares authorize 1,483,42 — — 1,483,42 —
Stock options grante (1,585,18) — — (1,585,18) —
Deferred stock units grantt (38,680) — — (38,680) —
Purchases under employee stock purchase (93,020 — — — (93,020
Forfeited 254,18 1,584 1,91 250,68( —
Balance at June 30, 20 3,292,24i 226,46! 37,58¢ 2,414,82 613,37.

At the beginning of fiscal 2006, we adopted\SHL23R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R"), aopliad the provisions of Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “Share-Based Paymeta,bur existing share-based compensation plaasdordance with the modified
prospective transition method. Previously, we folal Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion N5, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees,” and related interpretations in aotiog for employee share-based compensation, asigped by SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS 123"), and werditirecognize compensation expense for stock mpgfiants to employees and
directors with an exercise price equal to the ifzdrket value of the shares at the date of grarto/tingly, no shar&ased compensation cc
based on grant date fair value are included incousolidated statements of income for any periedqgmted in the accompanying condensed
consolidated financial statements prior to fis@20&

Share-based compensation and the relatedetafibrecognized in our consolidated statemeimaime for the year ended June 30, 2006
are (in thousands):

Amount

Cost of revenu $ 682
Research and developmt 4,79¢
Selling, general, and administrati 7,71¢
Total $13,20(
Income tax benefit on she-based compensatic $ 2,94(

We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricingaebto estimate the grant date fair value of ceréanployee share-based compensatory
awards, which requires the input of highly subjeetissumptions, including
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expected volatility and expected life. Historicaiamplied volatility were used in estimating tteérfvalue of our share-based awards, while
the expected life of our options was estimatedetdive years based on historical trends since mtial public offering. Further, as required
under SFAS 123R, we now estimate forfeitures farstbased awards that are not expected to vestg€han these inputs and assumptions
can materially affect the measure of estimatedviaime of our share-based compensation. We chhegestimated fair value to earnings on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period ofuhderlying awards, which is generally four yeansdor stock option and deferred stock unit
awards and up to two years for our employee stockhase plan. The Blackeholes option pricing model was developed forinssstimating
the fair value of traded options having no vestiegfrictions and being fully transferable. As otarck option and employee stock purchase
plan awards have characteristics that differ sigaiftly from traded options, and as changes irsthgective assumptions can materially af
the estimated value, our estimate of fair value matyaccurately represent the value assigned biydparty in an arms-length transaction.
While our estimate of fair value and the associatestge to earnings materially affects our resflisperations, it has no impact on our cash
position.

Stock options granted to consultants undeisbare-based compensation plans are accountetfér @walue determined by using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model in accordancthwimerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-ABcounting for Equity Instruments TF
Are Issued to Other Than Employees for AcquiringinoConjunction with Selling, Goods or Servicestiese awards are subject to periodic
revaluation over their vesting term, if any. Thewaptions used to value share-based awards toltamtsuare similar to those used for
employees, except that we use the contractuablifee award rather than the expected life.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recognizebnefit upon expensing certain share-based awasixiated with our share-based
compensation plans, including nonqualified stockans and deferred stock unit awards, but underectiaccounting standards we cannot
recognize tax benefit currently for share-basedpmeation expenses associated with incentive sipitins and employee stock purchase
plan shares (qualified stock options). For quadifséock options that vested after our adoptionFfAS 123R, we recognize tax benefit only in
the period when disqualifying dispositions of thelarlying stock occur, and for qualified stock ops that vested prior to our adoption of
SFAS 123R, the tax benefit is recorded directlgdditional paid-in capital. For the fiscal endeded30, 2006, we realized tax benefit from
non-qualified stock option exercises and disquadgydispositions of qualified stock options totgli$6.6 million, of which $210,000 of the
tax benefit was recognized as a reduction of theipion for income taxes, $233,000 reduced defe@ra@ssets established after our adoy
of SFAS 123R, and the remaining tax benefit wasndsd directly to additional paid-in capital.

Our pretax income, net income, and basic and dilutedrmeime per share for the year ended June 30, 20@6reduced by $13.1 millic
$10.2 million, and $0.42 and $0.34 per share, sy, under SFAS 123R more than they would Haeen had we continued to account
our share-based awards in accordance with APB 25.

Application of SFAS 123R had no impact on cash position, but did result in a change in preg&m on our consolidated statements of
cash flows by classifying excess tax benefit onetmsed awards from cash flows from operatinyitiets to cash flows from financing
activities. To determine excess tax benefit, wethedong-haul method in which we compare the d¢txabenefit associated with the tax
deduction from share-based award activity to thgoktyetical tax benefit on the grant date fair valaéthe corresponding shabased award
Actual tax benefit related to the tax deductiondbare-based awards exceeded the hypotheticaétefibon the grant date fair values of the
corresponding share-based awards resulting in exagdenefit of $5.2 million for the year endede30, 2006.

Historically, we have issued new shares imeation with our share-based compensation plangeber, 2,306,100 treasury shares are
also available for issuance as of the end of fi2686. As of June 30, 2006, we have $40 millionaiming under our stock repurchase
program, which expires in October 2007. Any incratabshares repurchased under the stock repurgihageam would be available for
issuance.

Deferred Stock Unit

Our 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan (“20GInBlprovides for the grant of deferred stock wawitards (“DSUs”) to our employees,
consultants, and directors. A DSU is a promisedlovdr shares of our common stock at a future agaéecordance with the terms of the DSU
grant agreement. We began granting DSU awardsimain 2006.
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DSUs granted under the 2001 Plan generalliy28% at the end of 12 months from the vesting cemzement date and at a rate of
approximately 2% each month thereafter until fuiysted at the end of 48 months from the vestingneentement date. Delivery of shares
under the plan takes place quarterly for all DSelsted as of the scheduled delivery dates. Uniiveigi of shares, the grantee has no rights as
a stockholder.

An election to defer delivery of the underlyishares for unvested DSU awards can be made pobthe deferral election is made at least
one year before vesting and the deferral peried isast five years from the scheduled deliverg dat

The following table summarizes DSU activitgluding DSUs granted, delivered, and forfeited nlgifiscal 2006 and the balance and
aggregate intrinsic value of DSUs as of June 30620

Deferred Aggregate Weighted
Stock Unit Intrinsic Average

Awards Value Grant Date
Outstandin¢  (thousands  Fair Value

Balance at June 30, 20 —
Granted 38,68( $29.6¢

Delivered —
Forfeited 40C $30.71
Balance at June 30, 20 38,28( $834 $29.6¢

Unrecognized shatzased compensation costs for DSUs granted und@0@ie Plan are approximately $891,000 as of Jun2(Ib, to b
recognized over a weighted average period of ajpmately four years.

Stock Options

Our current share-based compensation plahgtbeide for the grant of stock options include @896 Stock Option Plan, our 2000
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, and our 2001 Ingen€ompensation Pla“the Plans”). Under the Plans, employees, constsjamd
directors may be granted incentive stock optionsamqualified stock options to purchase sharesioEommon stock at not less than 100¢
85% of the fair value, respectively, on the datgraint.

Options issued under the Plans generally2&%t at the end of 12 months from the vesting conuament date and approximately 2%
each month thereafter until fully vested at the ehd8 months from the vesting commencement daitio@s not exercised ten years after the
date of grant are cancelled.

In October 2002, we granted 200,000 optiors ¢onsultant that at the time were to vest over years; however, in December 2002 we
hired the consultant as an employee. In accordaitbe=IN 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactioms/blving Stock Compensation,” we
remeasured the intrinsic value of the option goanthe date the consultant became an employeecandded deferred stock compensation
that we were amortizing over the remaining vespiagod of the options. With the adoption of SFASR2we ceased amortizing deferred
stock compensation, reclassified the remainingriz@laf deferred stock compensation on our balaneetso additional paid-in capital, and
began expensing the remaining fair value, as pusiyadetermined under SFAS 123, of the underlyipioms over their remaining vesting
periods.

In August 2002, our board approved an optagrant offer to several employees who had recedpdidn grants under the 2001 Incentive
Compensation Plan having option exercise pricégl8f98 and $18.70. The option exercise prices westantially higher than the price of
our stock at the time of the regrant offer. Undier terms of the regrant, the employees were alldaedkect to have their option cancelled i
in consideration thereof to receive a new optiartfie same number of shares as cancelled six manthsne day after the date of
cancellation. On March 3, 2003, new options to @ega total of 106,500 shares were granted purdoahe regrant offer with a new exerc
price of $6.56 per share. The vesting period ahddule for the new options remained the same agetfteng period and schedule of the
cancelled options.
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The following table summarizes stock optactivity and weighted average exercise pricestfick options granted, exercised, and
forfeited during fiscal 2006 and the balance oktariding and exercisable stock options as of Jan2@6:

Balance at June 30, 20
Granted
Exercisec
Forfeited

Balance at June 30, 20

Exercisable at June 30, 20

As of June 30, 2006, the number of smukons outstanding and exercisable by range afcesesprices, the weighted average exercise

Stock
Option
Awards
QOutstanding

5,426,26|
1,585,18:
(949,65¢)
(253,78)
5,808,01

3,130,13

prices, the intrinsic value and for options outding the weighted average remaining contractualdie as follows:

Range of
Exercise Price

$1.00- $3.00
$3.50- $7.37
$8.19- $9.96
$10.91- $16.4C
$18.26- $18.7C
$19.56- $20.33
$21.50
$21.88- 25.78
$30.26
$30.71

Options Outstandin

Options Exercisabl

Weightec
Average
Exercise

Price

$ 10.9¢
22.8¢
7.1¢
17.0¢
14.5¢

8.9z

Number

Outstanding

1,008,97
734,34t
882,59
509,68
559,03:
267,95¢
822,50(
363,52(
406,58

252,81
5,808,01.

Weighted
Average Weightec
Remaining Average
Contractue Exercise

Term Price

3.5 $ 2.37
6.17 6.3
6.11 9.2t
7.52 15.0¢
8.0t 18.2¢
9.1¢ 19.81
9.0¢ 21.5(
9.4: 22.9(
8.517 30.2¢
9.5¢ 30.71
7.07 14.5¢

Weightec

Intrinsic Average

Value Number Exercise
(thousands Exercisable Price

$ 19,59 1,008,97 $ 2.37

11,34¢ 633,64 6.2¢

11,06¢ 744,75¢ 9.1:

3,43¢ 263,52 14.9¢

1,97: 259,12( 18.2i

531 24,21 20.3¢

23¢ 16,02¢ 21.5C

— 34,34¢ 24.9:

— 145,52( 30.2¢

$ 48,18t¢ 3,130,13! 8.92

Intrinsic
Value

(thousands
$ 19,59
9,85:
9,42¢
1,80¢
912

35

5

$ 41,63¢

At June 30, 2006, we estimate fully vdsiptions and options expected to vest to be 52823yith an aggregate intrinsic value of
$47.9 million having a weighted average exercisegpand a weighted average remaining contractoal ¢é $14.23 per share and seven

years, respectivel

The following table summarizes cash nesgtiand the aggregate intrinsic value for stockoogtexercised during the years ended

June 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006 (in thousands):

Years ended June 2

2004 2005 2006
Cash receive $ 4,271 $ 7,01¢ $ 6,832
Aggregate intrinsic valu $12,38: $29,08¢ $17,701
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The fair value of each award granted famPlans during the year ended June 30, 200&stavated at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model, assuming noeekgd dividends and the following assumptions:

Expected volatility 71.4%- 73.9%
Expected life in year 5.0

Risk-free interest rat 4.1%- 4.9%
Fair value per awar $12.3¢-$19.1¢

The expected volatility is based on histd volatility; the expected life is based onthigcal option exercise trends; and the risk free
interest rate is based on U. S. Treasury yielddfgct at the time of grant for the expected liféhe option.

Unrecognized share-based compensatids farsstock options granted under the Plans gpecapmately $29.1 million as of June 30,
2006, to be recognized over a weighted averagegefiapproximately three years.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

Our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase PlaBP®’) became effective on January 29, 2002, tleetdfe date of the registration statement
for our initial public offering. The ESPP allows ployees to designate up to 15% of their base cosgiem, subject to legal restrictions and
limitations, to purchase shares of common sto@&8&b of the lesser of the fair market value (“FM\&t)the beginning of the offering period
or the exercise date. The offering period extendsip to two years and includes four exercise datesrring at six month intervals. Under
the terms of the plan, if the FMV at an exercisedsiless than the FMV at the beginning of therirfig period, the current offering period
will terminate and a new two-year offering perioil wommence.

The following table summarizes sharespased, weighted average purchase price, caslvedcaind the aggregate intrinsic value for
ESPP purchases during the years ended June 30,2088} and 2006 (in thousands, except for sharehpsed and weighted average
purchase price):

Years ended June 3

2004 2005 2006
Shares purchast¢ 165,83: 198,25: 93,02(
Weighted average purchase pi $ 6.62 $ 7.0Z $ 17.6¢
Cash receive $ 1,09¢ $ 1,391 $ 1,64
Aggregate intrinsic valu $ 1,252 $ 3,63¢ $ 48¢

Under the terms of our ESPP, the offepgagod that commenced on January 1, 2005 wastated on June 30, 2005 and a new
offering period commenced on July 1, 2005. In agance with Technical Bulletin No. FTB 97-1, “Accding under Statement 123 for
Certain Employee Stock Purchase Plans with a LaaékBDption,"the early termination of an offering period follogdvey the commenceme
of a new offering period represents a modificatmthe terms of the related awards. This modif@atffected 169 employees participating
the ESPP as of June 30, 2005 and resulted in irer@incompensation costs that will be recognized etraight-line basis over the two-year
period ending June 30, 2007.

The fair value of each award granted uide ESPP during the year ended June 30, 200@stamated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, assuming no expected dividends haddllowing weighted average assumptions:

Expected volatility 49.3%- 75.7%
Expected life in year 0.5-2.0

Risk-free interest rat 3.3%- 4.4%
Fair value per awar $7.4(-$11.86
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The expected volatility is based on iragland historical volatility; the expected lifebiased on each period that begins with the
enrollment date until each purchase date remainitige offering period at the date of enrolimenthie plan; and the risk free interest rate is
based on U. S. Treasury yields or yield curve facffor each expected life.

Unrecognized shabased compensation costs for awards granted und&3PP are approximately $1.2 million as of Juhe2B06, tc
be recognized over a weighted average period abappately one year.

Pre-SFAS 123R Pro Forma Accounting Disclosures

The fair value of each share-based ageadted during the years ended June 30, 2004 0t \28s estimated at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, assuming@xyected dividends and the following weighted agerassumptions:

Stock Option Plau Employee Stock Purchase P
Years ended June 2 Years ended June 3
2004 2005 2004 2005
Expected volatility 74.5% 68.2% 65.(% 58.9%
Expected life in year 5 5 0.5 11
Risk-free interest rat 3.C% 3.5% 1.C% 2.6%
Fair value per awar $7.97 $13.71 $2.57 $10.31

During the years ended June 30, 2002808, had compensation expense for stock optioas determined based on the fair value of
the options at dates of grant consistent with tleeipions of SFAS 123, net income and net inconteshare would have been reduced to the
pro forma amounts indicated in the following tapitethousands, except per share amounts):

Years ended June 2

2004 2005

Net income— as reportel $12,99: $37,98¢

Add: Total stoc-based compensation included in reported net incoetenf tax 32C 218

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation determindénfair value based method for all awards, ne

tax (4,049 (6,506

Net income— pro forma $ 9,267 $31,69:
Net income per sha— basic:

As reportec $ 0.5¢ $ 1.4t

Pro forma $ 0.3 $ 1.2%
Net income per sha— diluted:

As reportec $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3C

Pro forma $ 0.34 $ 1.0

10. Employee benefit plans
401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) Retirement Savings Riafull-time employees. Under the plan, eligiblagoyees may contribute a maximum of
25% of their net compensation or the annual lifhi$15,000. The annual limit for employees who &ley8ars or older is $20,000. We pro\
matching funds of 20% of the employee’s contribuitigp to a maximum of $3,000. We made matching dautions of $49,000, $183,000,
and $305,000 in fiscal 2004, 2005, and 2006, reseby.
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11. Income Taxes

Income before provision for income tageasisted of the following (in thousands):

Years ended June 2

2004 2005 2006
u.s $20,34( $35,14¢ $18,94¢
Foreign 58€ 23,18¢ 6,574
Income before provision for income tay $20,92¢ $58,33: $25,52:

The provision for income taxes consigtéhe following (in thousands):

Years ended June 2

2004 2005 2006
Current tax expens
Federal $ 7,23( $12,31% $ 5,192
State 1,18¢ 1,77¢ 1,60z
Foreign 35 4,421 3,524
8,45:¢ 18,51¢ 10,31¢
Deferred tax expens
Federal (427) 1,611 1,144
State (11t 554 12t
Foreign 23 (339 23t
(519 1,831 1,504
Provision for income taxe $ 7,93¢ $20,34% $11,82:

The provision for income taxes differsrr the federal statutory rate as follows (in thaowks:

Years ended June 2

2004 2005 2006

Provision at U.S. federal statutory r $ 7,32¢ $20,41¢ $ 8,93
State income taxe 657 665 1,437
Foreign withholding taxe — 3,72¢ 3,13(
Unrecognized tax benefit on sh-based compensation, r — — 2,432
Research and development cre (32¢) (22€) (2,129
Foreign tax rate differentii — (4,08)) (844)
Tax exempt interes (267) (43€) (1,06¢
Other difference 542 281 (72

Provision for income taxe $ 7,934 $20,34 $11,82:

The American Jobs Creation Act of 200 (tAct”) was signed into law in October 2004. Thet created a temporary incentive for
U.S. corporations to repatriate accumulated inceareed abroad by providing an 85% dividends redeilezluction for certain dividends
from controlled foreign corporations resulting im @pproximate 5.25% federal tax rate on the regiattiearnings. We did not repatriate any
foreign accumulated income under the Act.
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As of June 30, 2005 and 2006, signifiGrmponents of our deferred tax assets (liabi)ittes as follows (in thousands):

2005 2006
Deferred tax asset
Investment writedown $ 1,10¢ $ 1,102
Inventory writedown: 74 12¢
Warranty reserv 15 7
Depreciation and amortizatic 62¢ 87t
Accrued compensatic 61€ 742
Accruals not currently deductib 83¢ 25¢
Shar-based compensatic — 2,491
Foreign loss carryforwarc 28C —
3,55¢ 5,604
Valuation allowanct (1,105 (1,102
2,45¢ 4,50z
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest deductio (1,87¢) (5,450
Other (20 —
(1,899 (5,450
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie $ 556 $ (949

Realization of deferred tax assets dep@mdour generating sufficient U.S. and certaieifpn taxable income in future years to obtain
benefit from the reversal of deferred tax asseteofdingly, the amount of deferred tax assets demsd realizable may increase or decrease
when we reevaluate the underlying basis for oumegés of future U.S. and foreign taxable income.oAJune 30, 2006, a valuation
allowance of $1.1 million had been establishecethuce deferred tax assets to levels that we bedimsenore likely than not to be realized
through future taxable income. The valuation alloeedecreased by $332,000, $575,000, and $3,000ydhe years ended June 30, 2004,
2005, and 2006, respectively. As of June, 30, 208@6remaining valuation allowance relates to auestment writedowns. During fiscal
2005 and 2006, we recognized $1.2 million and $#llfon of tax benefit, respectively, from the rate of tax contingency accruals
associated with income tax issue settlements atdtstexpirations. No material tax benefit from tekease of tax contingency accruals was
realized in fiscal 2004. The tax contingency aclsrueleased in fiscal 2005 and 2006 were estaldighearlier fiscal years.

As of June 30, 2005and 2006, net defelardssets (liabilities) consisted of the follogiimalances (in thousands):

2005 2006

Current deferred tax asst $ 1,182 $ 1,03¢
Non-current deferred tax asst 28C —
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie (906 (1,989
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie $ 55€ $ (949

Current deferred tax assets, non-cudeferred tax assets, and non-current deferredabitities are included in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, other assets, and othélitlehirespectively, in the accompanying consdéidaebalance sheets.

Included in other assets as of June 306 2s $13.1 million of non-current prepaid taxeToneurrent prepaid tax is associated with
intercompany royalty arrangement on the licensihigtangibles in connection with our internatioglerating structure. The non-current
prepaid tax will be charged to tax expense ovemtbighted average life of the licensed intangildeapproximately four years.
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12. Segment, Customers, and Geographic Information

We operate in one segment: the developmearketing, and sale of interactive user intexfaclutions for electronic devices and
products. We generate our revenue from two broadyat categories: the PC market and digital lifiesproduct markets. The PC market
accounted for 84%, 59%, and 85% of our net revémtige years ended June 30, 2004, 2005, and 268§ectively.

The following is a summary of net revemithin geographic areas based on our custometatilon (in thousands):

China
Taiwan
Japar
Singapore
United State!
Korea

Other

Years ended June 3

As of June 30, 2005 and 2006, long-ligedets within geographic areas consisted of th@fislg (in thousands):

United State!
Asia/Pacific
United Kingdom

Major customers as a percentage of veinge:

Customer A
Customer E
Customer C

13. Subsequent Events

2004 2005 2006
$ 75,89¢ $157,66: $141,95¢
37,21 23,37( 23,55¢
3,69¢ 3,29¢ 4,87
34C 13,68( 4,541
5,69: 4,007 3,24z
4,307 1,49¢ 2,17¢
6,12¢ 4,62¢ 4,20¢
$133,27¢ $208,13¢ $184,55°

2005 2006
$14,33¢ $14,64:
66 1,14¢
21C 247
$14,61 $16,03¢

Years ended June 3
2004 2005 2,006

25% 34% 14%
3% 2% 10%
1C0% 6% 9%

Subsequent to June 30, 2006, we repuedhat5,000 shares for $4.6 million, or an averagge of $21.45 per share.
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Reserve deducted from as—
Allowance for doubtful account
2004
2005
2006

SCHEDULE Il

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ending June 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006

(in thousands)

Balance a
beginning
of year

$16C
13C
16t

Additions Adjustments Balance a
charged tc to end of
expense reserve year
- (30) 13C
44 (9) 16E
52 (28) 18¢
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Exhibit 10.6 (c)

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED
2001 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
DEFERRED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT

Synaptics Incorporated (th&€bmpany ) wishes to grant to the person (th@4rticipant ") named in the Notice of Grant of Deferred
Stock Award (the ‘Notice of Grant”) a Deferred Stock Award (theAward ") pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s 208dentive
Compensation Plan (thePlan”). The Award will entitle Participant to shares$tiock from the Company, if Participant meets tasting
requirements described herein. Therefore, purdoahe terms of the attached Notice of Grant amsiDeferred Stock Award Agreement (the
“ Agreement”), the Company grants Participant the number debed Stock Units listed in the Notice of Grant.

The details of the Award are as follows:

1. Grant Pursuant to Plafhis Award is granted pursuant to the Plan, wiisdncorporated herein for all purposes. The Pigiint hereb
acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan andesgi@be bound by all of the terms and conditidrteie Agreement and of the Plan. All
capitalized terms in this Agreement shall haventleaning assigned to them in this Agreement, @uyéh term is not defined in this
Agreement, such term shall have the meaning agsignie under the Plan.

2. Deferred Stock AwardThe Company hereby grants to the ParticipanDiferred Stock Units listed in the Notice of Grastof the
grant date specified in the Notice of Grant (th@rant Date "). Such number of Deferred Stock Units may be sidid from time to time
pursuant to Section 10(c) of the Plan.

3. Vesting and Forfeiture of Deferred Stoakits).

(a) Vesting The Participant shall become vested in the DedeBtock Units in accordance with the vesting sateeith the Notice of
Grant.

(b)_Forfeiture The Participant shall forfeit any unvested DefdrBtock Units, if any, in the event that the Raréint's Continuous
Service is terminated for any reason, except asraibe determined by the Plan Administrator irsitée discretion, which determination need
not be uniform as to all Participants.

[(c)_Accelerated Vesting on a Change @amitol . In the event of a Change in Control, as defimethé Change in Control Severance
Agreement between the Participant and the Comphey* Change in Control Severance Agreemeriy), fifty percent (50%) of the unvested
Deferred Stock Units subject to this Award will bewe fully vested as of the Effective Date of a GJeim Control (both as defined in the
Change in Control Severance Agreement). After tifiecEve Date, the remaining unvested Deferred IStduits shall continue to vest at the
rate and at the times provided for in the Notic&adint. If the Participant is terminated by the @amy (or its successor or parent) without
Good Cause (as defined in the Change in Contrati@ece Agreement) or the Participant terminatesimigloyment with the Company (or
successor or parent) for Good Reason (as definggti€hange in Control Severance Agreement), amgiréng unvested Deferred Stock
Units subject to this Award will vest as of the daynediately preceding the date of termination.]

4. Settlement of Deferred Stock Award

(a) Settlement of Units for StocWhereas Section 6(e) of the Plan permits the Goypo deliver either cash, Stock or a combination
of Stock and cash in settlement of a Deferred Stogkird, the Company has determined that this Avehiall be settled solely in Stock.
Therefore, the Company shall deliver to the Panéint one share of Stock for each vested Defermeck34nit subject to this Award on the
appropriate Delivery Date (as defined in Sectidn)¥4(The Company shall not have any obligationetitles this Award for cash.

(b) Delivery of StockShares of Stock shall be delivered on the defidate(s) (each aDelivery Date”) specified in the Notice of
Grant. Once a share of Stock is delivered witheesi a vested Deferred Stock Unit, such vestddribml Stock Unit shall terminate and the
Company shall have no further obligation to delisieares of Stock, cash or any other property foh sested Deferred Stock Unit.




(c) Deferral of DeliveryNotwithstanding the foregoing, the Participantyreéect, in writing received by the Plan Administraat least
twelve (12) months prior to a Delivery Date, toatethat date until any later date (which such datd least five years after the original
Delivery Date).

5. No Rights as Shareholder until Delivefyhe Participant shall not have any rights, bésefi entittements with respect to any Stock
subject to this Agreement unless and until thelShas been delivered to the Participant. On or @iéivery of the Stock, the Participant sl
have, with respect to the Stock delivered, alheftights of an equity interest holder of the Compancluding the right to vote the Stock and
the right to receive all dividends, if any, as nieydeclared on the Stock from time to time.

6. Adjustments in Case of Certain Corporatm$actions In the event of a proposed sale of all or sultstiyall of the Company’s
assets or any reorganization, merger, consolidatioather form of corporate transaction in whish Company does not survive, or in which
the shares of Stock are exchanged for or convartedecurities issued by another entity, thenstinecessor or acquiring entity or an affiliate
thereof may, with the consent of the CommitteeherBoard, assume this Award or substitute an etgrivaward. If the successor or
acquiring entity or an affiliate thereof does natise such an assumption or substitution, therAtherd shall terminate upon the
consummation of such sale, merger, consolidationtteer corporate transaction. Immediately prioatal contingent on the consummation of
a corporate transaction as described in this Seétithe Company shall deliver shares of Stockéoeixtent of the vested Deferred Stock
Units as of the date of the consummation of sucpharate transaction.

7. Tax Provisions

(a) Tax ConsequenceRarticipant has reviewed with Participant’s owax &dvisors the federal, state, local and foredgn t
consequences of this investment and the transaatimmemplated by this Agreement. Participantligig solely on such advisors and not on
any statements or representations of the Compaagyoof its agents. Participant understands thatdgent (and not the Company) shall be
responsible for any tax liability that may ariseaa®sult of the transactions contemplated byAhieement.

(b) Withholding ObligationsAt the time the Award is granted, or at any titinereafter as requested by the Company, Participant
hereby authorizes withholding from payroll and atlyer amounts payable to Participant, includingehaf Stock deliverable pursuant to-
Award, and otherwise agrees to make adequate ovigr, any sums required to satisfy the minimwauddral, state, local and foreign tax
withholding obligations of the Company or a Relafedity, if any, which arise in connection with tAgvard.

The Company, in its sole discretion, and impbance with any applicable legal conditions atrietions, may withhold from fully vested
shares of Stock otherwise deliverable to Partidip@on the vesting of the Award a number of whblares of Stock having a Fair Market
Value, as determined by the Company as of thettlatParticipant recognizes income with respeditsé shares of Stock, not in excess of
the amount of minimum tax required to be withhejddw (or such lower amount as may be necessaayda adverse financial accounting
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treatment). Any adverse consequences to Particgi@ing in connection with such Stock withholdipgcedure shall be the Participansole
responsibility.

In addition, the Company, in its sole dis@etimay establish a procedure whereby the Partitipay make an irrevocable election to
direct a broker (determined by the Company) tosdlicient shares of Stock from the Award to cotrer tax withholding obligations of the
Company or any Related Entity and deliver such geds to the Company.

Unless the tax withholding obligations of thempany or any Related Entity are satisfied, then@any shall have no obligation to issue a
certificate for such shares of Stock.

(c) Section 409A AmendmentEhe Company agrees to cooperate with Particifmeaiend this Agreement to the extent either the
Company or Participant deems necessary to avoidsitipn of any additional tax or income recognitimior to actual payment to Participant
under Code Section 409A and any temporary or finaasury Regulations and Internal Revenue Serviggagce thereunder, but only to the
extent such amendment would not have an adverset efii the Company and would not provide Partidipath any additional rights, in ea
case as determined by the Company in its soleeatiear

8. ConsiderationWith respect to the value of the shares of Stodée delivered pursuant to the Award, such shair&ock are granted
consideration for the services Participant shailvjate to the Company during the vesting period.

9. Transferability The Deferred Stock Units granted under this Agrexat are not transferable otherwise than by willrder the
applicable laws of descent and distribution. Initoid, the Deferred Stock Units shall not be assiymegotiated, pledged or hypothecated in
any way (whether by operation of law or otherwise)l the Deferred Stock Units shall not be sulifeetxecution, attachment or similar
process.

10. General Provisions

(a) Employment At Will Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan shalifes upon Participant any right to continue in $ieevice of
the Company or its Related Entities for any penbdpecific duration or interfere with or otherwissstrict in any way the rights of the
Company (or any Related Entity employing or retagniParticipant) or of Participant, which rights aereby expressly reserved by each, to
terminate Participant’s service at any time for eggson, with or without cause.

(b)_Notices Any notice required to be given under this Agreetrshall be in writing and shall be deemed eféectipon personal
delivery or upon deposit in the U.S. mail, registeor certified, postage prepaid and properly sxidre to the party entitled to such notice at
the address indicated below such party’s signditueson this Agreement or at such other addressiels party may designate by ten
(10) days’ advance written notice under this paaprto all other parties to this Agreement.

(c) No Limit on Other Compensation Arrantents Nothing contained in this Agreement shall preeltise Company from adopting or
continuing in effect other or
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additional compensation arrangements, and thoaegegments may be either generally applicable dicaibe only in specific cases.

(d)_Severability If any provision of this Agreement is or becoress deemed to be invalid, illegal, or unenfordeab any jurisdictior
or would disqualify this Agreement or the Award endny applicable law, that provision shall be ¢aresi or deemed amended to confori
applicable law (or if that provision cannot be soistrued or deemed amended without materiallyiatjghe purpose or intent of this
Agreement and the Award, that provision shall bielgtn as to that jurisdiction and the remaindethid Agreement and the Award shall
remain in full force and effect).

(e) No Trust or Fund Createdeither this Agreement nor the grant of the Awstndll create or be construed to create a trustjparat
fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship betmegbe Company and the Participant or any otherogperbhe Deferred Stock Units subject to
this Agreement represent only the Companynfunded and unsecured promise to issue Stdble tBarticipant in the future. To the extent
the Participant or any other person acquires & t@leceive payments from the Company pursuatitisoAgreement, that right shall be no
greater than the right of any unsecured generditoreof the Company.

(f) Cancellation of Awardif any Deferred Stock Units subject to this Agret are forfeited, then from and after such tithe,
Participant (and any other person from whom sucieided Stock Units are forfeited) shall no longavé any rights to such Deferred Stock
Units or the corresponding shares of Stock. Sudieretl Stock Units shall be deemed forfeited inoadance with the applicable provisions
hereof.

(g)_Participant UndertakindParticipant hereby agrees to take whatever aaditiaction and execute whatever additional doctsribie
Company may deem necessary or advisable in ord=rtg out or effect one or more of the obligationsestrictions imposed on either
Participant or the shares of Stock deliverable yamsto the provisions of this Agreement.

(h)_ Amendment, Madification, and Entirgr&ement No provision of this Agreement may be modifiedived or discharged unless
that waiver, modification or discharge is agreethtarriting and signed by the Participant and thenFAdministrator. This Agreement
constitutes the entire contract between the pangesto with regard to the subject matter herebis Agreement is made pursuant to the
provisions of the Plan and shall in all respectsdigstrued in conformity with the terms of the Plemthe event of a conflict between the Plan
and this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shalegowParticipant further acknowledges that as efGnant Date, this Agreement and the F
set forth the entire understanding between Paatitipnd the Company regarding the acquisition oflSpursuant to this Award and
supersede all prior oral and written agreementhansubject with the exception of awards from@uwenpany previously granted and
delivered to Participant. No agreements or reptasens, oral or otherwise, express or impliedhwéspect to the subject matter hereof have
been made by either party which are not set forgitessly in this Agreement.
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(i)_Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by, and condtimaccordance with, the laws of the State offGalia without
regard to the conflict-of-laws rules thereof oraofy other jurisdiction.

(i) Interpretation The Participant accepts this Award subject tahalterms and provisions of this Agreement andehas and
conditions of the Plan. The undersigned Participenéby accepts as binding, conclusive and finaledisions or interpretations of the Plan
Administrator upon any questions arising under gggseement.

(k)_Successors and Assigi$e provisions of this Agreement shall inurerte benefit of, and be binding upon, the Companyitnd
successors and assigns and upon Participant,iPantis assigns and the legal representativess heid legatees of Participant’s estate,
whether or not any such person shall have becopaeta to this Agreement and have agreed in writtngin herein and be bound by the
terms hereof. The Company may assign its rightsodtigations under this Agreement, including, bat lmited to, the forfeiture provision
Section 3(b) to any person or entity selected kyBbard.

(I)_CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which shall be deemed to be an original aliudf which
together shall constitute one and the same instnitime

(m)_HeadingsHeadings are given to the Paragraphs and Subpalegjof this Agreement solely as a conveniendadititate
reference. The headings shall not be deemed invagymaterial or relevant to the construction oeiiptetation of this Agreement or any
provision thereof.

11. Representation®articipant acknowledges and agrees that Paatitipas reviewed the Agreement in its entirety,Haaban
opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel pribpekecuting and accepting the Award and fully ustderds all provisions of the Award.

[Remainder of page is intentionally blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have executed this Agreement onalieadd year first indicated above.
SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED

By:

Title:

PARTICIPANT

Address

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO DEFERREDSTOCK AWARD AGREEMENT]






Exhibit 12.1

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Set forth below is information concernmg ratio of earnings to fixed charges on a cddat#d basis for the periods indicated. This
ratio shows the extent to which our business géeernough earnings after the payment of all exgzeather than interest to make the
required interest payments on the convertible senibordinated notes.

For purposes of computing the ratio ahaways to fixed charges, “earnings” consist of imeobefore income taxes and fixed charges.
“Fixed charges” consist of interest expense angtrgon of rent expense we believe representintieeest component of such rent expense.

Years ended June 2
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in thousands, except for ratic

Fixed charges:

Interest expens $ 197 $ 15F $ 134 $ 1,14¢ $ 1,93¢
Portion of rent expense deemed to represent irt 242 32t 35¢ 392 262

Total fixed charge $ 43¢ $ 48C $ 49z $ 1,53 $ 2,201

Earnings:

Net income $ 9,40( $ 7,71¢ $12,99: $37,98¢ $13,70:
Income taxe: 5,05¢ 4,34 7,93¢ 20,341 11,82:
Fixed charge: 43¢ 48C 492 1,537 2,201

Total earnings for computation of ra $14,89¢ $12,54: $21,41¢ $59,86¢ $27,72¢

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 33.¢ 26.1 43.t 39.C 12.€






SUBSIDIARIES

NAME

STATE OR JURISDICION
OF ORGANIZATION

Exhibit 21

Synaptics International, In
Synaptics (UK) Limitec
Synaptics Hong Kong Limite
Synaptics Holding Gmbl

Synaptics LLC

California
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Switzerlanc

Delaware






Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Synaptics Incorporated:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Nos. 333-81820, 333-82288-82286, 333-82282, 333-99529
and 333-99531) on Form S-8, Registration StateflenB33-115274 on Form S-4, and Registration StatgiNo. 333-122348 on Form S-3
of Synaptics Incorporated of our reports dated &apter 6, 2006, with respect to the consolidatedrua sheets of Synaptics Incorporated
and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 and 2006hanelated consolidated statements of incomekistdders’ equity and comprehensive
income and cash flows for each of the years irthhee-year period ended June 30, 2006 and theddimancial statement schedule,
management’s assessment of the effectivenesseshaltcontrol over financial reporting as of Jufe 3006, and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30,&08hich reports appear in the June 30, 2006 amepalt on Form 10-K of Synaptics
Incorporated. Our report dated September 6, 20@8sré0 an accounting change as a result of thpteaoof SFAS No. 123(R)ShareBase(
Payment.'

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
September 6, 2006






Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Francis F. Lee, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatio any untrue statement of a material fact ot torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal are responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgritie period in which this report is being prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financigloing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisimeport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiaiuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 6, 2006

/sl Francis F. Lee
Francis F. Lee
Chief Executive Officer







Exhibit 31.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Russell J. Knittel, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatio any untrue statement of a material fact ot torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal are responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgritie period in which this report is being prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financigloing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiaiuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 6, 2006

/s/ Russell J. Knittel
Russell J. Knittel
Chief Financial Officer







Exhibit 32.1

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Offier

In connection with the Annual Report on ForfaKL of Synaptics Incorporated (the “Company”) foetyear ended June 30, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), Francis F. Lee, President and Chief Executivicex of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdmpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementt$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafigeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or
780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiad@mn and results of operations of the
Company

/sl Francis F. Lee
Francis F. Le«

Chief Executive Office
September 6, 20C







Exhibit 32.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Offier

In connection with the Annual Report on ForfaKL of Synaptics Incorporated (the “Company”) fbetyear ended June 30, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Russell J. Knittegnior Vice President, Chief Financial

Officer, Chief Administrative Officer, Secretaryn@Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant8®J1S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to &
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementt$ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or
780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiad@mn and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ Russell J. Knittel
Russell J. Knitte
Chief Financial Officel
September 6, 20C




